
 

 

  
 
 

 
 

 
GLADSTONE CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
CIVIC CENTER COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

December 12, 2023 – 6:30 PM  
6:30 p.m. - CALL TO ORDER  
  

The City of Gladstone is abiding by guidelines set forth in House Bill 2560, which requires the governing body of the public body, to 
extent reasonably possible, to make all meetings accessible remotely through technological means and provide opportunity for 
members of general public to remotely submit oral and written testimony during meetings to extent in-person oral and written 
testimony is allowed. Therefore, this meeting will be open to the public both in person and virtually using the Zoom platform. 
 
Please click the link below to join the webinar: 
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/85091871169?pwd=0xFSZYXuLOaHD8se1L_z724bTI_CWQ.r_3KDWlJUog0YirA  
 
Passcode: 313272 
Or One tap mobile : 
    +17207072699,,85091871169#,,,,*313272# US (Denver);  +12532050468,,85091871169#,,,,*313272# US 
 
Or Telephone: 
    Dial(for higher quality, dial a number based on your current location): 
    +1 720 707 2699 US (Denver);  +1 253 205 0468 US 
 
Webinar ID: 850 9187 1169 
Passcode: 313272 
 
If members of the public would like to comment on an agenda item (either virtually or in person) please email your comments to 
bannick@ci.gladstone.or.us prior to 12:00 p.m. (noon) on December 12, 2023. Individuals attending in person may submit a speaker 
card to the City Recorder prior to the beginning of the meeting. Comments are limited to three (3) minutes. 
 
The City Council will also have Gladstone City Event Announcements during the meeting and Business from the Audience at the end 
of the meeting. To speak during either time, (virtually or in person) please email bannick@ci.gladstone.or.us prior to 12:00 p.m. (noon) 
on December 12, 2023 with your name, topic of discussion and city of residence. Individuals attending in person may submit a speaker 
card to the City Recorder prior to the beginning of the meeting. Comments are limited to three (3) minutes. 
 
ROLL CALL 
FLAG SALUTE 
 
PRESENTATION- Oath of Office Administered to new Gladstone Police Officer Ian Dornfeld 
 
AGENDA ADDITIONS OR CORRECTIONS 
 
CONSENT AGENDA: 
1. Approval of November 14, 2023 Regular Minutes  
2. Approval of  October Bank Balances 
3. Budget Report for Period ending 10-31-2023 
4. Approval of October Check Register  
5. Legal Costs on Projects for October 
6. Department Head Monthly Reports for November 2023 



 

 

7. Certify the Results of the November 7, 2023 Special Election on Vacant City Council Position #4, Renewal of the 
Policy Levy and Renewal of the Fire Levy 

 
CORRESPONDENCE: None 
 
8. REPORT – CLACKAMAS FIRE DISTRICT UPDATE  

 
9. GLADSTONE CITY EVENT ANNOUNCEMENTS 

This is an opportunity for members of the audience to bring to the Council’s attention any upcoming city events otherwise not listed on the Agenda. Comments 
will be limited to three (3) minutes per person. Speakers may not yield their time to others and must fill out a speaker card available in the back of the room prior 
to making a comment. 

 
REGULAR AGENDA: 

 
10. RESOLUTION 1231 – A RESOLUTION ADOPTING A REVISED MASTER FEE SCHEDULE AND 

REPEALING RESOLUTION 1228 – UTILITY RATE CHANGES, RIGHT-OF-WAY MINIMUM 
CHARGES, ADDING PUBLIC WORKS ENGINEERING  FEES AND COMMUNITY CENTER 
SUGGESTED DONATION FEE CHANGES 
Consider approval of Resolution 1231 – a Resolution adopting a revised master fee schedule for utility rate changes, 
right-of-way minimum charges, street opening one time extension fee, technical plan review/development engineering 
fees and community center suggested donation fees. 
 

11. RESOLUTION 1232 – A RESOLUTION ADOPTING A POLICY FOR SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT 
CHARGES (SDC) CALCULATIONS IN CONNECTION WITH COMMERCIAL TO RESIDENTIAL 
CONVERSIONS, AS REQUIRED BY HOUSE BILL (HB) 2984  
Consider approval of Resolution 1232 – a Resolution adopting a policy for SDC calculations in conversion of a 
building, or portion of, from a commercial use to a residential use, as required by HB 2984. 
 

12. OREGON DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION (ODOT) LOCAL AGENCY CERTIFICATION 
PROGRAM SUPPLEMENTAL PROJECT AGREEMENT BETWEEN ODOT, CLACKAMAS COUNTY 
AND CITY OF GLADSTONE, TO DELIVER THE TROLLEY TRAIL BRIDGE PROJECT THROUGH THE 
LOCAL AGENCY CERTIFICATION PROGRAM 
Consider approval of the ODOT Local Agency Certification Program Supplemental Project agreement between 
ODOT, Clackamas County and the City of Gladstone, to deliver the Trolley Trail Bridge Project through the Local 
Agency Certification Program. 
 

13. APPOINTMENTS TO BOARDS, COMMITTEES AND COMMISSION  
a. Audit Committee – three applications received for three positions 
b. Budget Committee – two applications received for four positions 
c. Community Center Advisory Board – three applications received for two positions 
d. Park & Recreation Advisory Board – eight applications received for three positions 
e. Planning Commission – six applications received for two positions 
f. Traffic Safety Advisory Board – three applications received for four positions 

 
BUSINESS CARRIED FORWARD –  

 
BUSINESS FROM THE AUDIENCE 
Visitors: This is an opportunity for members of the audience to bring to the Council’s attention any item not otherwise listed on the Agenda. Comments will be limited 
to three (3) minutes per person. Speakers may not yield their time to others and must fill out a speaker card available in the back of the room prior to making a 
comment. 
 
BUSINESS FROM THE COUNCIL –   
 
COUNCIL AGENDA PLANNING DOCUMENT 
 
ADJOURN 

 



 

 

Upcoming Meeting Dates: 
 January 9, 2024 – City Council Regular Meeting - 6:30 pm. 
 January 23, 2024 – City Council Work Session – 5:30 p.m. 

 
MEETING ACCESSIBILITY SERVICES AND AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT (ADA) NOTICE 

The Civic Center is ADA accessible.  Hearing devices may be requested from the City Recorder at least 48 hours prior to the meeting. 
Individuals requiring other assistance must make their request known 48 hours preceding the meeting by contacting the City Recorder 
at bannick@ci.gladstone.or.us. Staff will do their best to respond in a timely manner and to accommodate requests.    









1



GLADSTONE CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES OF NOVEMBER 14, 2023 
 
Meeting was called to order by Mayor Milch at 6:31 P.M. – (Via Zoom and In Person) 
 
ROLL CALL:                                                                                                                                                                     
Mayor Michael Milch, Councilor Alexander, Councilor Garlington, Councilor Huckaby, Councilor 
Reichle, Councilor Roberts, Councilor Cook 
 
ABSENT:                                                                                                                                                                    
None                                                                                                                             
 
STAFF:                                                                                                                                                                               
Jacque Betz, City Administrator; Cathy Brucker, Financial Consultant; John Schmerber, Police Chief;  
Chad Jacobs, City Attorney; Tami Bannick, City Recorder 
 
Mayor Milch called the meeting to order.  He explained that the City is abiding by guidelines set forth in 
House Bill 2560, which requires that they make all meetings accessible remotely, through technologic 
means and provide the opportunity for the public to participate to the best of their ability.  This meeting 
will be open to the public, both in person and virtually, using the Zoom platform.  The Council members 
and staff will be in person, as well as those citizens who wish to attend in person.  He went over the 
procedures that will be followed for the meeting and the meeting agenda.  He said that public 
announcements will be at the beginning of each meeting and public comments will still be at the end. 
 
He said they acknowledge the Clackamas, Chinook, and Kalapuya native peoples on whose ancestral 
homelands they gather tonight.  We honor them as a vibrant, foundational, and integral part of our 
community.  We  recognize their accomplishments as the native stewards of these lands, as well as the 
diverse and vibrant native communities who make their home here today.  We thank those who have 
connection to this land and serve as stewards, working to ensure our ecosystem stays balanced and healthy.  
He said without a full representation of everyone’s experience we will never be able to design and develop 
a better future.   
 
AGENDA ADDITIONS OR CORRECTIONS:                                                                                                                     
None.       
 
CONSENT AGENDA:                                
1. Approval of October 10, 2023 Regular Meeting Minutes   
2. Approval of September Bank Balances 
3. Budget Report for Period ending 9-30-2023 
4. Approval of September Check Register 
5. Legal Costs on Projects for August and September 
6. Department Head Monthly Reports for October 2023 
Councilor Huckaby made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda.  Motion was seconded by Councilor 
Alexander.  Ms. Bannick took a roll call vote:  Councilor Garlington – yes.  Councilor Roberts – yes.   
Councilor  Cook – yes. Councilor Reichle – yes. Councilor Alexander – yes.  Councilor Huckaby – yes.  
Mayor Milch – yes.  Motion passed with a unanimous vote. 
 
CORRESPONDENCE:                                                                                                                                                            
None.   
 

1 - 1



7. REPORT FROM CLACKAMAS FIRE DISTRICT #1:                                                                                                     
Captain Michael Bauer said the Gladstone station had 136 calls for service, but no fires this month.  
They participated in the Goblin Gathering – it was awesome.                                                                            
 
He and Chief Stewart participated in a reunification drill with the Gladstone School District – it is the 
process of getting students in touch with parents/guardians in a structured way in the event of a natural 
disaster, violent event, etc.  He said there are some amazing people in the school district and Police 
Department – they are very proactive.                                                                                                            
 
He said the levy passed – they appreciate the support from the citizens in Gladstone.                           
The District is gearing up for Operation Santa Claus – it’s their 49th year of doing it.  They go through a 
parade route with Santa riding on a fire engine.  They will have drop sites where people can take 
food/donations/toys (there are barrels at the Gladstone Fire station).  Information is available on their 
website.  They are also participating with Pat McMahon and his old fire engine on the evenings of 
December 7th, 8th, and 9th.                                                                                                                                        
 
The October call volume for the entire District was 2,703 calls for service – which is up from previous 
years.  They are working on training new people.  Their safety message for the month is related to home 
heating and holiday safety.  Councilor Alexander said Shawn Olson came to the Community Center 
recently and gave a presentation on fire safety – it is available online.  He said that dryer vents can be a 
safety issue.     
 

8. GLADSTONE CITY EVENT ANNOUNCEMENTS:                                                                                                         
Bob Everett, representing the Gladstone Rotary Club, said they have bingo games every third Friday of 
the month at the Gladstone Community Center.  This month they are partnering with Agave Dog Rescue.  
The doors open at 4:30 P.M., bingo starts at 5:30 P.M. – they serve food and drinks.  They are making 
some changes to the games – bigger payouts, etc.                                                                                            Their 
club volunteers at the Clothes Closet – it is open every Saturday from 10:00 ‘til noon.  Anyone in need of 
children’s/teen’s clothing should feel free to visit.  They welcome donations. 

 
REGULAR AGENDA  

 
9. ORDINANCE 1527 – AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING NEW TERMS AND CONDITIONS FOR 

CONTINUATION OF AN EXCLUSIVE FRANCHISE GRANTED TO THE GLADSTONE 
DISPOSAL COMPANY FOR SOLID WASTE, YARD DEBRIS, AND RECYCLING SERVICES, 
AND REPEALING ORDINANCE 1469:                                                                                                                              
Ms. Betz said the City currently has a franchise agreement with Gladstone Disposal, which expires 
December 31st, 2026.  The only section of the agreement they are referring to tonight is Section 8.  She 
went over some background information as to why they are asking for new language – related to the ice 
storm debris in 2021 when citizens were allowed to bring yard debris to Meldrum Bar Park.  Gladstone 
Disposal ended up hauling away all the debris.  Because of the language in the agreement they were not 
reimbursed for this (approximately $45,000 in fees).  They asked if the City would consider amending the 
language.  The proposal is that the franchisee shall provide service to the City and to churches located 
within the City at no charge for routine services, provided, however, that exceptional service, which shall 
be defined as services for any single event with a cost of more than $1,000 for churches or $25,000 for the 
City, shall be charged at franchise then applicable rates.  At some point in the future Ms. Betz and Mr. 
Jacobs would like to discuss the fact that churches don’t pay for garbage services in general.  Gladstone 
has never had an event that cost more than the ice storm in 2021, so there is risk to the City, but they feel 
it is minimal.  They also feel that if there is such an event in the future that the City would be able to be 
reimbursed through FEMA (Gladstone Disposal cannot get reimbursed through FEMA).                                                      
 

1 - 2



Councilor Garlington had a question regarding the terms “fees” and “rates”.  Ms. Betz gave a 
scenario/example.  Fees are what the haulers pay to the City as their franchise fee.  Rates are what the 
haulers charge the customer.   

 
Councilor Alexander made a motion to approve Ordinance 1527, an ordinance adopting new terms and 
conditions for continuation of an exclusive franchise granted to the Gladstone Disposal Company for 
Solid Waste, Yard Debris, and Recycling Service, specifically Section 8, and repealing Ordinance No. 
1469.  Motion was seconded by Councilor Cook.  Ms. Bannick took a roll call vote:  Councilor Cook – 
yes.  Councilor Reichle – yes.  Councilor Alexander – yes.  Councilor Huckaby.  Councilor Garlington – 
yes. Councilor Roberts – yes.  Mayor Milch – yes.  Motion passed with a unanimous vote.         
 
Mr. Jacobs said the ordinance as drafted does not repeal Ordinance 1469, so he recommended that they 
rescind the previous vote and do another motion adopting Ordinance 1527 because they do not want to 
repeal Ordinance 1469. 
 
Councilor Alexander made a motion to approve Ordinance 1527, an ordinance adopting new terms and 
conditions for continuation of an exclusive franchise granted to the Gladstone Disposal Company for 
Solid Waste, Yard Debris, and Recycling Service, specifically Section 8.  Motion was seconded by 
Councilor Cook.  Ms. Bannick took a roll call vote:  Councilor Cook – yes.  Councilor Reichle – yes.  
Councilor Alexander – yes.  Councilor Huckaby.  Councilor Garlington – yes. Councilor Roberts – yes.  
Mayor Milch – yes.  Motion passed with a unanimous vote.         

                                                                                                                                                                                             
10. RESOLUTION 1230 – SUPPLEMENTAL BUDGET ADJUSTMENT TO THE BUDGET FOR 

THE BIENNIUM 2023-25:                                                                                                                                                      
Ms. Betz gave some background information.  In 2020 the Gladstone Senior Foundation purchased a Kia 
Sedona minivan for the Community Center to facilitate the transporting of a small number of seniors to 
and from medical appointments (in place of using a much larger bus). The van was then donated to the 
City, and it became part of the vehicle fleet.  In 2022 the City received grant funds from the Oregon 
Department of Human Services Office of Aging and People With Disabilities to purchase enhanced 
transportation at the Community Center.  The transportation needs increased, and therefore the City 
purchased a 10-passenger van.  The City sold the Kia Sedona minivan, and the funds were deposited into 
the General Fund to offset expenditures.  Recently the Senior Foundation has requested that the funds 
from the sale of the minivan ($25,515) be allocated back to the Foundation so they can use those funds to 
enhance the lives of local seniors.  They propose to use the funds to establish a foundation-administered 
program subsidizing tram trips for local seniors.  They have been good stewards of the Foundation funds, 
and the City is confident that the requested monies will be beneficial to the seniors in Gladstone.  Ms. 
Brucker went over the Oregon budget law pertaining to this.    

 
Councilor Cook made a motion to approve Resolution 1230, a supplemental budget resolution adjustment 
for the Community Center Tram Resource and Appropriation.  Motion was seconded by Councilor 
Huckaby.  Discussion:  Councilor Garlington said the Foundation are good stewards of our senior 
population and she hopes that no one would question this.  Ms. Bannick took a roll call vote:  Councilor 
Reichle – yes.  Councilor Cook – yes.  Councilor Roberts – yes.  Councilor Garlington – yes.  Councilor 
Huckaby – yes.  Councilor Alexander – yes. Mayor Milch -yes.  Motion passed with a unanimous vote.  

 
11. DISCUSSION ON USE OF OPIOID SETTLMENT FUNDS FOR A BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

MOBILE CRISIS POSITION IN GLADSTONE:             
Ms. Betz introduced Police Chief John Schmerber and Stacy England, the LPC Mobile Crisis Program 
Supervisor with Clackamas County.  She went over the staff report.  She pointed out that they are only 
talking about committing cash that is in the bank account currently, which is $51,000.  In October of 2022 
the City Council decided to move forward with an IGA with Clackamas County to collaborate on using 

1 - 3



Gladstone’s settlement funds to focus on mental health, housing for detox, and reducing the supply of 
opioids County-wide.                                                                                                                                       
 
Chief Schmerber said the Police Department has developed a strong relationship with the Mobile Crisis 
Team, but there remains limited resources to address mental illness and addiction.  The P.D. has responded 
to 112 calls for service between October 2022 and October 2023 which have been identified as someone in 
crisis involving mental health, addiction, or a combination of both.  These calls typically involve repeated 
calls for service and the City recognizes that Clackamas County Behavioral Health has an established 
program which can benefit the Gladstone community.  Therefore, staff proposed that they use the settlement 
monies directly toward the hiring of a mental heath service coordinator who is dual certified in mental 
illness and drug addiction in partnership with Clackamas County Behavioral Health.  This would be a two-
year pilot project starting when the County hires a qualified person in 2024.  The P.D. would have input on 
the candidates.  The person would be housed within the Gladstone P.D. with the ability to interact with 
officers, respond to calls for service, conduct follow up, and provide proactive outreach to assist those with 
addiction in crisis in hopes of reducing repeat calls for service.  Having a dual-certified coordinator allows 
for getting immediate resources activated to provide appropriate care to the individuals.  The current monies 
received will not cover the costs associated with the hiring of a full-time mental health service coordinator, 
but Clackamas County is committed to offset the remaining costs of the position, and the City will also 
provide in-kind service, such as office space, transportation, and communication.                                                                   
 
Ms. England said that any time there is a crisis law enforcement or anyone from the community can call 
the crisis line and they will triage and see if a mobile response is appropriate.  They work 24/7.  This position 
would connect people to the next level of care/intensive support, as well as prevention.  They can provide 
training/kits pertaining to NARCAN.                                                                                                           
 
Mayor Milch asked about budgeting if there are future funds coming.  Ms. Brucker said there are restrictions 
on the funding – it must be opioid-related.  There are reporting requirements.  They have only budgeted for 
an estimate for the year.  If it ends up being more than the funds that they have appropriated, they will do a 
supplemental budget adjustment to increase the revenues/expenditures.  Ms. England said they are asking 
the County to use opioid settlement funds to make the position a whole position.  Councilor Reichle asked 
if there are similar positions in any surrounding jurisdictions.  Chief Schmerber said that Lake Oswego, 
West Linn, Oregon City, and Milwaukie all have mental health clinicians.  He isn’t sure if they are dual 
certified.  Councilor Roberts asked if there is a large pool of qualified candidates for a position like this –  
 
Ms. England said that is an issue and it could take some time to find someone.                                                                        
 
There was a consensus from the Council to move forward on this.     
 

12. LEAGUE OF OREGON CITIES CONFERENCE DEBRIEF:                                                                                        
Councilors Huckaby, Garlington, and Ms. Betz attended the conference last month.                                           
 
Councilor Garlington thanked the City for the opportunity to attend.  The opening speaker reminded them 
to think about the next generation – not the next election.  To think about what they want their cities to 
look like in twenty years and always think about the impact of their decisions on the generation to come.  
She went over the sessions she attended and what she learned from them.  She thanked staff and the City 
attorneys for their support.                                                                                                                           
 
Ms. Betz went over what she got out of the conference as well.  She would like the federal government to 
allocate more funds like they did with ARPA without needing to apply/compete with each other.  It’s not 
just small cities who are having issues with finding revenue sources.  Gladstone is trying to do the best it 
can with what it has and there will never be enough resources available to meet all the needs of the 

1 - 4



community.  They are thoughtfully spending within their means.  She talked about a program called  
Clackamas Drop (located in Milwaukie) that is staffed by peer support specialists who are committed to 
helping young adults empower themselves and successfully transition to adulthood.  They can also train 
families to provide peer support when services are not available.                                                                       
 
Councilor Huckaby said she made some great connections.  She learned that if a teenager has four 
influential adults in their life there is a 98% chance of graduation.  She took a tour of the country fair in 
Veneta – it was amazing.  She encouraged everyone to check it out.            

 
BUSINESS CARRIED FORWARD:                                                                                                                                      
None.                                               
 
BUSINESS FROM THE AUDIENCE:                                                                                                                                   
None. 
 
BUSINESS FROM THE COUNCIL:                                                                                                                              
 
Councilor Reichle:                                                                                                                                                             
She attended the Parks & Rec Board meeting last night.  There was a presentation from Metro pertaining 
to a bond/Local Share Program that was approved in 2019 and how Gladstone can utilize that bond funding.  
There is approximately $850,000 available to invest in our parks.  The Board is beginning the process of 
deciding where to use the funds.  Community engagement is part of the process.  The play equipment for 
Meldrum Bar Park should be delivered by the end of the month and hopefully installed by the end of the 
year.   
 
Councilor Cook:                                                                                                                                                              
They thanked Ms. Betz, Councilor Huckaby and Councilor Garlington for attending the League of Oregon 
Cities conference and representing Gladstone so well.  They heard from two teachers that the biggest 
challenge in teaching now is the social/emotional learning that kids are dealing with after the pandemic.  
They are excited to continue the conversation regarding how other communities are serving their students.                           
They said that since the elected positions are unpaid and one unintended result of that is not everybody has 
equal opportunity to participate in representative government – not everybody can work for free.  What you 
end up with is often disproportionately wealthier and older people who have the flexibility to volunteer in 
this way.  They said the Council does a good job of attempting to represent everybody within their 
community, even though they are not necessarily a representative cross section of our community.  It’s 
something for them to think about.  They said they should consider if they have removed every barrier 
possible.   
 
Councilor Alexander:                                                                                                                                                         
He said he and the Council have been called hypocritical because they had chances to get diversity on the 
Council, but they didn’t, and now seven white people sit on the Council.  He doesn’t have an answer for 
that.  He feels there needs to be a conversation about this.                                                                                    
 
Ms. Betz pointed out that at the November 28th work session they will continue to have that conversation 
on diversity, equity, and inclusion as a Council goal.   
 
Councilor Garlington:                                                                                                                                                          
She said Friday, November 10th was Veterans Day.  On October 31st of this year President Biden made a 
proclamation that November 2023 is National Veterans and Military Family Month – he called upon the 
people of the United States to honor veterans and military families with appropriate ceremonies and 

1 - 5



activities.  She said Gladstone and the School District have done a remarkable job of doing that and she 
appreciates it.                                                                                                                                                                             
 
She thanked the staff for organizing another great Halloween festival (Police Department, Fire Department, 
City staff, and citizens).                                                                                                                                        
 
She reminded everyone that if their leaf pile will fit in their yard debris can, please use it to keep leaves out 
of storm drains.                                                                                                                                                                      
 
She thanked the voters who turned out on Election Day.  The Council doesn’t have to reconfigure any parts 
of the Police/Fire budget.  They have a permanent Council member now – Councilor Cook.                            
 
She attended the School Board meeting last week – they are doing a lot of good work.                                            
 
She also attended the Parks Board meeting to see the Metro presentation.  She is excited about the direction 
the Parks Board is going.                                                                                                                                            
 
She reminded anyone who is currently serving on our committees/boards/commissions to reapply if you 
would like to keep your position.  She encouraged anyone who is thinking about applying to go ahead and 
apply.  Applications are due by December 5th.                                                                                                                         
 
On December 9th, from 10:00 A.M. to 5:00 P.M. is the Holiday Market at the Community Center.  It’s a 
great event.  The Kiwanis will be serving breakfast from 8:00 A.M. to 10:00 A.M. with Santa Claus.  The 
Holiday Tree Lighting will be at 5:00 P.M.                                                                                                                            
 
She wished everyone a very happy Thanksgiving. 
 
Councilor Huckaby:                                                                                                                                                    
She said she is glad the discussions regarding diversity, equity, and inclusion are happening.                                     
 
She asked Chief Schmerber what he feels will help solve the issues they are experiencing with restrooms 
being damaged.  Chief Schmerber said they have researched camera systems.  He asked the community to 
come forward if they have information regarding suspects.                                                                                       
 
She enjoyed the Halloween festival.  The Public Works booth was her favorite.                                                            
 
She was appointed to LEDIC (Leaders for Equity, Diversity, and Inclusion Council) in Clackamas County.  
Their purpose is to advise the Board of Commissioners on items related to equity, diversity, and inclusion.  
They had their first meeting.                                                                                                                                 
 
Gladstone High School put on a play called “Trap” last week – it was awesome.   
 
Mayor Milch:                                                                                                                                                                        
He said age-wise having evening Council meetings and not being paid is not restricting them too much 
along those lines.  He appreciates the advisory committees that they have at the City level.  This is the way 
to involve citizens.                                                                                                                                                        
 
He said through his contacts with the Metro Mayor’s Consortium and the C-4 group they are tackling some 
of the County-wide issues, particularly the issue of potential tolling of our freeway.  He said we are lucky 
in Gladstone that our Representatives are both in significant leadership positions regarding this issue.  He 
spoke about a pilot program regarding paying for your automobile costs through a voluntary program of 

1 - 6



vehicle miles traveled.  The State has to make sure that there is equity in terms of whether the vehicles that 
do the most damage to roads are paying in proportion to that.  He is hoping that our Representatives will 
encourage this ongoing conversation to look at other alternatives to tolling.                           
 
He attended the School Board meeting last week – they continue to have the needs of students at the 
forefront - mental health/well-being of students and trying to make up for the gaps in learning that were 
lost during the pandemic.    
 
Mayor Milch asked for a motion to adjourn the meeting. 
 
ADJOURN:                                                                                                                                                                                
Councilor Roberts made a motion to adjourn the meeting.  Motion was seconded by Councilor Huckaby.  
Ms. Bannick took a roll call vote:  Councilor Huckaby – yes.  Councilor Alexander – yes.  Councilor Reichle 
– yes.  Councilor Cook – yes.  Councilor Roberts – yes. Councilor Garlington – yes.  Mayor Milch – yes.  
Motion passed with a unanimous vote. 
 
Meeting was adjourned at 8:35 P.M.           
 
Approved by the Mayor this ________ day of ___________________________, 2023.                                                         
 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________________                  ______________________________________       
Michael Milch, Mayor                                                        Tami Bannick, City Recorder     

1 - 7





2



Bank
July

 2023

August

 2023

September

 2023

October

 2023

November

2023

December

 2023

LGIP -City Of Gladstone #4472 25,192,979.55$       25,449,877.99$     25,170,836.81$     24,467,079.91$     

LGIP - Urban Renewal Agency #4650 2,427,381.48           2,438,367.43         2,450,180.17         2,248,798.67         

Checking Accounts:

General Fund 432,049.63               169,111.09            104,430.92            207,700.44            

Urban Renewal 549,462.65               33,760.33               33,760.60               33,760.88               

Municipal Court 28,242.65                 30,073.80               31,893.41               29,051.19               

Totals 28,630,115.96$       28,121,190.64$    27,791,101.91$    26,986,391.09$    -$                        -$                        

Bank
January

 2024

February

2024

March

 2024

April

 2024

May

2024

June

2024

LGIP -City Of Gladstone #4472

LGIP - Urban Renewal Agency #4650

Checking Accounts:

General Fund

Urban Renewal

Municipal Court 

Totals -$                          -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        

BANK BALANCES

Month Ending Balance

2 - 1





3



12/1/2023 2:16:14 PM Page 1 of 20

Budget Report
City of Gladstone Account Summary

For Fiscal: 2023-2024 Period Ending: 10/31/2023

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
Current

Total Budget
Period

Activity
Original

Total Budget

Fund: 100 - GENERAL FUND

Revenue

Department: 000 - UNDESIGNATED / NON DEPARTMENTAL

RptType: 3000 - BEG FUND BAL.

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 8,240,000.00 0.00 -8,240,000.00 0.00 %0.00100-000-309999 8,240,000.00

RptType: 3000 - BEG FUND BAL. Total: 0.000.008,240,000.00 8,240,000.00 -8,240,000.00 0.00%

RptType: 3100 - LOCAL TAXES

CURRENT YEAR TAXES 9,959,943.00 0.00 -9,959,943.00 0.00 %0.00100-000-310010 9,959,943.00

PRIOR YEAR TAXES 70,000.00 8,828.52 -61,171.48 12.61 %8,828.52100-000-310050 70,000.00

TRANSIENT LODGING TAX 350,000.00 47,825.24 -302,174.76 13.66 %40,594.32100-000-314045 350,000.00

RptType: 3100 - LOCAL TAXES Total: 56,653.7649,422.8410,379,943.00 10,379,943.00 -10,323,289.24 0.55%

RptType: 3110 - STATE SHARED TAXES

STATE REVENUE SHARING 310,000.00 0.00 -310,000.00 0.00 %0.00100-000-310170 310,000.00

ALCOHOL TAX REVENUE 486,922.00 37,070.67 -449,851.33 7.61 %11,319.02100-000-311010 486,922.00

MARIJUANA TAX 88,955.00 13,027.17 -75,927.83 14.64 %13,027.17100-000-311015 88,955.00

CIGARETTE TAX REVENUE 17,402.00 2,428.87 -14,973.13 13.96 %894.40100-000-311020 17,402.00

RptType: 3110 - STATE SHARED TAXES Total: 52,526.7125,240.59903,279.00 903,279.00 -850,752.29 5.82%

RptType: 3120 - RIGHT OF WAY FEES

GLADSTONE DISPOSAL FRANCHISE … 275,000.00 37,185.97 -237,814.03 13.52 %37,185.97100-000-312010 275,000.00

PGE FRANCHISE FEES 1,018,440.00 0.00 -1,018,440.00 0.00 %0.00100-000-312025 1,018,440.00

NW NATURAL GAS FRANCHISE FEE 315,700.00 0.00 -315,700.00 0.00 %0.00100-000-312030 315,700.00

COMCAST CABLE TV FRANCHISE FE 280,000.00 0.00 -280,000.00 0.00 %0.00100-000-312040 280,000.00

RptType: 3120 - RIGHT OF WAY FEES Total: 37,185.9737,185.971,889,140.00 1,889,140.00 -1,851,954.03 1.97%

RptType: 3130 - LICENSES AND PERMITS

BUSINESS LICENSE FEES 187,500.00 4,335.00 -183,165.00 2.31 %1,140.00100-000-313010 187,500.00

LIQUOR LICENSE RENEWALS 1,000.00 170.00 -830.00 17.00 %0.00100-000-313015 1,000.00

ALARM PERMITS 19,000.00 2,100.00 -16,900.00 11.05 %100.00100-000-313020 19,000.00

PARKING PERMITS 227,000.00 32,671.00 -194,329.00 14.39 %3,295.00100-000-313025 227,000.00

RptType: 3130 - LICENSES AND PERMITS Total: 39,276.004,535.00434,500.00 434,500.00 -395,224.00 9.04%

RptType: 3140 - CHARGES FOR SERVICES

RECREATION FEES 14,000.00 559.17 -13,440.83 3.99 %0.00100-000-314010 14,000.00

SENIOR CENTER BUILDING RENTAL … 13,500.00 3,302.50 -10,197.50 24.46 %1,875.00100-000-314015 13,500.00

PLANNING APPLICATION FEES 80,000.00 12,673.88 -67,326.12 15.84 %3,211.00100-000-314020 80,000.00

SOCIAL SERVICES CONTRACT 90,000.00 0.00 -90,000.00 0.00 %0.00100-000-314025 90,000.00

LIEN SEARCH FEES 9,500.00 990.00 -8,510.00 10.42 %150.00100-000-314030 9,500.00

RptType: 3140 - CHARGES FOR SERVICES Total: 17,525.555,236.00207,000.00 207,000.00 -189,474.45 8.47%

RptType: 3141 - SDC

PARK SDC FEES 0.00 392.67 392.67 0.00 %392.67100-000-314110 0.00

SDC REIMBURSEMENT FEE 0.00 3,669.48 3,669.48 0.00 %3,669.48100-000-314111 0.00

RptType: 3141 - SDC Total: 4,062.154,062.150.00 0.00 4,062.15 0.00%

RptType: 3150 - GRANTS

POLICE GRANTS 90,000.00 4,751.86 -85,248.14 5.28 %3,151.11100-000-315030 90,000.00

WES/GOOD NEIGHBOR GRANT 110,250.00 50,000.00 -60,250.00 45.35 %0.00100-000-315065 110,250.00

OTHER GRANTS 100,000.00 0.00 -100,000.00 0.00 %0.00100-000-315080 100,000.00

RptType: 3150 - GRANTS Total: 54,751.863,151.11300,250.00 300,250.00 -245,498.14 18.24%

RptType: 3260 - FINES AND FORFEITURES

COURT FINES & FORFEITURES 670,000.00 96,062.48 -573,937.52 14.34 %25,793.42100-000-326010 670,000.00

RptType: 3260 - FINES AND FORFEITURES Total: 96,062.4825,793.42670,000.00 670,000.00 -573,937.52 14.34%

3 - 1



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2023-2024 Period Ending: 10/31/2023

12/1/2023 2:16:14 PM Page 2 of 20

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
Current

Total Budget
Period

Activity
Original

Total Budget

RptType: 3301 - INTEREST

INTEREST 565,000.00 385,313.80 -179,686.20 68.20 %103,521.42100-000-330100 565,000.00

RptType: 3301 - INTEREST Total: 385,313.80103,521.42565,000.00 565,000.00 -179,686.20 68.20%

RptType: 3600 - MISCELLANEOUS

ALL OTHER GF RECEIPTS 40,000.00 5,476.46 -34,523.54 13.69 %589.07100-000-360000 40,000.00

NAT'L OPIOID SETTLEMENT FUNDS 140,000.00 7,447.65 -132,552.35 5.32 %0.00100-000-360100 140,000.00

SENIOR CENTER MISC. INCOME 5,500.00 368.00 -5,132.00 6.69 %72.00100-000-362115 5,500.00

TRAM TRIPS 22,000.00 5,688.73 -16,311.27 25.86 %1,616.85100-000-362212 22,000.00

MEAL DONATIONS 40,000.00 5,544.05 -34,455.95 13.86 %1,473.00100-000-362213 40,000.00

RptType: 3600 - MISCELLANEOUS Total: 24,524.893,750.92247,500.00 247,500.00 -222,975.11 9.91%

RptType: 3700 - OTHER

SALE OF SURPLUS EQUIP/PROPERTY 30,000.00 10,696.76 -19,303.24 35.66 %0.00100-000-371000 30,000.00

RptType: 3700 - OTHER Total: 10,696.760.0030,000.00 30,000.00 -19,303.24 35.66%

Department: 000 - UNDESIGNATED / NON DEPARTMENTAL Total: 778,579.93261,899.4223,866,612.00 23,866,612.00 -23,088,032.07 3.26%

Department: 910 - TRANSFER IN

RptType: 3990 - TRANSFERS IN

TRANSFER IN FROM ARPA FUND 653,500.00 0.00 -653,500.00 0.00 %0.00100-910-399105 653,500.00

TRANSFER IN FROM STREET FUND 584,717.00 0.00 -584,717.00 0.00 %0.00100-910-399205 584,717.00

TRANSFER IN FROM URBAN RENE… 590,503.00 212,866.48 -377,636.52 36.05 %212,866.48100-910-399390 590,503.00

TRANSFER IN FROM SEWER FUND 417,900.00 0.00 -417,900.00 0.00 %0.00100-910-399730 417,900.00

TRANSFER IN FROM WATER FUND 523,678.00 0.00 -523,678.00 0.00 %0.00100-910-399740 523,678.00

TRANSFER IN FROM STORM WATER 427,101.00 0.00 -427,101.00 0.00 %0.00100-910-399750 427,101.00

RptType: 3990 - TRANSFERS IN Total: 212,866.48212,866.483,197,399.00 3,197,399.00 -2,984,532.52 6.66%

Department: 910 - TRANSFER IN Total: 212,866.48212,866.483,197,399.00 3,197,399.00 -2,984,532.52 6.66%

Revenue Total: 991,446.41474,765.9027,064,011.00 27,064,011.00 -26,072,564.59 3.66%

Expense

Department: 121 - ADMIN

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES

CITY ADMINISTRATOR 409,752.00 70,024.94 339,727.06 17.09 %16,418.64100-121-431010 409,752.00

CITY RECRDR/HR MGR 390,672.00 34,016.00 356,656.00 8.71 %8,504.00100-121-431020 390,672.00

FINANCE DIRECTOR (.80) 206,542.00 0.00 206,542.00 0.00 %0.00100-121-431030 206,542.00

TOURISM/EC DEV COORDINATOR 127,812.00 16,023.84 111,788.16 12.54 %4,699.22100-121-431035 127,812.00

OFFICE ASSISTANT 154,764.00 25,416.00 129,348.00 16.42 %6,354.00100-121-431070 154,764.00

ACCOUNTING CLERK 182,179.00 30,234.40 151,944.60 16.60 %7,717.60100-121-431500 182,179.00

CAREER RECOGNITION PAY 17,311.00 2,997.04 14,313.96 17.31 %755.62100-121-450500 17,311.00

ASSOCIATED PAYROLL COSTS 887,946.00 93,875.58 794,070.42 10.57 %22,572.19100-121-470000 887,946.00

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES Total: 272,587.8067,021.272,376,978.00 2,376,978.00 2,104,390.20 11.47%

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES

CONTRACTUAL & PROFESSIONAL S… 152,700.00 55,531.25 97,168.75 36.37 %14,335.00100-121-500110 152,700.00

MUNICIPAL AUDIT CONTRACT 67,500.00 10,500.00 57,000.00 15.56 %0.00100-121-500120 67,500.00

LEGAL FEES 206,000.00 41,999.30 164,000.70 20.39 %25,897.30100-121-500130 206,000.00

COUNCIL ACTIVITIES 25,000.00 5,011.45 19,988.55 20.05 %3,035.00100-121-500490 25,000.00

OUTSIDE AGENCY REQUESTS 10,000.00 0.00 10,000.00 0.00 %0.00100-121-500491 10,000.00

PLANNING SERVICES CONTRACT 180,000.00 27,999.00 152,001.00 15.56 %16,177.00100-121-500492 180,000.00

COMM PROMOTIONS/BUSINESS D… 293,000.00 8,819.79 284,180.21 3.01 %1,747.15100-121-510020 293,000.00

TOURISM PROMOTION/ACTIVITIES 42,000.00 7,879.52 34,120.48 18.76 %0.00100-121-510021 42,000.00

BANK CHARGES 8,700.00 190.00 8,510.00 2.18 %0.00100-121-520120 8,700.00

OFFICE SUPPLIES & EQUIPMENT 37,000.00 2,853.41 34,146.59 7.71 %914.80100-121-520400 37,000.00

CITY NEWSLETTER 85,000.00 11,801.07 73,198.93 13.88 %4,926.18100-121-520450 85,000.00

FIRE & LIABILITY INSURANCE 436,800.00 200,642.76 236,157.24 45.93 %32,020.80100-121-530000 436,800.00

EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT 5,000.00 171.00 4,829.00 3.42 %42.75100-121-530200 5,000.00

EMPLOYEE APPRECIATION 8,000.00 306.35 7,693.65 3.83 %0.00100-121-540110 8,000.00

PERSONNEL RECRUITMENT 20,000.00 1,080.50 18,919.50 5.40 %235.00100-121-540120 20,000.00

DUES & MEMBERSHIPS 60,000.00 13,087.82 46,912.18 21.81 %0.00100-121-540200 60,000.00

TRAVEL, CONFERENCES & TRAINING 45,000.00 5,921.72 39,078.28 13.16 %2,931.79100-121-540220 45,000.00

MILEAGE REIMBURSEMENT 2,000.00 0.00 2,000.00 0.00 %0.00100-121-540230 2,000.00

3 - 2



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2023-2024 Period Ending: 10/31/2023

12/1/2023 2:16:14 PM Page 3 of 20

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
Current

Total Budget
Period

Activity
Original

Total Budget

PUBLICATIONS & SUBSCRIPTIONS 15,000.00 3,284.99 11,715.01 21.90 %118.00100-121-542000 15,000.00

TELEPHONES 18,500.00 2,526.98 15,973.02 13.66 %643.22100-121-560120 18,500.00

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES Total: 399,606.91103,023.991,717,200.00 1,717,200.00 1,317,593.09 23.27%

Department: 121 - ADMIN Total: 672,194.71170,045.264,094,178.00 4,094,178.00 3,421,983.29 16.42%

Department: 122 - INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES

IT MANAGER 239,844.00 39,376.00 200,468.00 16.42 %9,844.00100-122-432010 239,844.00

ASSOCIATED PAYROLL COSTS 125,511.00 20,113.69 105,397.31 16.03 %5,028.61100-122-470000 125,511.00

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES Total: 59,489.6914,872.61365,355.00 365,355.00 305,865.31 16.28%

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES

CONTRACTUAL & PROFESSIONAL 10,600.00 2,500.00 8,100.00 23.58 %2,500.00100-122-500110 10,600.00

COMPUTER/TECHNOLOGY SERVICE 247,524.00 31,662.13 215,861.87 12.79 %0.00100-122-500210 247,524.00

OFFICE SUPPLIES & EQUIPMENT 40,260.00 5,022.57 35,237.43 12.48 %1,493.85100-122-520400 40,260.00

TRAVEL, CONFERENCES & TRAINING 3,000.00 562.84 2,437.16 18.76 %0.00100-122-540220 3,000.00

SMALL TOOLS, EQUIPMENT & SAFE… 1,000.00 72.77 927.23 7.28 %0.00100-122-540300 1,000.00

CELL PHONES, PAGERS & RADIOS 71,076.00 10,037.39 61,038.61 14.12 %2,511.42100-122-560110 71,076.00

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES Total: 49,857.706,505.27373,460.00 373,460.00 323,602.30 13.35%

RptCategory: 60 - CAPITAL OUTLAY

COMPUTER & EQUIPMENT RESERVE 130,499.00 10,244.37 120,254.63 7.85 %9,999.36100-122-661018 130,499.00

RptCategory: 60 - CAPITAL OUTLAY Total: 10,244.379,999.36130,499.00 130,499.00 120,254.63 7.85%

Department: 122 - INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY Total: 119,591.7631,377.24869,314.00 869,314.00 749,722.24 13.76%

Department: 124 - FACILITIES

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES

PUBLIC WORKS SUPERVISOR 19,846.00 256.67 19,589.33 1.29 %0.00100-124-437050 19,846.00

UTILITY WORKER II 119,296.00 15,584.82 103,711.18 13.06 %5,128.37100-124-437070 119,296.00

OVERTIME 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 0.00 %0.00100-124-450100 1,000.00

ASSOCIATED PAYROLL COSTS 81,639.00 8,531.86 73,107.14 10.45 %2,760.01100-124-470000 81,639.00

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES Total: 24,373.357,888.38221,781.00 221,781.00 197,407.65 10.99%

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES

CONTRACTUAL & PROFESSIONAL S… 165,500.00 12,968.72 152,531.28 7.84 %3,758.61100-124-500110 165,500.00

OPERATIONS, MAINTENANCE & RE… 100,000.00 22,351.89 77,648.11 22.35 %4,100.14100-124-520130 100,000.00

TRAVEL, CONFERENCES & TRAINING 2,500.00 0.00 2,500.00 0.00 %0.00100-124-540220 2,500.00

SMALL TOOLS, EQUIPMENT & SAFE… 5,000.00 376.94 4,623.06 7.54 %118.13100-124-540300 5,000.00

UTILITIES 193,500.00 34,031.54 159,468.46 17.59 %4,551.09100-124-560100 193,500.00

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES Total: 69,729.0912,527.97466,500.00 466,500.00 396,770.91 14.95%

RptCategory: 60 - CAPITAL OUTLAY

FACILITY IMPROVEMENTS 0.00 2,810.00 -2,810.00 0.00 %0.00100-124-641000 0.00

PUBLIC WORKS FACILITY CONSTRU… 4,660,188.00 710,002.24 3,950,185.76 15.24 %22,271.37100-124-641005 4,660,188.00

BUILDING RESERVE/REPAIR 20,000.00 0.00 20,000.00 0.00 %0.00100-124-641010 20,000.00

RptCategory: 60 - CAPITAL OUTLAY Total: 712,812.2422,271.374,680,188.00 4,680,188.00 3,967,375.76 15.23%

Department: 124 - FACILITIES  Total: 806,914.6842,687.725,368,469.00 5,368,469.00 4,561,554.32 15.03%

Department: 220 - COURT

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES

MUNICIPAL COURT CLERK 144,999.00 23,743.56 121,255.44 16.37 %5,935.89100-220-432020 144,999.00

COURT ADMINISTRATOR 187,908.00 30,852.00 157,056.00 16.42 %7,713.00100-220-432035 187,908.00

CAREER RECOGNITION PAY 7,041.00 1,156.08 5,884.92 16.42 %289.02100-220-450500 7,041.00

ASSOCIATED PAYROLL COSTS 190,166.00 30,468.42 159,697.58 16.02 %7,617.55100-220-470000 190,166.00

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES Total: 86,220.0621,555.46530,114.00 530,114.00 443,893.94 16.26%

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES

CONTRACTUAL & PROFESSIONAL S… 2,000.00 254.50 1,745.50 12.73 %244.00100-220-500110 2,000.00

PROSECUTING ATTORNEY 85,000.00 14,000.00 71,000.00 16.47 %7,000.00100-220-500132 85,000.00

ATTORNEYS FOR INDIGENT CLIENTS 57,000.00 3,800.00 53,200.00 6.67 %0.00100-220-500134 57,000.00

MUNICIPAL COURT JUDGE 84,000.00 14,000.00 70,000.00 16.67 %3,500.00100-220-500136 84,000.00

PRO-TEM JUDGE 3,000.00 0.00 3,000.00 0.00 %0.00100-220-500137 3,000.00

JURY EXPENSES 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 0.00 %0.00100-220-500138 1,000.00

3 - 3



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2023-2024 Period Ending: 10/31/2023

12/1/2023 2:16:14 PM Page 4 of 20

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
Current

Total Budget
Period

Activity
Original

Total Budget

COURTROOM SECURITY 21,000.00 2,250.00 18,750.00 10.71 %750.00100-220-500282 21,000.00

BANK CHARGES 12,000.00 1,523.53 10,476.47 12.70 %0.00100-220-520120 12,000.00

OFFICE SUPPLIES & EQUIPMENT 12,000.00 959.78 11,040.22 8.00 %500.04100-220-520400 12,000.00

TRAVEL, CONFERENCES & TRAINING 4,000.00 978.19 3,021.81 24.45 %171.61100-220-540220 4,000.00

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES Total: 37,766.0012,165.65281,000.00 281,000.00 243,234.00 13.44%

Department: 220 - COURT Total: 123,986.0633,721.11811,114.00 811,114.00 687,127.94 15.29%

Department: 240 - POLICE

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES

POLICE CHIEF 337,464.00 55,408.00 282,056.00 16.42 %13,852.00100-240-432110 337,464.00

POLICE LIEUTENANT 271,116.00 0.00 271,116.00 0.00 %0.00100-240-432130 271,116.00

POLICE DETECTIVE 184,332.00 32,439.33 151,892.67 17.60 %8,099.02100-240-432140 184,332.00

POLICE OFFICER 1,529,200.00 196,517.35 1,332,682.65 12.85 %49,971.71100-240-432160 1,529,200.00

POLICE SERGEANT 642,360.00 104,353.87 538,006.13 16.25 %26,219.69100-240-432170 642,360.00

PROPERTY ROOM TECHNICIAN 59,430.00 9,950.32 49,479.68 16.74 %2,450.24100-240-432182 59,430.00

POLICE RECORDS CLERK 131,004.00 22,502.04 108,501.96 17.18 %0.00100-240-432185 131,004.00

OVERTIME 290,000.00 61,709.59 228,290.41 21.28 %17,074.04100-240-450100 290,000.00

TRAFFIC GRANT OVERTIME 80,000.00 9,473.03 70,526.97 11.84 %1,095.64100-240-450110 80,000.00

HOLIDAY PAY 30,000.00 14,066.05 15,933.95 46.89 %2,048.08100-240-450200 30,000.00

TRAINING OVERTIME 18,000.00 779.44 17,220.56 4.33 %779.44100-240-450210 18,000.00

PROFICIENCY PAY 176,563.00 23,078.77 153,484.23 13.07 %5,874.35100-240-450300 176,563.00

CAREER RECOGNITION PAY 8,604.00 5,379.91 3,224.09 62.53 %1,318.77100-240-450500 8,604.00

ASSOCIATED PAYROLL COSTS 2,192,668.00 287,048.15 1,905,619.85 13.09 %69,747.93100-240-470000 2,192,668.00

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES Total: 822,705.85198,530.915,950,741.00 5,950,741.00 5,128,035.15 13.83%

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES

CONTRACTUAL & PROFESSIONAL S… 149,350.00 29,246.71 120,103.29 19.58 %618.59100-240-500110 149,350.00

PARK  PATROL 19,076.00 8,898.19 10,177.81 46.65 %0.00100-240-500284 19,076.00

SHARE COST CCOM DISPATCH 153,700.00 26,027.50 127,672.50 16.93 %6,506.87100-240-500498 153,700.00

JUVENILE DIVERSION PROGRAM 5,000.00 0.00 5,000.00 0.00 %0.00100-240-510044 5,000.00

OPERATIONAL SUPPLIES AND EXPE… 89,948.00 4,327.96 85,620.04 4.81 %488.00100-240-520100 89,948.00

FIREARMS/AMMUNITION 72,080.00 498.00 71,582.00 0.69 %274.00100-240-520112 72,080.00

FLEET FUEL, MAINTENANCE & REPA… 176,960.00 44,874.89 132,085.11 25.36 %9,540.53100-240-520320 176,960.00

RADAR MAINTENANCE REPLACEM… 4,240.00 0.00 4,240.00 0.00 %0.00100-240-520345 4,240.00

OFFICE SUPPLIES & EQUIPMENT 37,492.00 4,929.81 32,562.19 13.15 %1,590.88100-240-520400 37,492.00

EMPLOYEE APPRECIATION 12,000.00 407.99 11,592.01 3.40 %0.00100-240-540110 12,000.00

DUES & MEMBERSHIPS 12,000.00 521.00 11,479.00 4.34 %0.00100-240-540200 12,000.00

TRAVEL, CONFERENCES & TRAINING 58,652.00 7,809.83 50,842.17 13.32 %3,007.42100-240-540220 58,652.00

UNIFORMS AND SAFETY EQUIPMENT 41,976.00 7,767.48 34,208.52 18.50 %388.30100-240-540301 41,976.00

PUBLICATIONS & SUBSCRIPTIONS 5,000.00 611.00 4,389.00 12.22 %0.00100-240-542000 5,000.00

TELEPHONES 21,412.00 3,132.90 18,279.10 14.63 %800.47100-240-560120 21,412.00

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES Total: 139,053.2623,215.06858,886.00 858,886.00 719,832.74 16.19%

RptCategory: 60 - CAPITAL OUTLAY

VEHICLES AND EQUIPMENT RESERV… 182,850.00 70,231.78 112,618.22 38.41 %8,008.32100-240-651000 182,850.00

RptCategory: 60 - CAPITAL OUTLAY Total: 70,231.788,008.32182,850.00 182,850.00 112,618.22 38.41%

Department: 240 - POLICE Total: 1,031,990.89229,754.296,992,477.00 6,992,477.00 5,960,486.11 14.76%

Department: 250 - FIRE

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES

CONTRACTUAL & PROFESSIONAL S… 3,668,444.00 1,111,635.00 2,556,809.00 30.30 %555,817.50100-250-500110 3,668,444.00

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES Total: 1,111,635.00555,817.503,668,444.00 3,668,444.00 2,556,809.00 30.30%

Department: 250 - FIRE Total: 1,111,635.00555,817.503,668,444.00 3,668,444.00 2,556,809.00 30.30%

Department: 526 - PARKS

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES

PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR 56,935.00 8,831.06 48,103.94 15.51 %2,319.26100-526-437049 56,935.00

PUBLIC WORKS SUPERVISOR 89,310.00 1,155.01 88,154.99 1.29 %0.00100-526-437050 89,310.00

PW ADMIN ASSISTANT 42,343.00 6,723.20 35,619.80 15.88 %1,716.90100-526-437055 42,343.00

UTILITY WORKER, JOURNEY 0.00 17,621.49 -17,621.49 0.00 %6,095.49100-526-437070 0.00

UTILITY WORKER II 237,712.00 25,028.60 212,683.40 10.53 %4,562.53100-526-437071 237,712.00

3 - 4



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2023-2024 Period Ending: 10/31/2023

12/1/2023 2:16:14 PM Page 5 of 20

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
Current

Total Budget
Period

Activity
Original

Total Budget

SEASONAL HELP 77,125.00 0.00 77,125.00 0.00 %0.00100-526-439011 77,125.00

OVERTIME 4,000.00 380.01 3,619.99 9.50 %17.30100-526-450100 4,000.00

CAREER RECOGNITION PAY 163.00 250.74 -87.74 153.83 %67.79100-526-450500 163.00

ASSOCIATED PAYROLL COSTS 249,276.00 28,634.46 220,641.54 11.49 %6,815.80100-526-470000 249,276.00

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES Total: 88,624.5721,595.07756,864.00 756,864.00 668,239.43 11.71%

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES

CONTRACTUAL & PROFESSIONAL S… 70,000.00 11,731.39 58,268.61 16.76 %2,212.12100-526-500110 70,000.00

BANK CHARGES 11,200.00 1,536.34 9,663.66 13.72 %0.00100-526-520120 11,200.00

OPERATIONS, MAINTENANCE & RE… 152,000.00 22,003.53 129,996.47 14.48 %2,591.89100-526-520130 152,000.00

HAZARDOUS TREE REMOVAL 50,000.00 0.00 50,000.00 0.00 %0.00100-526-520132 50,000.00

FLEET FUEL, MAINTENANCE & REPA… 45,000.00 5,067.81 39,932.19 11.26 %1,783.95100-526-520320 45,000.00

OFFICE SUPPLIES & EQUIPMENT 5,000.00 305.02 4,694.98 6.10 %66.65100-526-520400 5,000.00

TRAVEL, CONFERENCES & TRAINING 2,000.00 0.00 2,000.00 0.00 %0.00100-526-540220 2,000.00

SMALL TOOLS, EQUIPMENT & SAFE… 10,000.00 805.86 9,194.14 8.06 %30.14100-526-540300 10,000.00

DUMPING, HAULING, GARBAGE 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 0.00 %0.00100-526-540400 1,000.00

UTILITIES 73,300.00 20,515.55 52,784.45 27.99 %762.41100-526-560100 73,300.00

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES Total: 61,965.507,447.16419,500.00 419,500.00 357,534.50 14.77%

RptCategory: 60 - CAPITAL OUTLAY

EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT RESER… 50,000.00 0.00 50,000.00 0.00 %0.00100-526-660100 50,000.00

SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS & PROJEC… 599,623.00 0.00 599,623.00 0.00 %0.00100-526-676050 599,623.00

RptCategory: 60 - CAPITAL OUTLAY Total: 0.000.00649,623.00 649,623.00 649,623.00 0.00%

Department: 526 - PARKS Total: 150,590.0729,042.231,825,987.00 1,825,987.00 1,675,396.93 8.25%

Department: 527 - RECREATION

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES

RECREATION COORDINATOR 20,000.00 4,054.05 15,945.95 20.27 %0.00100-527-435120 20,000.00

ASSOCIATED PAYROLL COSTS 7,500.00 1,582.81 5,917.19 21.10 %0.00100-527-470000 7,500.00

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES Total: 5,636.860.0027,500.00 27,500.00 21,863.14 20.50%

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES

SUMMER PROGRAMS 3,000.00 839.25 2,160.75 27.98 %0.00100-527-510062 3,000.00

SPECIAL EVENTS 5,000.00 0.00 5,000.00 0.00 %0.00100-527-510064 5,000.00

MAINTENANCE & SUPPLIES 2,200.00 0.00 2,200.00 0.00 %0.00100-527-520136 2,200.00

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES Total: 839.250.0010,200.00 10,200.00 9,360.75 8.23%

Department: 527 - RECREATION Total: 6,476.110.0037,700.00 37,700.00 31,223.89 17.18%

Department: 528 - SENIOR CENTER

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES

COMMUNITY SERVICES MANAGER 223,061.00 33,623.50 189,437.50 15.07 %8,504.00100-528-435210 223,061.00

TRAM DRIVER 69,366.00 14,625.12 54,740.88 21.08 %3,402.72100-528-435240 69,366.00

NUTRITION CATERER 112,776.00 18,139.00 94,637.00 16.08 %4,541.00100-528-435250 112,776.00

CENTER ASSISTANT 140,388.00 23,674.08 116,713.92 16.86 %5,763.00100-528-435280 140,388.00

BUILDING MONITOR 4,500.00 358.32 4,141.68 7.96 %149.63100-528-435295 4,500.00

CAREER RECOGNITION PAY 1,404.00 236.74 1,167.26 16.86 %57.63100-528-450500 1,404.00

ASSOCIATED PAYROLL COSTS 297,810.00 48,177.68 249,632.32 16.18 %11,935.84100-528-470000 297,810.00

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES Total: 138,834.4434,353.82849,305.00 849,305.00 710,470.56 16.35%

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES

NUTRITION PROGRAM SUPPLIES 30,000.00 5,846.57 24,153.43 19.49 %1,440.74100-528-510075 30,000.00

TRAM EXPENSES 14,500.00 2,508.44 11,991.56 17.30 %524.65100-528-520140 14,500.00

BLDG MAINTENANCE & SUPPLIES 4,000.00 494.00 3,506.00 12.35 %370.00100-528-520200 4,000.00

FLEET FUEL, MAINTENANCE & REPA… 2,800.00 1,034.85 1,765.15 36.96 %68.85100-528-520320 2,800.00

OFFICE SUPPLIES & EQUIPMENT 5,000.00 1,362.98 3,637.02 27.26 %99.95100-528-520400 5,000.00

DUES & MEMBERSHIPS 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 0.00 %0.00100-528-540200 1,000.00

TELEPHONES 3,000.00 488.17 2,511.83 16.27 %124.52100-528-560120 3,000.00

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES Total: 11,735.012,628.7160,300.00 60,300.00 48,564.99 19.46%

3 - 5



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2023-2024 Period Ending: 10/31/2023

12/1/2023 2:16:14 PM Page 6 of 20

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
Current

Total Budget
Period

Activity
Original

Total Budget

RptCategory: 60 - CAPITAL OUTLAY

VEHICLES AND EQUIPMENT RESERV… 0.00 16,794.00 -16,794.00 0.00 %14,765.00100-528-651000 0.00

RptCategory: 60 - CAPITAL OUTLAY Total: 16,794.0014,765.000.00 0.00 -16,794.00 0.00%

Department: 528 - SENIOR CENTER Total: 167,363.4551,747.53909,605.00 909,605.00 742,241.55 18.40%

Department: 529 - LIBRARY

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES

CONTRACTUAL & PROFESSIONAL S… 446,540.00 0.00 446,540.00 0.00 %0.00100-529-500110 446,540.00

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES Total: 0.000.00446,540.00 446,540.00 446,540.00 0.00%

Department: 529 - LIBRARY Total: 0.000.00446,540.00 446,540.00 446,540.00 0.00%

Department: 600 - DEBT SERVICE

RptCategory: 70 - DEBT SERVICE

DEBT PRINCIPAL 854,265.00 177,775.00 676,490.00 20.81 %0.00100-600-720040 854,265.00

DEBT SERVICE - INTEREST 364,010.00 35,091.48 328,918.52 9.64 %0.00100-600-730040 364,010.00

RptCategory: 70 - DEBT SERVICE Total: 212,866.480.001,218,275.00 1,218,275.00 1,005,408.52 17.47%

Department: 600 - DEBT SERVICE Total: 212,866.480.001,218,275.00 1,218,275.00 1,005,408.52 17.47%

Department: 990 - CONTINGENCY

RptCategory: 90 - OTHER

CONTINGENCY FUNDS 821,908.00 0.00 821,908.00 0.00 %0.00100-990-910000 821,908.00

RptCategory: 90 - OTHER Total: 0.000.00821,908.00 821,908.00 821,908.00 0.00%

Department: 990 - CONTINGENCY Total: 0.000.00821,908.00 821,908.00 821,908.00 0.00%

Expense Total: 4,403,609.211,144,192.8827,064,011.00 27,064,011.00 22,660,401.79 16.27%

Fund: 100 - GENERAL FUND Surplus (Deficit): -3,412,162.80-669,426.980.00 0.00 -3,412,162.80 0.00%

3 - 6



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2023-2024 Period Ending: 10/31/2023

12/1/2023 2:16:14 PM Page 7 of 20

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
Current

Total Budget
Period

Activity
Original

Total Budget

Fund: 105 - AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN RESERVE FUND

Revenue

Department: 000 - UNDESIGNATED / NON DEPARTMENTAL

RptType: 3150 - GRANTS

OTHER GRANTS (ARPA) 2,367,344.00 0.00 -2,367,344.00 0.00 %0.00105-000-315080 2,367,344.00

RptType: 3150 - GRANTS Total: 0.000.002,367,344.00 2,367,344.00 -2,367,344.00 0.00%

Department: 000 - UNDESIGNATED / NON DEPARTMENTAL Total: 0.000.002,367,344.00 2,367,344.00 -2,367,344.00 0.00%

Revenue Total: 0.000.002,367,344.00 2,367,344.00 -2,367,344.00 0.00%

Expense

Department: 150 - ARPA GRANT

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES

CONTRACTUAL & PROFESSIONAL S… 115,300.00 12,380.00 102,920.00 10.74 %5,840.00105-150-500110 115,300.00

EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT 17,600.00 24,493.77 -6,893.77 139.17 %11,444.97105-150-530200 17,600.00

ARPA FUNDING (TBD) 280,944.00 0.00 280,944.00 0.00 %0.00105-150-530210 280,944.00

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES Total: 36,873.7717,284.97413,844.00 413,844.00 376,970.23 8.91%

RptCategory: 60 - CAPITAL OUTLAY

EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT 100,000.00 0.00 100,000.00 0.00 %0.00105-150-660100 100,000.00

RptCategory: 60 - CAPITAL OUTLAY Total: 0.000.00100,000.00 100,000.00 100,000.00 0.00%

Department: 150 - ARPA GRANT Total: 36,873.7717,284.97513,844.00 513,844.00 476,970.23 7.18%

Department: 920 - TRANSFER OUT

RptCategory: 89 - TRANSFERS OUT

TRANSFER OUT TO GENERAL FUND 653,500.00 0.00 653,500.00 0.00 %0.00105-920-899100 653,500.00

TRANSFER OUT TO SEWER FUND 840,000.00 0.00 840,000.00 0.00 %0.00105-920-899730 840,000.00

TRANFER OUT TO STORM WATER F… 360,000.00 0.00 360,000.00 0.00 %0.00105-920-899750 360,000.00

RptCategory: 89 - TRANSFERS OUT Total: 0.000.001,853,500.00 1,853,500.00 1,853,500.00 0.00%

Department: 920 - TRANSFER OUT Total: 0.000.001,853,500.00 1,853,500.00 1,853,500.00 0.00%

Expense Total: 36,873.7717,284.972,367,344.00 2,367,344.00 2,330,470.23 1.56%

Fund: 105 - AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN RESERVE FUND Surplus (Defici… -36,873.77-17,284.970.00 0.00 -36,873.77 0.00%

3 - 7



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2023-2024 Period Ending: 10/31/2023

12/1/2023 2:16:14 PM Page 8 of 20

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
Current

Total Budget
Period

Activity
Original

Total Budget

Fund: 205 - ROAD AND STREET FUND

Revenue

Department: 000 - UNDESIGNATED / NON DEPARTMENTAL

RptType: 3000 - BEG FUND BAL.

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 2,822,000.00 0.00 -2,822,000.00 0.00 %0.00205-000-309999 2,822,000.00

RptType: 3000 - BEG FUND BAL. Total: 0.000.002,822,000.00 2,822,000.00 -2,822,000.00 0.00%

RptType: 3100 - LOCAL TAXES

VEHICLE REGISTRATION FEES 500,000.00 19,410.32 -480,589.68 3.88 %0.00205-000-310060 500,000.00

RptType: 3100 - LOCAL TAXES Total: 19,410.320.00500,000.00 500,000.00 -480,589.68 3.88%

RptType: 3110 - STATE SHARED TAXES

STATE HIGHWAY TAXES 1,944,766.00 230,054.82 -1,714,711.18 11.83 %93,454.56205-000-310140 1,944,766.00

RptType: 3110 - STATE SHARED TAXES Total: 230,054.8293,454.561,944,766.00 1,944,766.00 -1,714,711.18 11.83%

RptType: 3120 - RIGHT OF WAY FEES

RIGHT OF WAY - TELECOM 240,000.00 12,516.40 -227,483.60 5.22 %12,228.10205-000-312050 240,000.00

RIGHT OF WAY - OTHER 225,000.00 7,737.33 -217,262.67 3.44 %76.50205-000-312055 225,000.00

ROW LICENSE FEES 1,000.00 250.00 -750.00 25.00 %250.00205-000-312060 1,000.00

RptType: 3120 - RIGHT OF WAY FEES Total: 20,503.7312,554.60466,000.00 466,000.00 -445,496.27 4.40%

RptType: 3141 - SDC

TRANSPORTATION SDC'S 0.00 1,445.49 1,445.49 0.00 %1,445.49205-000-314075 0.00

SDC Reimbursement Fee 0.00 176.73 176.73 0.00 %176.73205-000-314076 0.00

RptType: 3141 - SDC Total: 1,622.221,622.220.00 0.00 1,622.22 0.00%

RptType: 3600 - MISCELLANEOUS

ALL OTHER ROAD/STREET RECEIPTS 50,000.00 6,215.00 -43,785.00 12.43 %4,100.00205-000-360000 50,000.00

RptType: 3600 - MISCELLANEOUS Total: 6,215.004,100.0050,000.00 50,000.00 -43,785.00 12.43%

Department: 000 - UNDESIGNATED / NON DEPARTMENTAL Total: 277,806.09111,731.385,782,766.00 5,782,766.00 -5,504,959.91 4.80%

Department: 910 - TRANSFER IN

RptType: 3990 - TRANSFERS IN

TRANSFER IN FROM SEWER FUND 462,275.00 0.00 -462,275.00 0.00 %0.00205-910-399730 462,275.00

TRANSFER IN FROM WATER FUND 349,000.00 0.00 -349,000.00 0.00 %0.00205-910-399740 349,000.00

TRANSFER IN FROM STORM WATER 110,500.00 0.00 -110,500.00 0.00 %0.00205-910-399750 110,500.00

RptType: 3990 - TRANSFERS IN Total: 0.000.00921,775.00 921,775.00 -921,775.00 0.00%

Department: 910 - TRANSFER IN Total: 0.000.00921,775.00 921,775.00 -921,775.00 0.00%

Revenue Total: 277,806.09111,731.386,704,541.00 6,704,541.00 -6,426,734.91 4.14%

Expense

Department: 305 - ROAD AND STREET

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES

PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR 56,935.00 8,831.06 48,103.94 15.51 %2,319.26205-305-437049 56,935.00

PUBLIC WORKS SUPERVISOR 89,310.00 1,155.02 88,154.98 1.29 %0.00205-305-437050 89,310.00

PW UTILITIES MANAGER 60,981.00 9,560.88 51,420.12 15.68 %2,395.50205-305-437051 60,981.00

PW ADMIN ASSISTANT 62,632.00 10,085.97 52,546.03 16.10 %2,556.03205-305-437055 62,632.00

UTILITY WORKER, JOURNEY 154,764.00 41,454.79 113,309.21 26.79 %11,612.16205-305-437070 154,764.00

UTILITY WORKER II 165,676.00 15,827.60 149,848.40 9.55 %1,535.44205-305-437071 165,676.00

SEASONAL HELP 77,125.00 3,640.88 73,484.12 4.72 %0.00205-305-439011 77,125.00

OVERTIME 10,000.00 904.77 9,095.23 9.05 %38.92205-305-450100 10,000.00

CAREER RECOGNITION PAY 11,727.00 2,286.17 9,440.83 19.49 %535.68205-305-450500 11,727.00

ASSOCIATED PAYROLL COSTS 427,801.00 60,293.79 367,507.21 14.09 %14,311.32205-305-470000 427,801.00

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES Total: 154,040.9335,304.311,116,951.00 1,116,951.00 962,910.07 13.79%

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES

CONTRACTUAL & PROFESSIONAL S… 40,000.00 18,171.55 21,828.45 45.43 %790.31205-305-500110 40,000.00

OPERATIONS, MAINTENANCE & RE… 630,000.00 175,669.22 454,330.78 27.88 %23,407.74205-305-520130 630,000.00

STREET LIGHT MAINTENANCE 200,000.00 29,735.05 170,264.95 14.87 %7,457.03205-305-520172 200,000.00

TRAFFIC SIGNAL MAINTENANCE 14,000.00 574.21 13,425.79 4.10 %253.02205-305-520176 14,000.00

STREET SIGN MAINTENANCE 50,000.00 0.00 50,000.00 0.00 %0.00205-305-520178 50,000.00

FLEET FUEL, MAINTENANCE & REPA… 50,000.00 6,864.88 43,135.12 13.73 %1,159.65205-305-520320 50,000.00

OFFICE SUPPLIES & EQUIPMENT 4,000.00 242.43 3,757.57 6.06 %21.08205-305-520400 4,000.00

3 - 8



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2023-2024 Period Ending: 10/31/2023

12/1/2023 2:16:14 PM Page 9 of 20

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
Current

Total Budget
Period

Activity
Original

Total Budget

TRAVEL, CONFERENCES & TRAINING 2,500.00 0.00 2,500.00 0.00 %0.00205-305-540220 2,500.00

SMALL TOOLS, EQUIPMENT & SAFE… 20,000.00 117.75 19,882.25 0.59 %30.16205-305-540300 20,000.00

DUMPING, HAULING, GARBAGE 7,500.00 0.00 7,500.00 0.00 %0.00205-305-540400 7,500.00

UTILITIES 2,500.00 206.42 2,293.58 8.26 %52.65205-305-560100 2,500.00

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES Total: 231,581.5133,171.641,020,500.00 1,020,500.00 788,918.49 22.69%

RptCategory: 60 - CAPITAL OUTLAY

EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT RESER… 250,000.00 0.00 250,000.00 0.00 %0.00205-305-660100 250,000.00

BIKEWAY & SIDEWALK IMPROVEM… 19,447.00 0.00 19,447.00 0.00 %0.00205-305-675056 19,447.00

SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS & PROJEC… 1,884,122.00 67,882.25 1,816,239.75 3.60 %15.72205-305-676050 1,884,122.00

RESERVE FROM  SDC'S 596,139.00 0.00 596,139.00 0.00 %0.00205-305-678090 596,139.00

RptCategory: 60 - CAPITAL OUTLAY Total: 67,882.2515.722,749,708.00 2,749,708.00 2,681,825.75 2.47%

Department: 305 - ROAD AND STREET Total: 453,504.6968,491.674,887,159.00 4,887,159.00 4,433,654.31 9.28%

Department: 920 - TRANSFER OUT

RptCategory: 89 - TRANSFERS OUT

TRANSFER OUT TO GENERAL FUND 584,717.00 0.00 584,717.00 0.00 %0.00205-920-899100 584,717.00

TRANSFER OUT TO SEWER FUND 277,555.00 0.00 277,555.00 0.00 %0.00205-920-899730 277,555.00

TRANSFER OUT TO WATER 277,555.00 0.00 277,555.00 0.00 %0.00205-920-899740 277,555.00

TRANSFER OUT TO STORM 277,555.00 0.00 277,555.00 0.00 %0.00205-920-899750 277,555.00

RptCategory: 89 - TRANSFERS OUT Total: 0.000.001,417,382.00 1,417,382.00 1,417,382.00 0.00%

Department: 920 - TRANSFER OUT Total: 0.000.001,417,382.00 1,417,382.00 1,417,382.00 0.00%

Department: 990 - CONTINGENCY

RptCategory: 90 - OTHER

CONTINGENCY FUNDS 400,000.00 0.00 400,000.00 0.00 %0.00205-990-910000 400,000.00

RptCategory: 90 - OTHER Total: 0.000.00400,000.00 400,000.00 400,000.00 0.00%

Department: 990 - CONTINGENCY Total: 0.000.00400,000.00 400,000.00 400,000.00 0.00%

Expense Total: 453,504.6968,491.676,704,541.00 6,704,541.00 6,251,036.31 6.76%

Fund: 205 - ROAD AND STREET FUND Surplus (Deficit): -175,698.6043,239.710.00 0.00 -175,698.60 0.00%

3 - 9



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2023-2024 Period Ending: 10/31/2023

12/1/2023 2:16:14 PM Page 10 of 20

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
Current

Total Budget
Period

Activity
Original

Total Budget

Fund: 228 - POLICE LEVY FUND

Revenue

Department: 000 - UNDESIGNATED / NON DEPARTMENTAL

RptType: 3000 - BEG FUND BAL.

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 23,000.00 0.00 -23,000.00 0.00 %0.00228-000-309999 23,000.00

RptType: 3000 - BEG FUND BAL. Total: 0.000.0023,000.00 23,000.00 -23,000.00 0.00%

RptType: 3100 - LOCAL TAXES

CURRENT LEVY TAX 1,515,498.00 0.00 -1,515,498.00 0.00 %0.00228-000-310020 1,515,498.00

PRIOR YEAR TAXES 10,000.00 1,345.04 -8,654.96 13.45 %1,345.04228-000-310050 10,000.00

RptType: 3100 - LOCAL TAXES Total: 1,345.041,345.041,525,498.00 1,525,498.00 -1,524,152.96 0.09%

RptType: 3301 - INTEREST

INTEREST 4,000.00 -584.19 -4,584.19 14.60 %-419.55228-000-330100 4,000.00

RptType: 3301 - INTEREST Total: -584.19-419.554,000.00 4,000.00 -4,584.19 14.60%

Department: 000 - UNDESIGNATED / NON DEPARTMENTAL Total: 760.85925.491,552,498.00 1,552,498.00 -1,551,737.15 0.05%

Revenue Total: 760.85925.491,552,498.00 1,552,498.00 -1,551,737.15 0.05%

Expense

Department: 245 - POLICE LEVY

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES

POLICE OFFICER 184,338.00 34,402.78 149,935.22 18.66 %8,720.32228-245-432160 184,338.00

SCHOOL RESOURCE OFFICER 184,338.00 0.00 184,338.00 0.00 %0.00228-245-432165 184,338.00

MUNICIPAL ORDINANCE SPECIALIST 137,556.00 14,445.11 123,110.89 10.50 %5,021.00228-245-432180 137,556.00

EXECUTIVE ASSISTANT 161,508.00 26,652.00 134,856.00 16.50 %6,663.00228-245-432195 161,508.00

OVERTIME 30,000.00 3,362.47 26,637.53 11.21 %1,404.50228-245-450100 30,000.00

HOLIDAY PAY 4,000.00 0.00 4,000.00 0.00 %0.00228-245-450200 4,000.00

PROFICIENCY PAY 67,507.00 5,645.90 61,861.10 8.36 %1,558.99228-245-450300 67,507.00

CAREER RECOGNITION PAY 0.00 750.82 -750.82 0.00 %198.39228-245-450500 0.00

ASSOCIATED PAYROLL COSTS 490,468.00 53,827.53 436,640.47 10.97 %14,307.98228-245-470000 490,468.00

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES Total: 139,086.6137,874.181,259,715.00 1,259,715.00 1,120,628.39 11.04%

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES

SHARE COST CCOM DISPATCH 161,386.00 27,089.86 134,296.14 16.79 %6,772.46228-245-500498 161,386.00

SRO EXPENSES 4,000.00 2,722.83 1,277.17 68.07 %0.00228-245-510032 4,000.00

K-9 EXPENSES 14,000.00 2,667.40 11,332.60 19.05 %689.06228-245-510040 14,000.00

SWAT PROGRAM 8,200.00 0.00 8,200.00 0.00 %0.00228-245-510041 8,200.00

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES Total: 32,480.097,461.52187,586.00 187,586.00 155,105.91 17.31%

Department: 245 - POLICE LEVY Total: 171,566.7045,335.701,447,301.00 1,447,301.00 1,275,734.30 11.85%

Department: 991 - UNAPPROPRIATED BALANCE

RptCategory: 90 - OTHER

UNAPPROPRIATED ENDING FUND B… 105,197.00 0.00 105,197.00 0.00 %0.00228-991-990000 105,197.00

RptCategory: 90 - OTHER Total: 0.000.00105,197.00 105,197.00 105,197.00 0.00%

Department: 991 - UNAPPROPRIATED BALANCE Total: 0.000.00105,197.00 105,197.00 105,197.00 0.00%

Expense Total: 171,566.7045,335.701,552,498.00 1,552,498.00 1,380,931.30 11.05%

Fund: 228 - POLICE LEVY FUND Surplus (Deficit): -170,805.85-44,410.210.00 0.00 -170,805.85 0.00%

3 - 10



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2023-2024 Period Ending: 10/31/2023

12/1/2023 2:16:14 PM Page 11 of 20

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
Current

Total Budget
Period

Activity
Original

Total Budget

Fund: 229 - FIRE LEVY FUND

Revenue

Department: 000 - UNDESIGNATED / NON DEPARTMENTAL

RptType: 3000 - BEG FUND BAL.

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 160,000.00 0.00 -160,000.00 0.00 %0.00229-000-309999 160,000.00

RptType: 3000 - BEG FUND BAL. Total: 0.000.00160,000.00 160,000.00 -160,000.00 0.00%

RptType: 3100 - LOCAL TAXES

CURRENT LEVY TAX 690,889.00 0.00 -690,889.00 0.00 %0.00229-000-310020 690,889.00

PRIOR YEAR TAXES 5,000.00 612.66 -4,387.34 12.25 %612.66229-000-310050 5,000.00

RptType: 3100 - LOCAL TAXES Total: 612.66612.66695,889.00 695,889.00 -695,276.34 0.09%

RptType: 3301 - INTEREST

INTEREST 6,000.00 2,820.45 -3,179.55 47.01 %793.38229-000-330100 6,000.00

RptType: 3301 - INTEREST Total: 2,820.45793.386,000.00 6,000.00 -3,179.55 47.01%

Department: 000 - UNDESIGNATED / NON DEPARTMENTAL Total: 3,433.111,406.04861,889.00 861,889.00 -858,455.89 0.40%

Revenue Total: 3,433.111,406.04861,889.00 861,889.00 -858,455.89 0.40%

Expense

Department: 255 - FIRE LEVY

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES

CONTRACTUAL & PROFESSIONAL S… 861,889.00 0.00 861,889.00 0.00 %0.00229-255-500110 861,889.00

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES Total: 0.000.00861,889.00 861,889.00 861,889.00 0.00%

Department: 255 - FIRE LEVY Total: 0.000.00861,889.00 861,889.00 861,889.00 0.00%

Expense Total: 0.000.00861,889.00 861,889.00 861,889.00 0.00%

Fund: 229 - FIRE LEVY FUND Surplus (Deficit): 3,433.111,406.040.00 0.00 3,433.11 0.00%

3 - 11



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2023-2024 Period Ending: 10/31/2023

12/1/2023 2:16:14 PM Page 12 of 20

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
Current

Total Budget
Period

Activity
Original

Total Budget

Fund: 390 - URBAN RENEWAL FUND

Revenue

Department: 000 - UNDESIGNATED / NON DEPARTMENTAL

RptType: 3000 - BEG FUND BAL.

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 2,980,000.00 0.00 -2,980,000.00 0.00 %0.00390-000-309999 2,980,000.00

RptType: 3000 - BEG FUND BAL. Total: 0.000.002,980,000.00 2,980,000.00 -2,980,000.00 0.00%

RptType: 3100 - LOCAL TAXES

CURRENT YEAR TAXES 2,129,997.00 0.00 -2,129,997.00 0.00 %0.00390-000-310010 2,129,997.00

PRIOR YEAR TAXES 18,000.00 1,948.09 -16,051.91 10.82 %1,948.09390-000-310050 18,000.00

RptType: 3100 - LOCAL TAXES Total: 1,948.091,948.092,147,997.00 2,147,997.00 -2,146,048.91 0.09%

RptType: 3301 - INTEREST

INTEREST 100,000.00 37,848.35 -62,151.65 37.85 %9,536.89390-000-330100 100,000.00

RptType: 3301 - INTEREST Total: 37,848.359,536.89100,000.00 100,000.00 -62,151.65 37.85%

Department: 000 - UNDESIGNATED / NON DEPARTMENTAL Total: 39,796.4411,484.985,227,997.00 5,227,997.00 -5,188,200.56 0.76%

Revenue Total: 39,796.4411,484.985,227,997.00 5,227,997.00 -5,188,200.56 0.76%

Expense

Department: 410 - URBAN RENEWAL

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES

CONTRACTUAL & PROFESSIONAL S… 22,000.00 0.00 22,000.00 0.00 %0.00390-410-500110 22,000.00

MUNICIPAL AUDIT CONTRACT 38,000.00 0.00 38,000.00 0.00 %0.00390-410-500120 38,000.00

FIRE & LIABILITY INSURANCE 69,000.00 0.00 69,000.00 0.00 %0.00390-410-530000 69,000.00

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES Total: 0.000.00129,000.00 129,000.00 129,000.00 0.00%

RptCategory: 70 - DEBT SERVICE

DEBT SERVICE PRINCIPAL 986,320.00 485,896.00 500,424.00 49.26 %0.00390-410-730030 986,320.00

DEBT SERVICE - INTEREST 89,952.00 29,806.60 60,145.40 33.14 %0.00390-410-730040 89,952.00

RptCategory: 70 - DEBT SERVICE Total: 515,702.600.001,076,272.00 1,076,272.00 560,569.40 47.92%

RptCategory: 89 - TRANSFERS OUT

TRANSFER OUT TO GENERAL FUND 590,503.00 245,866.48 344,636.52 41.64 %212,866.48390-410-899100 590,503.00

RptCategory: 89 - TRANSFERS OUT Total: 245,866.48212,866.48590,503.00 590,503.00 344,636.52 41.64%

Department: 410 - URBAN RENEWAL Total: 761,569.08212,866.481,795,775.00 1,795,775.00 1,034,205.92 42.41%

Department: 990 - CONTINGENCY

RptCategory: 90 - OTHER

CONTINGENCY FUNDS 3,432,222.00 0.00 3,432,222.00 0.00 %0.00390-990-910000 3,432,222.00

RptCategory: 90 - OTHER Total: 0.000.003,432,222.00 3,432,222.00 3,432,222.00 0.00%

Department: 990 - CONTINGENCY Total: 0.000.003,432,222.00 3,432,222.00 3,432,222.00 0.00%

Expense Total: 761,569.08212,866.485,227,997.00 5,227,997.00 4,466,427.92 14.57%

Fund: 390 - URBAN RENEWAL FUND Surplus (Deficit): -721,772.64-201,381.500.00 0.00 -721,772.64 0.00%

3 - 12



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2023-2024 Period Ending: 10/31/2023

12/1/2023 2:16:14 PM Page 13 of 20

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
Current

Total Budget
Period

Activity
Original

Total Budget

Fund: 730 - SEWER FUND

Revenue

Department: 000 - UNDESIGNATED / NON DEPARTMENTAL

RptType: 3000 - BEG FUND BAL.

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 4,400,000.00 0.00 -4,400,000.00 0.00 %0.00730-000-309999 4,400,000.00

RptType: 3000 - BEG FUND BAL. Total: 0.000.004,400,000.00 4,400,000.00 -4,400,000.00 0.00%

RptType: 3140 - CHARGES FOR SERVICES

OAK LODGE SANITARY 1,900,000.00 348,399.91 -1,551,600.09 18.34 %87,063.05730-000-314050 1,900,000.00

TRI-CITY SERVICE DISTRICT 6,505,000.00 1,102,863.27 -5,402,136.73 16.95 %269,699.73730-000-314055 6,505,000.00

CONNECTION FEES 10,000.00 0.00 -10,000.00 0.00 %0.00730-000-314080 10,000.00

RptType: 3140 - CHARGES FOR SERVICES Total: 1,451,263.18356,762.788,415,000.00 8,415,000.00 -6,963,736.82 17.25%

RptType: 3141 - SDC

SEWER SDCS 20,000.00 0.00 -20,000.00 0.00 %0.00730-000-314110 20,000.00

RptType: 3141 - SDC Total: 0.000.0020,000.00 20,000.00 -20,000.00 0.00%

RptType: 3600 - MISCELLANEOUS

ALL OTHER SEWER RECEIPTS 482,033.00 700.00 -481,333.00 0.15 %500.00730-000-360000 482,033.00

RptType: 3600 - MISCELLANEOUS Total: 700.00500.00482,033.00 482,033.00 -481,333.00 0.15%

Department: 000 - UNDESIGNATED / NON DEPARTMENTAL Total: 1,451,963.18357,262.7813,317,033.00 13,317,033.00 -11,865,069.82 10.90%

Department: 910 - TRANSFER IN

RptType: 3990 - TRANSFERS IN

OPERATING TRANSFERS IN-ARPA RE… 840,000.00 0.00 -840,000.00 0.00 %0.00730-910-399105 840,000.00

TRANSFER IN FROM ROAD & STREET… 277,555.00 0.00 -277,555.00 0.00 %0.00730-910-399205 277,555.00

RptType: 3990 - TRANSFERS IN Total: 0.000.001,117,555.00 1,117,555.00 -1,117,555.00 0.00%

Department: 910 - TRANSFER IN Total: 0.000.001,117,555.00 1,117,555.00 -1,117,555.00 0.00%

Revenue Total: 1,451,963.18357,262.7814,434,588.00 14,434,588.00 -12,982,624.82 10.06%

Expense

Department: 703 - SEWER

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES

ACCOUNTING CLERK 34,269.00 5,228.00 29,041.00 15.26 %1,307.00730-703-431500 34,269.00

PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR 56,935.00 8,831.06 48,103.94 15.51 %2,319.26730-703-437049 56,935.00

PUBLIC WORKS SUPERVISOR 60,560.00 9,289.61 51,270.39 15.34 %2,308.68730-703-437050 60,560.00

PW UTILITIES MANAGER 60,981.00 9,560.88 51,420.12 15.68 %2,395.50730-703-437051 60,981.00

PW ADMIN ASSISTANT 62,632.00 10,085.97 52,546.03 16.10 %2,556.03730-703-437055 62,632.00

UTILITY WORKER, JOURNEY 71,964.00 11,681.57 60,282.43 16.23 %3,177.00730-703-437070 71,964.00

UTILITY WORKER II 37,216.00 14,514.76 22,701.24 39.00 %4,137.06730-703-437071 37,216.00

UTILITY WORKER III 146,012.00 8,398.38 137,613.62 5.75 %2,826.84730-703-437072 146,012.00

SEASONAL HELP 38,600.00 0.00 38,600.00 0.00 %0.00730-703-439011 38,600.00

OVERTIME 10,000.00 395.91 9,604.09 3.96 %38.92730-703-450100 10,000.00

CAREER RECOGNITION PAY 6,148.00 746.59 5,401.41 12.14 %152.59730-703-450500 6,148.00

ASSOCIATED PAYROLL COSTS 351,705.00 49,941.82 301,763.18 14.20 %12,540.45730-703-470000 351,705.00

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES Total: 128,674.5533,759.33937,022.00 937,022.00 808,347.45 13.73%

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES

CONTRACTUAL & PROFESSIONAL S… 64,000.00 8,545.88 55,454.12 13.35 %2,121.71730-703-500110 64,000.00

OAK LODGE SANITARY DISTRICT 1,193,800.00 244,315.52 949,484.48 20.47 %122,157.76730-703-500456 1,193,800.00

WATER ENVIRONMENT SERVICES (… 2,891,161.00 504,487.33 2,386,673.67 17.45 %125,335.87730-703-500458 2,891,161.00

BANK CHARGES 72,500.00 9,540.16 62,959.84 13.16 %64.23730-703-520120 72,500.00

OPERATIONS, MAINTENANCE & RE… 100,000.00 6,217.27 93,782.73 6.22 %1,540.78730-703-520130 100,000.00

FLEET FUEL, MAINTENANCE & REPA… 57,800.00 5,410.67 52,389.33 9.36 %2,121.29730-703-520320 57,800.00

OFFICE SUPPLIES & EQUIPMENT 5,000.00 501.02 4,498.98 10.02 %68.30730-703-520400 5,000.00

UTILITY BILLS & POSTAGE 17,500.00 3,300.83 14,199.17 18.86 %993.68730-703-520430 17,500.00

TRAVEL, CONFERENCES & TRAINING 5,000.00 0.00 5,000.00 0.00 %0.00730-703-540220 5,000.00

SMALL TOOLS, EQUIPMENT & SAFE… 15,000.00 1,205.22 13,794.78 8.03 %41.25730-703-540300 15,000.00

DUMPING, HAULING, GARBAGE 8,000.00 0.00 8,000.00 0.00 %0.00730-703-540400 8,000.00

UTILITIES 5,000.00 431.31 4,568.69 8.63 %109.81730-703-560100 5,000.00

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES Total: 783,955.21254,554.684,434,761.00 4,434,761.00 3,650,805.79 17.68%

3 - 13



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2023-2024 Period Ending: 10/31/2023

12/1/2023 2:16:14 PM Page 14 of 20

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
Current

Total Budget
Period

Activity
Original

Total Budget

RptCategory: 60 - CAPITAL OUTLAY

EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT RESER… 665,000.00 0.00 665,000.00 0.00 %0.00730-703-660100 665,000.00

SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS & PROJEC… 6,648,471.00 24,238.82 6,624,232.18 0.36 %21,437.17730-703-676050 6,648,471.00

RESERVE FROM SDC'S 469,159.00 0.00 469,159.00 0.00 %0.00730-703-678090 469,159.00

RptCategory: 60 - CAPITAL OUTLAY Total: 24,238.8221,437.177,782,630.00 7,782,630.00 7,758,391.18 0.31%

Department: 703 - SEWER Total: 936,868.58309,751.1813,154,413.00 13,154,413.00 12,217,544.42 7.12%

Department: 920 - TRANSFER OUT

RptCategory: 89 - TRANSFERS OUT

TRANSFER OUT TO GENERAL FUND 417,900.00 0.00 417,900.00 0.00 %0.00730-920-899100 417,900.00

TRANSFER OUT TO ROAD & STREET … 462,275.00 0.00 462,275.00 0.00 %0.00730-920-899205 462,275.00

RptCategory: 89 - TRANSFERS OUT Total: 0.000.00880,175.00 880,175.00 880,175.00 0.00%

Department: 920 - TRANSFER OUT Total: 0.000.00880,175.00 880,175.00 880,175.00 0.00%

Department: 990 - CONTINGENCY

RptCategory: 90 - OTHER

CONTINGENCY FUNDS 400,000.00 0.00 400,000.00 0.00 %0.00730-990-910000 400,000.00

RptCategory: 90 - OTHER Total: 0.000.00400,000.00 400,000.00 400,000.00 0.00%

Department: 990 - CONTINGENCY Total: 0.000.00400,000.00 400,000.00 400,000.00 0.00%

Expense Total: 936,868.58309,751.1814,434,588.00 14,434,588.00 13,497,719.42 6.49%

Fund: 730 - SEWER FUND Surplus (Deficit): 515,094.6047,511.600.00 0.00 515,094.60 0.00%

3 - 14



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2023-2024 Period Ending: 10/31/2023

12/1/2023 2:16:14 PM Page 15 of 20

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
Current

Total Budget
Period

Activity
Original

Total Budget

Fund: 740 - WATER FUND

Revenue

Department: 000 - UNDESIGNATED / NON DEPARTMENTAL

RptType: 3000 - BEG FUND BAL.

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 6,100,000.00 0.00 -6,100,000.00 0.00 %0.00740-000-309999 6,100,000.00

RptType: 3000 - BEG FUND BAL. Total: 0.000.006,100,000.00 6,100,000.00 -6,100,000.00 0.00%

RptType: 3140 - CHARGES FOR SERVICES

WATER SERVICE REVENUE 6,350,000.00 1,190,866.53 -5,159,133.47 18.75 %232,497.79740-000-314060 6,350,000.00

WATER SERVICE CONNECTIONS 10,000.00 890.00 -9,110.00 8.90 %0.00740-000-314080 10,000.00

RptType: 3140 - CHARGES FOR SERVICES Total: 1,191,756.53232,497.796,360,000.00 6,360,000.00 -5,168,243.47 18.74%

RptType: 3141 - SDC

WATER SDC'S 20,000.00 19,860.80 -139.20 99.30 %0.00740-000-314110 20,000.00

SDC Reimbursement Fee 0.00 1,204.20 1,204.20 0.00 %0.00740-000-314111 0.00

RptType: 3141 - SDC Total: 21,065.000.0020,000.00 20,000.00 1,065.00 105.33%

RptType: 3600 - MISCELLANEOUS

ALL OTHER WATER RECEIPTS 0.00 -482.50 -482.50 0.00 %0.00740-000-360000 0.00

RptType: 3600 - MISCELLANEOUS Total: -482.500.000.00 0.00 -482.50 0.00%

Department: 000 - UNDESIGNATED / NON DEPARTMENTAL Total: 1,212,339.03232,497.7912,480,000.00 12,480,000.00 -11,267,660.97 9.71%

Department: 910 - TRANSFER IN

RptType: 3990 - TRANSFERS IN

TRANSFER IN FROM ROAD & STREET… 277,555.00 0.00 -277,555.00 0.00 %0.00740-910-399205 277,555.00

RptType: 3990 - TRANSFERS IN Total: 0.000.00277,555.00 277,555.00 -277,555.00 0.00%

Department: 910 - TRANSFER IN Total: 0.000.00277,555.00 277,555.00 -277,555.00 0.00%

Revenue Total: 1,212,339.03232,497.7912,757,555.00 12,757,555.00 -11,545,215.97 9.50%

Expense

Department: 704 - WATER

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES

ACCOUNTING CLERK 41,123.00 6,273.60 34,849.40 15.26 %1,568.40740-704-431500 41,123.00

PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR 56,935.00 8,831.06 48,103.94 15.51 %2,319.26740-704-437049 56,935.00

PUBLIC WORKS SUPERVISOR 62,396.00 9,612.68 52,783.32 15.41 %2,378.64740-704-437050 62,396.00

PW UTILITIES MANAGER 60,981.00 9,485.88 51,495.12 15.56 %2,376.75740-704-437051 60,981.00

PW ADMIN ASSISTANT 62,632.00 10,085.97 52,546.03 16.10 %2,556.03740-704-437055 62,632.00

UTILITY WORKER, JOURNEY 154,764.00 25,445.60 129,318.40 16.44 %6,383.60740-704-437070 154,764.00

UTILITY WORKER II 155,649.00 25,004.12 130,644.88 16.06 %6,251.03740-704-437071 155,649.00

SEASONAL HELP 38,600.00 0.00 38,600.00 0.00 %0.00740-704-439011 38,600.00

OVERTIME 10,000.00 495.02 9,504.98 4.95 %135.15740-704-450100 10,000.00

CAREER RECOGNITION PAY 6,746.00 987.19 5,758.81 14.63 %220.19740-704-450500 6,746.00

ASSOCIATED PAYROLL COSTS 370,175.00 56,388.02 313,786.98 15.23 %14,148.46740-704-470000 370,175.00

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES Total: 152,609.1438,337.511,020,001.00 1,020,001.00 867,391.86 14.96%

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES

CONTRACTUAL & PROFESSIONAL S… 275,000.00 18,797.03 256,202.97 6.84 %3,641.25740-704-500110 275,000.00

METER READING CONTRACT 64,000.00 9,524.76 54,475.24 14.88 %4,763.76740-704-500240 64,000.00

WHOLESALE WATER 1,272,960.00 206,256.47 1,066,703.53 16.20 %63,591.83740-704-500425 1,272,960.00

BANK CHARGES 72,000.00 8,700.24 63,299.76 12.08 %-180.75740-704-520120 72,000.00

OPERATIONS, MAINTENANCE & RE… 250,000.00 30,508.55 219,491.45 12.20 %8,344.69740-704-520130 250,000.00

LABORATORY WATER TESTS 40,000.00 4,280.00 35,720.00 10.70 %80.00740-704-520162 40,000.00

FIRE HYDRANT MAINTENANCE & RE… 25,000.00 0.00 25,000.00 0.00 %0.00740-704-520165 25,000.00

FLEET FUEL, MAINTENANCE & REPA… 45,000.00 5,599.06 39,400.94 12.44 %1,144.14740-704-520320 45,000.00

OFFICE SUPPLIES & EQUIPMENT 6,000.00 534.62 5,465.38 8.91 %68.30740-704-520400 6,000.00

UTILITY BILLS & POSTAGE 17,500.00 3,300.83 14,199.17 18.86 %993.68740-704-520430 17,500.00

TRAVEL, CONFERENCES & TRAINING 5,000.00 0.00 5,000.00 0.00 %0.00740-704-540220 5,000.00

SMALL TOOLS, EQUIPMENT & SAFE… 15,000.00 786.02 14,213.98 5.24 %115.36740-704-540300 15,000.00

DUMPING, HAULING, GARBAGE 15,000.00 0.00 15,000.00 0.00 %0.00740-704-540400 15,000.00

UTILITIES 50,000.00 7,694.60 42,305.40 15.39 %1,670.23740-704-560100 50,000.00

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES Total: 295,982.1884,232.492,152,460.00 2,152,460.00 1,856,477.82 13.75%

3 - 15



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2023-2024 Period Ending: 10/31/2023

12/1/2023 2:16:14 PM Page 16 of 20

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
Current

Total Budget
Period

Activity
Original

Total Budget

RptCategory: 60 - CAPITAL OUTLAY

EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT RESER… 279,000.00 0.00 279,000.00 0.00 %0.00740-704-660100 279,000.00

SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS & PROJEC… 7,018,269.00 12,371.87 7,005,897.13 0.18 %10,464.00740-704-676050 7,018,269.00

RESERVE FROM SDC'S 657,771.00 0.00 657,771.00 0.00 %0.00740-704-678090 657,771.00

RptCategory: 60 - CAPITAL OUTLAY Total: 12,371.8710,464.007,955,040.00 7,955,040.00 7,942,668.13 0.16%

RptCategory: 70 - DEBT SERVICE

2005 BONDED DEBT/PRINCIPAL 347,000.00 0.00 347,000.00 0.00 %0.00740-704-720040 347,000.00

2005 BONDED DEBT/INTEREST 10,376.00 0.00 10,376.00 0.00 %0.00740-704-730040 10,376.00

RptCategory: 70 - DEBT SERVICE Total: 0.000.00357,376.00 357,376.00 357,376.00 0.00%

Department: 704 - WATER Total: 460,963.19133,034.0011,484,877.00 11,484,877.00 11,023,913.81 4.01%

Department: 920 - TRANSFER OUT

RptCategory: 89 - TRANSFERS OUT

TRANSFER OUT TO GENERAL FUND 523,678.00 0.00 523,678.00 0.00 %0.00740-920-899100 523,678.00

TRANSFER OUT TO ROAD & STREET … 349,000.00 0.00 349,000.00 0.00 %0.00740-920-899205 349,000.00

RptCategory: 89 - TRANSFERS OUT Total: 0.000.00872,678.00 872,678.00 872,678.00 0.00%

Department: 920 - TRANSFER OUT Total: 0.000.00872,678.00 872,678.00 872,678.00 0.00%

Department: 990 - CONTINGENCY

RptCategory: 90 - OTHER

CONTINGENCY FUNDS 400,000.00 0.00 400,000.00 0.00 %0.00740-990-910000 400,000.00

RptCategory: 90 - OTHER Total: 0.000.00400,000.00 400,000.00 400,000.00 0.00%

Department: 990 - CONTINGENCY Total: 0.000.00400,000.00 400,000.00 400,000.00 0.00%

Expense Total: 460,963.19133,034.0012,757,555.00 12,757,555.00 12,296,591.81 3.61%

Fund: 740 - WATER FUND Surplus (Deficit): 751,375.8499,463.790.00 0.00 751,375.84 0.00%

3 - 16



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2023-2024 Period Ending: 10/31/2023

12/1/2023 2:16:14 PM Page 17 of 20

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
Current

Total Budget
Period

Activity
Original

Total Budget

Fund: 750 - STORM WATER FUND

Revenue

Department: 000 - UNDESIGNATED / NON DEPARTMENTAL

RptType: 3000 - BEG FUND BAL.

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 1,875,000.00 0.00 -1,875,000.00 0.00 %0.00750-000-309999 1,875,000.00

RptType: 3000 - BEG FUND BAL. Total: 0.000.001,875,000.00 1,875,000.00 -1,875,000.00 0.00%

RptType: 3140 - CHARGES FOR SERVICES

STORM REVENUE 2,010,500.00 327,898.32 -1,682,601.68 16.31 %81,964.64750-000-314060 2,010,500.00

RptType: 3140 - CHARGES FOR SERVICES Total: 327,898.3281,964.642,010,500.00 2,010,500.00 -1,682,601.68 16.31%

RptType: 3141 - SDC

STORMWATER SDC'S 11,000.00 0.00 -11,000.00 0.00 %0.00750-000-314110 11,000.00

RptType: 3141 - SDC Total: 0.000.0011,000.00 11,000.00 -11,000.00 0.00%

RptType: 3600 - MISCELLANEOUS

ALL OTHER STORM FUND RESOURC… 187,833.00 0.00 -187,833.00 0.00 %0.00750-000-360000 187,833.00

RptType: 3600 - MISCELLANEOUS Total: 0.000.00187,833.00 187,833.00 -187,833.00 0.00%

Department: 000 - UNDESIGNATED / NON DEPARTMENTAL Total: 327,898.3281,964.644,084,333.00 4,084,333.00 -3,756,434.68 8.03%

Department: 910 - TRANSFER IN

RptType: 3990 - TRANSFERS IN

TRANSFER IN FROM ARPA FUND 360,000.00 0.00 -360,000.00 0.00 %0.00750-910-399105 360,000.00

TRANSFER IN FROM ROAD & STREET… 277,555.00 0.00 -277,555.00 0.00 %0.00750-910-399205 277,555.00

RptType: 3990 - TRANSFERS IN Total: 0.000.00637,555.00 637,555.00 -637,555.00 0.00%

Department: 910 - TRANSFER IN Total: 0.000.00637,555.00 637,555.00 -637,555.00 0.00%

Revenue Total: 327,898.3281,964.644,721,888.00 4,721,888.00 -4,393,989.68 6.94%

Expense

Department: 705 - PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES

ACCOUNTING CLERK 34,269.00 5,228.00 29,041.00 15.26 %1,307.00750-705-431500 34,269.00

PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR 56,935.00 8,831.08 48,103.92 15.51 %2,319.28750-705-437049 56,935.00

PUBLIC WORKS SUPERVISOR 60,560.00 9,248.04 51,311.96 15.27 %2,308.68750-705-437050 60,560.00

PW UTILITIES MANAGER 60,981.00 9,560.80 51,420.20 15.68 %2,395.48750-705-437051 60,981.00

PW ADMIN ASSISTANT 62,632.00 10,085.89 52,546.11 16.10 %2,556.01750-705-437055 62,632.00

UTILITY WORKER, JOURNEY 71,964.00 11,681.56 60,282.44 16.23 %3,177.00750-705-437070 71,964.00

UTILITY WORKER II 112,157.00 15,032.54 97,124.46 13.40 %6,674.83750-705-437071 112,157.00

UTILITY WORKER III 146,012.00 8,398.36 137,613.64 5.75 %2,826.83750-705-437072 146,012.00

OVERTIME 5,000.00 395.91 4,604.09 7.92 %38.93750-705-450100 5,000.00

CAREER RECOGNITION PAY 6,148.00 746.44 5,401.56 12.14 %152.56750-705-450500 6,148.00

ASSOCIATED PAYROLL COSTS 376,348.00 49,792.65 326,555.35 13.23 %13,201.61750-705-470000 376,348.00

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES Total: 129,001.2736,958.21993,006.00 993,006.00 864,004.73 12.99%

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES

CONTRACTUAL & PROFESSIONAL S… 44,000.00 7,144.14 36,855.86 16.24 %2,121.66750-705-500110 44,000.00

BANK CHARGES 80,000.00 9,540.81 70,459.19 11.93 %64.22750-705-520120 80,000.00

OPERATIONS, MAINTENANCE & RE… 60,000.00 6,388.01 53,611.99 10.65 %1,898.29750-705-520130 60,000.00

FLEET FUEL, MAINTENANCE & REPA… 50,000.00 5,425.24 44,574.76 10.85 %1,900.19750-705-520320 50,000.00

OFFICE SUPPLIES & EQUIPMENT 5,000.00 500.93 4,499.07 10.02 %68.26750-705-520400 5,000.00

UTILITY BILLS & POSTAGE 17,500.00 3,301.85 14,198.15 18.87 %993.98750-705-520430 17,500.00

TRAVEL, CONFERENCES & TRAINING 2,000.00 0.00 2,000.00 0.00 %0.00750-705-540220 2,000.00

SMALL TOOLS, EQUIPMENT & SAFE… 6,000.00 1,205.45 4,794.55 20.09 %41.26750-705-540300 6,000.00

DUMPING, HAULING, GARBAGE 7,500.00 0.00 7,500.00 0.00 %0.00750-705-540400 7,500.00

UTILITIES 2,000.00 206.44 1,793.56 10.32 %52.67750-705-560100 2,000.00

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES Total: 33,712.877,140.53274,000.00 274,000.00 240,287.13 12.30%

RptCategory: 60 - CAPITAL OUTLAY

EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT RESER… 215,000.00 0.00 215,000.00 0.00 %0.00750-705-660100 215,000.00

3 - 17



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2023-2024 Period Ending: 10/31/2023

12/1/2023 2:16:14 PM Page 18 of 20

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
Current

Total Budget
Period

Activity
Original

Total Budget

SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS & PROJEC… 2,302,281.00 2,054.90 2,300,226.10 0.09 %833.75750-705-676050 2,302,281.00

RptCategory: 60 - CAPITAL OUTLAY Total: 2,054.90833.752,517,281.00 2,517,281.00 2,515,226.10 0.08%

Department: 705 - PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR Total: 164,769.0444,932.493,784,287.00 3,784,287.00 3,619,517.96 4.35%

Department: 920 - TRANSFER OUT

RptCategory: 89 - TRANSFERS OUT

TRANSFER OUT TO GENERAL FUND 427,101.00 0.00 427,101.00 0.00 %0.00750-920-899100 427,101.00

TRANSFER OUT TO ROAD & STREET … 110,500.00 0.00 110,500.00 0.00 %0.00750-920-899205 110,500.00

RptCategory: 89 - TRANSFERS OUT Total: 0.000.00537,601.00 537,601.00 537,601.00 0.00%

Department: 920 - TRANSFER OUT Total: 0.000.00537,601.00 537,601.00 537,601.00 0.00%

Department: 990 - CONTINGENCY

RptCategory: 90 - OTHER

CONTINGENCY FUNDS 400,000.00 0.00 400,000.00 0.00 %0.00750-990-910000 400,000.00

RptCategory: 90 - OTHER Total: 0.000.00400,000.00 400,000.00 400,000.00 0.00%

Department: 990 - CONTINGENCY Total: 0.000.00400,000.00 400,000.00 400,000.00 0.00%

Expense Total: 164,769.0444,932.494,721,888.00 4,721,888.00 4,557,118.96 3.49%

Fund: 750 - STORM WATER FUND Surplus (Deficit): 163,129.2837,032.150.00 0.00 163,129.28 0.00%

3 - 18



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2023-2024 Period Ending: 10/31/2023

12/1/2023 2:16:14 PM Page 19 of 20

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
Current

Total Budget
Period

Activity
Original

Total Budget

Fund: 801 - MUNICIPAL COURT TRUST FUND

Revenue

Department: 000 - UNDESIGNATED / NON DEPARTMENTAL

RptType: 3000 - BEG FUND BAL.

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 40,000.00 0.00 -40,000.00 0.00 %0.00801-000-309999 40,000.00

RptType: 3000 - BEG FUND BAL. Total: 0.000.0040,000.00 40,000.00 -40,000.00 0.00%

RptType: 3260 - FINES AND FORFEITURES

CITY OF GLADSTONE FINES/FEES 710,000.00 89,575.09 -620,424.91 12.62 %23,211.77801-000-326020 710,000.00

CLACKAMAS COUNTY FINES/FEES 34,000.00 3,975.41 -30,024.59 11.69 %921.49801-000-326030 34,000.00

STATE OF OREGON FINES/FEES 122,000.00 16,368.12 -105,631.88 13.42 %3,843.88801-000-326040 122,000.00

RESTITUTION 3,000.00 -100.00 -3,100.00 3.33 %0.00801-000-326050 3,000.00

BOND 1,000.00 -1,511.35 -2,511.35 151.14 %-1,165.00801-000-326060 1,000.00

RptType: 3260 - FINES AND FORFEITURES Total: 108,307.2726,812.14870,000.00 870,000.00 -761,692.73 12.45%

RptType: 3600 - MISCELLANEOUS

ALL OTHER COURT FEES 0.00 177.50 177.50 0.00 %177.50801-000-360000 0.00

RptType: 3600 - MISCELLANEOUS Total: 177.50177.500.00 0.00 177.50 0.00%

Department: 000 - UNDESIGNATED / NON DEPARTMENTAL Total: 108,484.7726,989.64910,000.00 910,000.00 -801,515.23 11.92%

Revenue Total: 108,484.7726,989.64910,000.00 910,000.00 -801,515.23 11.92%

Expense

Department: 220 - COURT

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES

CITY OF GLADSTONE FINES & FEES 710,000.00 95,595.48 614,404.52 13.46 %25,739.40801-220-500500 710,000.00

CLACKAMAS COUNTY FINES & FEES 34,000.00 4,493.43 29,506.57 13.22 %922.09801-220-500510 34,000.00

STATE OF OREGON FINES & FEES 122,000.00 18,175.10 103,824.90 14.90 %4,095.01801-220-500520 122,000.00

RESTITUTION 3,000.00 0.00 3,000.00 0.00 %0.00801-220-500530 3,000.00

BOND - COURT 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 0.00 %0.00801-220-500540 1,000.00

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES Total: 118,264.0130,756.50870,000.00 870,000.00 751,735.99 13.59%

Department: 220 - COURT Total: 118,264.0130,756.50870,000.00 870,000.00 751,735.99 13.59%

Department: 990 - CONTINGENCY

RptCategory: 90 - OTHER

CONTINGENCY FUNDS 40,000.00 0.00 40,000.00 0.00 %0.00801-990-910000 40,000.00

RptCategory: 90 - OTHER Total: 0.000.0040,000.00 40,000.00 40,000.00 0.00%

Department: 990 - CONTINGENCY Total: 0.000.0040,000.00 40,000.00 40,000.00 0.00%

Expense Total: 118,264.0130,756.50910,000.00 910,000.00 791,735.99 13.00%

Fund: 801 - MUNICIPAL COURT TRUST FUND Surplus (Deficit): -9,779.24-3,766.860.00 0.00 -9,779.24 0.00%

Report Surplus (Deficit): -707,617.23 -3,094,060.070.00 0.00 -3,094,060.07 0.00%

3 - 19



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2023-2024 Period Ending: 10/31/2023

12/1/2023 2:16:14 PM Page 20 of 20

Fund Summary

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)Fund
Period

Activity
Current

Total Budget
Original

Total Budget

100 - GENERAL FUND -3,412,162.80-669,426.980.00 0.00 -3,412,162.80

105 - AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN RESERVE FUND -36,873.77-17,284.970.00 0.00 -36,873.77

205 - ROAD AND STREET FUND -175,698.6043,239.710.00 0.00 -175,698.60

228 - POLICE LEVY FUND -170,805.85-44,410.210.00 0.00 -170,805.85

229 - FIRE LEVY FUND 3,433.111,406.040.00 0.00 3,433.11

390 - URBAN RENEWAL FUND -721,772.64-201,381.500.00 0.00 -721,772.64

730 - SEWER FUND 515,094.6047,511.600.00 0.00 515,094.60

740 - WATER FUND 751,375.8499,463.790.00 0.00 751,375.84

750 - STORM WATER FUND 163,129.2837,032.150.00 0.00 163,129.28

801 - MUNICIPAL COURT TRUST FUND -9,779.24-3,766.860.00 0.00 -9,779.24

Report Surplus (Deficit): -707,617.23 -3,094,060.070.00 0.00 -3,094,060.07

3 - 20



4



Check Date Check No. Vendor Amount Line Item Description

10/02/2023 463 CIS Trust 63,922.65            Monthly Health Insurance

10/02/2023 464 HRA VEBA Plan 3,427.20              Employer VEBA contribution

10/02/2023 465 MissionSquare Retirement 13,392.86            Voluntary Payroll Deferred Comp

10/02/2023 93875 Axa Equi-Vest 8,894.12              Voluntary Payroll Deferred Comp

10/02/2023 93876 Clackamas Community Federal Credit Union 1,013.69              GPA Union Dues

10/02/2023 93877 Equitable 1,463.22              Non-PERS Retirment Pmt

10/02/2023 93878 Equitable Financial Life Insurance Co. 86.00                   Non-PERS Retirment Pmt

10/02/2023 93879 Oregon AFSCME Council #75 1,266.24              AFSCME Union Dues

10/02/2023 93880 Oregon Department of Justice/Child Support 286.00                 Child Support

10/03/2023 93881 - 93885 UB Refund Checks 4,820.43              UB Refund Checks - PW

10/05/2023 466 Amazon Capital Services 335.15                 Office Supplies - Admin/CT

10/05/2023 467 Amy Lindgren Law, LLC 3,500.00              Municipal Judge - CT

10/05/2023 468 Clackamas Fire District #1 555,817.50          Quarterly Fire Services IGA - Admin

10/05/2023 469 Jill Tate 285.00                 Transcription - Admin

10/05/2023 470 Lundquist, Kyndre 3,500.00              Prosecutor Services - CT

10/05/2023 471 Smith-Wagar Brucker Consulting Inc. 9,602.50              Financial Services - Admin

10/05/2023 93886 Aramark 101.62                 Mat Rental - PW

10/05/2023 93887 Cheryl Brandeberry 200.00                 Comm Ctr Deposit Refund - CC

10/05/2023 93888 Chip Osborne Photography 450.00                 High Resolution Images - Admin

10/05/2023 93889 Curtis, L. N. Co. 1,632.33              Uniforms - PD

10/05/2023 93890 Elmer's Flag & Banner LLC 805.70                 Flag Replacement - PW

10/05/2023 93891 Ferguson Enterprises 4,093.20              Stock Water System Parts - PW

10/05/2023 93892 Integrity Staffing, Inc. 1,130.40              Temporary Staffing - PW

10/05/2023 93893 League of Oregon Cities 20.00                   Job Posting - Admin

10/05/2023 93894 Les Schwab Tires 2,238.57              Vehicle Maintenance - PD

10/05/2023 93895 Paramount Pest Control Inc 165.00                 Pest Control - PW

10/05/2023 93896 Portland General Electric 7,456.28              Electricity Usage - All Depts.

10/05/2023 93897 Sentry Alarm Systems 122.85                 Quarterly Monitoring - PW

10/05/2023 93898 Stop Stick, Ltd 261.00                 Stop Sticks - PD

10/05/2023 93899 Titan Concrete Construction 5,130.00              Water Leak Repairs - PW

10/05/2023 93900 T-Mobile 403.00                 Cell Phone Usage - PW

10/05/2023 93901 Trio Community Meals 326.30                 Nutrition Program Supplies - CC

10/05/2023 93902 United States Postal Service 200.00                 Newsletter Postage - Admin

10/05/2023 93903 Verizon Wireless 2,457.87              Cell Phones/Data Lines - IT

10/05/2023 93904 Vortex Industries, LLC 5,763.64              CC Door Project - PW

10/06/2023 93905 Portland Custom Wraps 2,665.00              Final Pmt - Van Custom Wrap - CC

10/10/2023 93906 American Legacy Homes 12,100.00            Final Pmt - Kitchen Remodel - CC

10/10/2023 93907 Clackamas County Clerk 118.00                 Recording Fee - Admin

10/10/2023 93908 Oak Lodge Water Services 1,345.63              Water Purchases - PW

10/10/2023 93909 Owen Equipment Company 188.54                 Vactor Truck Parts - PW

10/10/2023 93910 Portland General Electric 6,754.43              Street Light Electricity - PW

10/10/2023 93911 Water Environment Services 125,306.89          Monthly Sewer Billing - PW

10/19/2023 472 3J Consulting, Inc. 16,177.00            Planning Services - Admin

10/19/2023 473 8x8, Inc. 1,778.83              Phone Service - IT

10/19/2023 474 Amazon Capital Services 174.72                 Office Supplies - Admin/CT

10/19/2023 475 Beery Elsner & Hammond LLP 6,026.00              Legal Fees - Admin

10/19/2023 476 BridgePay Network Solutions, LLC 192.70                 UB Online Pmt Fees - PW

10/19/2023 477 Oregon Patrol Service 917.80                 Meeting Security - Admin/CT

10/19/2023 478 P & C Construction 504,339.00          PW Facility Construction - Admin

10/19/2023 479 Satcom Global Ltd. 42.75                   Satellite Phone Access - PD

10/19/2023 480 Shiels Obletz Johnsen 17,257.06            PW Facility Oversight - Admin

10/19/2023 93912 ACS Testing, Inc. 409.10                 PW Facility Testing - Admin

10/19/2023 93913 Backflow Management Inc 4,200.00              Water Testing - PW

10/19/2023 93914 Bravo Land Care & Maintenance 945.00                 Landscape Maintenance - PW

10/19/2023 93915 Cascade Form Systems 2,925.92              Parking Pass/Check Printing - PW/CT

10/19/2023 93916 Cintas First Aid Lockbox 427.17                 First Aid/Water Cooler - Admin/PD/PW/CC

10/19/2023 93917 City Wide Tree Service Inc. 3,760.00              Tree Maintenance - PW

10/19/2023 93918 Clackamas County Finance Department 17,330.15            Dispatch/Signal Maint/Work Crew - PD/PW

CHECK REGISTER FOR OCTOBER 2023

4 - 1



Check Date Check No. Vendor Amount Line Item Description

CHECK REGISTER FOR OCTOBER 2023

10/19/2023 93919 Comcast 52.55                   Digital Receivers - PD

10/19/2023 93920 Curtis, L. N. Co. 1,343.53              Uniforms - PD

10/19/2023 93921 D & H Flagging, Inc. 681.00                 Flagging Service - PW

10/19/2023 93922 Edge Analytical, Inc. 40.00                   Water Testing - PW

10/19/2023 93923 Elena's Language Services 114.00                 Interpreting Service - CT

10/19/2023 93924 Gold Wrench 2,461.35              Vehicle Maintenance - PD

10/19/2023 93925 Guardian Alliance Technologies, Inc. 95.00                   Background Investigation Software - PD

10/19/2023 93926 Integrity Staffing, Inc. 1,957.01              Temporary Staffing - PW

10/19/2023 93927 Jim Smith Excavating Inc 10,424.00            Hereford PRV Project - PW

10/19/2023 93928 League of Oregon Cities 290.00                 Training/Job Ads - Admin

10/19/2023 93929 Northwest Success, Inc. 2,253.31              Janitorial Service - PW

10/19/2023 93930 Office Depot 237.36                 Office Supplies - Admin

10/19/2023 93931 One Call Concepts Inc 96.60                   Utility Locates - PW

10/19/2023 93932 Oregon Association of Water Utilities 1,315.00              Annual Membership - PW

10/19/2023 93933 Oregon DMV 10.00                   Driving Records - Admin/PD

10/19/2023 93934 Pacific Mobile Structures, Inc. 532.00                 Mobile Office Rental - PW

10/19/2023 93935 Portland Custom Wraps 200.00                 Custom Vehicle Wrap Design fee - CC

10/19/2023 93936 Secure Pacific Corporation 220.50                 Monitoring - PW

10/19/2023 93937 Sisul Engineering 2,821.25              Professional Fees - PW

10/19/2023 93938 Stein Oil Co. Inc. 4,639.62              Gasoline - PD/PW/CC

10/19/2023 93939 Stericycle 176.65                 Shredding Service - PD

10/19/2023 93940 TransUnion Risk and Alternative 75.00                   Data Research - PD

10/19/2023 93941 Trio Community Meals 784.18                 Beverages/Paper Products - CC

10/19/2023 93942 Two Chicks and a Rooster 1,710.00              Clack. Cities Dinner Catering - Admin

10/19/2023 93943 United States Postal Service 1,279.09              Newsletter Postage - Admin

10/19/2023 93944 Walter E. Nelson Co. 2,366.50              Janitorial Supplies - PW

10/24/2023 481 Metereaders 4,763.76              Metereading Service (2 mos) - PW

10/24/2023 482 Quadient Finance, USA 539.00                 Postage - All Depts

10/24/2023 483 School's In, LLC 11,444.97            Computer Tables - CC

10/24/2023 484 Sonsray Machinery LLC 10,232.96            Equipment Maintenance - PW

10/24/2023 93945 Consolidated Supply Co. 5,276.34              Water Meters - PW

10/24/2023 93946 The Campbell Course 100.00                 Rental Fee/Clack Co. Cities Dinner - Admin

10/27/2023 485 Amy Lindgren Law, LLC 3,500.00              Municipal Judge - CT

10/27/2023 486 MSPEN Consulting, LLC 840.00                 Grant Writing Services - Admin

10/27/2023 487 US Bank  Corporate Payments 31,385.97            P-Card Purchases - All Depts

10/27/2023 93947 Blackline, Inc. 18,198.00            Slurry Seal/Striping - PW

10/27/2023 93948 Buel's Impressions Printing 193.00                 Form/Business Card Printing - PD

10/27/2023 93949 Canon Financial Services, Inc. 1,481.96              Copier Leases/Usage - IT

10/27/2023 93950 Donna Mathews 1,627.00              Embroidery - PD

10/27/2023 93951 Gladstone Municipal Court 1,523.53              Bank Fee Reimbursement - Admin

10/27/2023 93952 Integrity Staffing, Inc. 1,102.14              Temporary Staffing - PW

10/27/2023 93953 Lilian Belsky 130.00                 Interpreting Service - CT

10/27/2023 93954 Luxury Restroom Trailers 2,810.00              Portable Restrooms/PW Facility Project

10/27/2023 93955 Paramount Pest Control Inc 220.00                 Pest Control - PW

10/27/2023 93956 PBS Engineering & Environmental Inc. 7,627.51              Testing -PW Facility Project

10/27/2023 93957 Porter W Yett Co 699.30                 Cold Mix - PW

10/27/2023 93958 Providence Health Services Oregon 100.00                 DOT Physical - Admin

10/27/2023 93959 Society of St. Vincent de Paul 5,000.00              ARPA Covid Assistance - Admin

10/27/2023 93960 Stein Oil Co. Inc. 5,944.19              Gasoline - PD/PW/CC

10/27/2023 93961 Tyler Technologies, Inc. 6,702.50              UB Online Pmt Fees - PW

10/30/2023 488 CIS Trust 66,331.54            Monthly Health Insurance

10/30/2023 489 HRA VEBA Plan 3,427.20              Employer VEBA contribution

10/30/2023 490 MissionSquare Retirement 6,983.32              Voluntary Payroll Deferred Comp

10/30/2023 93962 Axa Equi-Vest 8,894.12              Voluntary Payroll Deferred Comp

10/30/2023 93963 Clackamas Community Federal Credit Union 1,048.86              GPA Union Dues

10/30/2023 93964 Equitable 1,463.22              Non-PERS Retirment Pmt

10/30/2023 93965 Equitable Financial Life Insurance Co. 86.00                   Non-PERS Retirment Pmt

10/30/2023 93966 Oregon AFSCME Council #75 1,263.81              AFSCME Union Dues

4 - 2



Check Date Check No. Vendor Amount Line Item Description

CHECK REGISTER FOR OCTOBER 2023

10/30/2023 93967 Oregon Department of Justice/Child Support 286.00                 Child Support

Total October 2023 Payments 1,677,353.71$    

4 - 3





5



Attorneys: July, 2023 Aug, 2023 Sept, 2023 Oct, 2023 Nov, 2023 Dec, 2023 Totals

City Charter -$                -$              -$              -$                -$                 

Elections 132.50            114.00          -                 -                  246.50             

Finance -                   -                 256.50          -                  256.50             

General 199.50            1,311.00       759.50          285.00           2,555.00         

          Meeting Attendance -                   -                 -                 -                  -                   

Governance/City Council 655.50            370.50          456.00          969.00           2,451.00         

          Meeting Attendance 1,852.50         684.00          912.00          427.50           3,876.00         

Intergovernmental 57.00              114.00          484.50          -                  655.50             

          Meeting Attendance -                   -                 -                 -                  -                   

Land Use/ Community Development 1,054.50         855.00          142.50          572.80           2,624.80         

          Meeting Attendance -                   114.00          -                 -                  114.00             

Parks & Recreation 28.50              -                 -                 28.50               

Personnel/Labor -                   826.50          1,425.00       17,105.50      19,357.00       

          GPA -                   -                 -                 -                  -                   

         City Administration -                   -                 -                 -                  -                   

          Personnel Handbook -                   -                 -                 -                  -                   

          Meeting Attendance -                   -                 -                 -                  -                   

Public Records & Meetings 399.00            -                 -                 513.00           912.00             

Public Safety 199.50            -                 199.50          484.50           883.50             

Public Works 464.50            -                 142.50          -                  607.00             

Public Works Facility Project 737.00            199.50          -                 -                  936.50             

Real Property Transactions 57.00              -                 -                 -                  57.00               

Risk Management/Litigation 28.50              -                 142.50          57.00              228.00             

Rights of Way-Telecommunications 4,210.50         1,437.50       562.50          -                  6,210.50         

Urban Renewal -                   -                 -                 -                  -                   

Total 10,076.00$    6,026.00$    5,483.00$    20,414.30$   -$               -$              41,999.30$     

ATTORNEY CHARGES

Attorneys: Jan, 2024 Feb, 2024 Mar, 2024 Apr, 2024 May, 2024 June, 2024

Totals for

 Year

City Charter -$                 

Elections 246.50             

Finance 256.50             

General 2,555.00         

          Meeting Attendance -                   

Governance/City Council 2,451.00         

          Meeting Attendance 3,876.00         

Intergovernmental 655.50             

         Meeting Attendance -                   

Land Use/ Community Development 2,624.80         

          Meeting Attendance 114.00             

Parks & Recreation 28.50               

Personnel/Labor 19,357.00       

          GPA -                   

         City Administration -                   

          Personnel Handbook -                   

          Meeting Attendance -                   

Public Records & Meetings 912.00             

Public Safety 883.50             

Public Works 607.00             

Public Works Facility Project 936.50             

Real Property Transactions 57.00               

Risk Management/Litigation 228.00             

Rights of Way-Telecommunications 6,210.50         

Urban Renewal -                   

Total -$                -$              -$              -$                -$               -$              41,999.30$     

5 - 1





6



 
                 

 Public Works 
 

Staff Report for   

November 2023 
 

       Report Date : December 4, 2023 
To : Jacque M. Betz, City Administrator 

Copy : Mayor and City Council 
From : Darren Caniparoli, Public Works Director 

 

 

PARKS: 
 

 Trash pick-up in all parks two days a week.   

 Detail work within our parks has been a priority.  Edging and trimming of flowerbeds, trimming and cutting 

back plants, which need attention, this will continue throughout the winter months.  

 Leaf clean-up continues in all parks and greenways. 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

Before & After, Leaf Clean-up 

 

6 - 1



 
                 

   

 

STREETS:  

• Winter street sign maintenance, which includes: trimming branches, 
cleaning graffiti from signs, tightening of hardware and sign 
replacement when needed.   

• Crews are out clearing catch basins when needed in a mutual effort 
to prevent urban flooding.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

FACILITIES: 

 

• Twice a month facility inspections 

• Ongoing repairs and maintenance at all facilities, 
including cleaning gutters and winterization of 
buildings in preparation for colder temperatures. 

• Installed the washer and drier at Public Works. 

• Began holiday decoration installation on Civic Center 
and Public Works, more will be underway the first 
week of December.  

 

 

 
FLEET: 

 
• Yearly DEQ Compliance scans completed on 12 Public Works vehicles to maintain our “exempt” plate status.  

• Began winter oil changes on multiple pieces of small equipment 

• Repaired two lawn mowers. 

 

6 - 2



 
                 

 

WATER: 
 

 Utility billing service orders. 

 Utility locates and GIS map updates. 

 Routine coliform sampling, system chlorine residual monitoring  

 Routine pumpstation/reservoir inspections  

 Utility billing door hangers and shut-offs for nonpayment. 

 Call in the city’s Master Meter read to the treatment plant every Monday. 

 Change the recording charts at the Webster Reservoir Pump Station every Monday. 

 Investigate meter readings for discrepancies, high usage, leaks, broken box, broken lid, and meters not 

registering. 

Conducted an investigation at 7580 Ridge Dr., utilizing a “smart water 

meter” that can record usage every hour, every day, for up to 100 days.  

The findings from the meter led crews to address the possibility of an 

irrigation line on a timer. This matter is technically a private matter, though 

as the water provider it is our responsibility to address areas of water 

loss, especially when it is a large amount of water such as this.  We 

continue to monitor the situation with the property owner, who is working 

with a leak detection company.  This was a read from 1 day of usage, 

343.9 units of water, which is equal to 257,237 gallons of water. 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

The Water crew abandoned the water service at the Library worksite, at 

Portland Ave. and Dartmouth St.  Also part of this work crews replaced 

the fire hydrant and installed a new 1.5” service and meter.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

6 - 3



 
                 

 

 

We have had several leaking water services, which have had to be 

replaced.  This leak was at 7580 Ridgewood Dr., utilizing the Vactor 

truck to assist in making the repair, crew made a small concrete cut to 

access the leak and make the repair.   

 

Repaired a leaking water meter valve at 150 W. Clackamas. The crew 

was able to do the repair by freezing the water line and replace the 

valve. 

 
         

Frozen water line, which allows crews to replace the valve.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SEWER: 
 

• The sewer crew is utilizing the camera truck to inspect sewer mains that are on 
the paving list this upcoming year.  Taking this step will allow crews to make 
repairs prior to the upcoming paving project, ideally this will reduce the likelihood 
crews will need to make repairs after the paving is done; preserving the integrity 
of the roadway.  

• The sewer crew is using the camera truck to locate sewer laterals throughout the 
town and mark them at the curb with a sewer marker.  

 

While utilizing the camera truck to inspect sewer mains the sewer crew found a partially 
blocked sewer main at the 400 block of W. Berkeley St. Crews brought in the Vactor truck  
to clean and clear the obstruction in conjunction with the camera truck.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6 - 4



 
                 

 

STORM:  

 

 Locates/GIS map updates ongoing. 

 Catch basin/headwall cleaning to mitigate flooding. 

 Completed Citywide street sweeping. 

 Crews are utilizing the Vactor truck to clean known troubled storm lines ahead 

of heavy rain events 

 Crews are performing catch basin repairs on basins in need of concrete floors 

and re-grouting the pipe connections to the basin box. 

 The storm crew is placing storm drain markers on catch basins that do not 

already have markers.  

 

 

 

Crews have been cleaning stormlines with the Vactor truck, during the 

process crews dislodged a good sized root ball in the main storm line on 

Portland Ave., in front of the high school football stadium.  

          

           Leaf season is still here….. 
      Crews have been working five days a week to maintain the leaf 

pick up schedule. Crews will pick up any resident of Gladstones 

leaves which are placed curbside during their area’s pick-up.  To 

date this leaf season Public Works has picked up approximately 

365 cubic yards of leaves!  Public Works will complete leaf pick 

up on December 15th and the dept. will do a 

final street sweep the following week, just in 

time for the holidays!   

 

 

 

6 - 5



 
                 

ADMINISTRATION: 
 

• Clackamas River Basin Council conducted an invasive species treatment along the Dahl Beach Pathway. 

• Submitted stormwater MS4 annual report to submit to DEQ. 

• Working with Backflow Management Incorporated (BMI) to complete water system Lead and Copper Rule 

sampling.  Also worked to complete the water system quarterly Fifth Unregulated Contaminant Monitoring Rule 

(UCMR5) sampling. 

• Continued work on completing Gladstone’s Clackamas County Multi-Jurisdiction Natural Hazard Mitigation Plan 

Addendum. 

• Working with Sisul Engineering to prepare conditions of approval for several private development projects. 

• Clackamas County Building Permit plan reviews, approvals and release letters. 

• Maintenance of HVAC for Community Center and Public Works, Civic Center will follow. 

• Management of the Janitorial contract; scheduling of bi-annual window cleaning for city facilities. 

• Procedure development and rollout of the new ROW Ordinance, which is now being managed by administration 

within the Public Works. 

• Preparing a new contract for water meter reading, contract expires December 31st. 

• Working with our partners in the Regional Water Providers Consortium to develop an updated member IGA 

draft. The IGA was first developed and adopted by individual members in 1996; the IGA was last updated and 

adopted in 2005. The Consortium Board unanimously approved the updated IGA October 4, 2023 with a 

recommendation that Consortium members’ individual board, council, or commission approve the amended and 

restated IGA.  

• Attended pre-app meetings as scheduled 

• Attended regulatory meetings as required 

• ROW Inspections for private and commercial work within the ROW. 

 

 

 

                                                                         
 
 
 

6 - 6



6 - 7



6 - 8



6 - 9



6 - 10



6 - 11



6 - 12



6 - 13



6 - 14



6 - 15



6 - 16



6 - 17



6 - 18



6 - 19



6 - 20



6 - 21



6 - 22



6 - 23



6 - 24



6 - 25



 

 GLADSTONE MUNICIPAL COURT FROM NOVEMBER 2023 
 

General Court Information from November 2023 
 

 49 traffic citations filed  
 74 violations disposed 
 18misdemeanors filed  
 3 misdemeanors disposed 
 13 payment agreements entered 
 15 warrants were issued 
 20 payment reminders were mailed to defendants 
 24 driver’s licenses were requested suspended  
 13 driver’s licenses were released 
 34 cases were sent to collections 
 6 cases were sent to the Department of Revenue 
 0 Jury trial was held 
 $19,735.00 in violation fees assessed 
 $21,490.14 in violation fees paid 
 $1,990.00 in misdemeanor fees assessed 
 $3,690.74 in misdemeanor fees paid 
 $489.40 collection with Department of Revenue 
 $12,742.12 collected with The Western Agency  

 

 

Tr
af

fic
 C

ite
s I

ss
ue

d 
20

21
 

Tr
af

fic
 C

ite
s I

ss
ue

d 
20

22
 

Tr
af

fic
 C

ite
s I

ss
ue

d 
20

23
 

Tr
af

fic
 V

io
l D

isp
 2

02
1 

Tr
af

fic
 V

io
l D

isp
 2

02
2 

Tr
af

fic
 V

io
l D

isp
 2

02
3 

M
isd

. I
ss

ue
d 

20
21

 

M
isd

. I
ss

ue
d 

20
22

 

M
Isd

. I
ss

ue
d 

20
23

 

M
isd

. D
isp

. 2
02

1 

M
isd

. D
isp

. 2
02

2 

M
Isd

. D
isp

. 2
02

3 

Pa
rk

in
g 

20
21

 

Pa
rk

in
g 

20
22

 

Pa
rk

in
g 

20
23

 

Jan 96 78 120 197 97 132 6 2 2 14 3 10 3 0 1 
Feb 49 86 64 117 115 173 5 13 9 8 8 6 2 0 1 
Mar 157 62 129 87 122 92 6 3 3 10 8 6 3 1 21 
Apr 107 118 84 137 93 166 6 13 8 6 2 8 8 3 4 
May 92 76 69 173 189 109 5 4 10 6 9 9 9 40 14 
Jun 177 118 64 93 150 122 5 13 10 7 8 12 49 13 3 
Jul 146 42 61 254 160 111 21 2 11 4 9 13 45 61 7 
Aug 101 37 59 199 111 99 7 16 12 10 12 10 19 21 6 
Sep 127 35 40 144 76 59 7 5 7 7 8 11 12 5 17 
Oct 55 37 31 199 32 57 2 4 12 10 3 4 4 5 38 
Nov 70 67 49 87 64 74 8 4 18 3 9 3 8 2 169 
Dec 55 99  85 62  0 4  7 3  1 0  
Total 1232 855 770 1772 1271 1194 78 83 102 92 82 92 163 151 281 

 
 
 

6 - 26



 

 GLADSTONE MUNICIPAL COURT FROM NOVEMBER 2023 
 

TRAFFIC FINE & FEES ASSESSED AND PAID BY YEAR 

 
 

Tr
af

fic
 F

ee
s 

A
ss

es
se

d 
20

21
 

 
Tr

af
fic

 F
ee

s 
A

ss
es

se
d 

20
22

 

Tr
af

fic
 F

ee
s 

A
ss

es
se

d 
20

23
 

 
Tr

af
fic

 F
ee

s 
Pa

id
 2

02
1 

 
Tr

af
fic

 F
ee

s 
Pa

id
 2

02
2 

Tr
af

fic
 F

ee
s 

Pa
id

 2
02

3 

Jan 51,046.00 35,192.50 39,830.00 16,230.42 18,573.88 24,445.59 
Feb 31,940.00 30,750.00 58,120.00 32,689.75 25,724.67 19,848.78 
Mar 22,844.00 33,126.10 22,835.00 16,401.78 36,100.00 21,799.95 
Apr 39,964.84 28,805.00 50,087.50 40,979.85 26,349.01 45,057.40 
May 50,745.00 57,275.00 37,620.00 22,791.29 27,039.72 25,258.81 
Jun 28,460.00 38,788.00 39,330.00 23,934.76 42,927.32 29,711.23 
July 22,818.60 51,636.25 36,920.00 43,103.86 24,562.98 21,100.71 
Aug 53,950.00 28,160.00 33,645.00 26,648.20 25,312.14 21,492.13 
Sept 44,225.00 31,143.00 20,765.00 25,539.13 23,137.49 23,599.95 
Oct 47,026.00 24,148.77 25,622.70 28,491.79 9,505.00 22,156.65 
Nov 26,505.00 17,975.00 19,735.00 21,086.93 20,958.48 21,490.14 
Dec 30,290.00 16,775.00  17,573.05 28,268.41  
       
Total $449,814.44 $393,774.62 $384,510.20 $315,470.81 $308,459.10 $275,961.34 

 
MISDEAMNOR FINE & FEES ASSESSED AND PAID BY YEAR 

 

 
M

isd
em

ea
no

r 
Fe

es
 A

ss
es

se
d 

20
21

 

 
M

isd
em

ea
no

r 
Fe

es
 A

ss
es

se
d 

20
22

 

M
isd

em
ea

no
r 

Fe
es

 A
ss

es
se

d 
20

23
 

 
M

isd
em

ea
no

r 
Fe

es
 P

ai
d 

20
21

 

 
M

isd
em

ea
no

r 
Fe

es
 P

ai
d 

20
22

 

M
isd

em
ea

no
r 

Fe
es

 P
ai

d 
20

23
 

 

Jan 13,698.48 2,136.00 14,109.00 7,346.08 3,771.92 2,944.52 
Feb 5,511.00 6,511.00 10,168.00 5,267.95 10,412.41 5,025.10 
Mar 4,308.00 5,831.62 6,775.00 10,012.54 6,955.75 4,709.73 
Apr 4,128.28 963.00 12,564.00 14,939.91 6,962.43 10,229.69 
May 4,737.00 7,062.00 5,293.92 5,646.16 1,841.15 8,143.54 
Jun 9,960.01 7,183.00 9,794.00 5.179.63 9,152.68 6,316.30 
July 4,381.00 7,921.38 12,359.10 6,741.67 3,411.36 3,803.50 
Aug 14,716.00 8,991.00 13,131.75 10,463.60 2,149.64 4,873.64 
Sept 30,584.00 6,868.00 10,323.80 6,507.01 2,668.68 7,261.55 
Oct 5,546.00 4,155.73 1,826.00 9,914.75 6,588.00 6,512.99 
Nov 5,463.00 8,535.00 1,990.00 5,557.93 3,654.71 3,690.74 
Dec 3,786.00 2,580.00  1,834.12 2,552.88  
       
Total $106,818.77 $68,737.73 $98,334.57 $89,411.35 $60,121.61 $63,511.30 

 

6 - 27



 

City of Gladstone Monthly Planning Report 

November 2023 
PUBLIC CONTACTS/PLANNING ACTIONS 

 

CUSTOMER 
CONTACT/ 

 

Jan 

 

Feb 

 

Mar 

 
April 

 
May 

 
June 

 
July 

 
Aug 

 
Sept 

 
Oct 

 
Nov 

 
Dec 

YEAR-
TO-DATE 

TOTALS Planning 
Actions 

Customer 
Service 
Counter 
Contacts 

 
1 

 
1 

 
1 

 
1 

 
0 

 
1 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
1 

 
 

 
6 

Customer 
phone/email 
Contacts 

 
48 

 
37 

 
31 

 
43 

 
34 

 
27 

 
20 

 
32 

 
42 

 
44 

 

32 
 

 
 

390 

Building 
Permits with 
Land Use 
Review 

 

4 

 

6 

 

2 

 

4 

 

8 

 

4 

 

2 

 

6 

 

9 

 

8 

 
5 

 
 

 

58 

Code 
Compliance 
Review 

1 1 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0  4 

Pre-application 
Conferences 

1 0 1 0 0 0 1 1 1 0 2  7 

Administrative 
Decisions 

2 2 0 0 0 0 2 0 1 0 0  7 

 

 
PLANNING COMMISSION ACTIONS/DECISIONS 

• No Planning Commission in November 2023 
 

CITY COUNCIL LAND USE ACTIONS/DECISIONS 

• No City Council Land Use Actions/Decisions in November 2023 

 

PRE-APPLICATION CONFERENCES 

• Roadrunner Pizza Storage Building Addition Design Review  

• Gladstone School District Transportation Facility Design Review 

 

ADMINISTRATIVE PERMITS 

• No Administrative Permits in November 

 

 

 6 - 28



 

BUILDING PERMITS WITH LAND USE REVIEW 

    

Date Address Permit # Description 
11/16/23 275 Ipswich Street B0210923 

Resubmittal 
Triplex addition to site with 1 dwelling unit 

(total of 4 dwelling units/quadplex) 

Middle Housing- no design review 

required.  Setbacks and maximum height 

met.  No trees to be removed.  Parking 

not required because site is within ½ mile 

of McLoughlin (high frequency transit) 

per CFEC rules.  However, if parking is 

provided, it must meet city standards.  

Review Cycle #9. Gladstone Zoning 

Standards continue to be met. 

11/16/23 1085 Portland Ave B0515823 Exterior ADA upgrades and interior 

improvements to existing Commercial 

Structure for new Happy Rock Coffee 

Roasting Co. coffee shop and roastery. 

Review Cycle #2. Gladstone Zoning 

Standards continue to be met. 

11/16/23 525 Portland Ave B0569623 Gladstone Library combined trash and 

generator enclosure. Shown matching 

plans approved by Planning 

Commission in February 2022. 

11/30/23 19605 River Rd MH0008323 Replacement of Manufactured Home 

Dwelling in location of existing home 

11/30/23 19605 River Rd MH0008423 Replacement of Manufactured Home 

Dwelling in location of existing home 

    

 
 

  

 
 

  

FUTURE ITEMS/PROPERTY UPDATES 
 

Date Topic 

12/19/23 

 

 

Planning Commission Public Hearing- Continued- DR-23-06 FIRE Restoration 
Warehouse Building (Pending re-submittal of applicant’s materials) 

Planning Commission Public Hearing- Updating Home Occupation Code 
Language (GMC Chapter 17.78) 

  
 

Page 2 

6 - 29



 

 

 

Gladstone Community Center Staff Report 

     November 2023 
Stats for Food in Gladstone 

 Food boxes delivered in November:  210 
 Congregate  lunches:  280 
 Homebound Meals delivered to seniors at home: 1348 ( Hot Meals) 
 Active participants signing in to our activities 996 
 Gladstone received 203.5 lbs. of food donated to our Homebound Senior 

Food Box Program (Gleaners and or Food Bank) 
 Center has received a total of $43.00 in donations for Homebound Meals 

and $642.00 congregate meals.  
 

 Services provided          
Gladstone Community Center recorded 10 information and assistance 
calls, 194 reassurance and outgoing participant checks and 5.25hrs of 
Homebound case management calls. 

 Rental information: 4 rentals in November 
 102 Volunteers and  550.5 volunteer hours recorded in November  

 

 

Highlights for the month:   
Community Bingo was a huge success and sold out again this month. They 
turned people away due to the popularity. The next Community Bingo Event is 
December 15th and the sponsor is the Kraxberger Middle School Robotics Club.  
  

6 - 30



 

 

 

The holidays have come to the Community Center in full force. We had a very 
creative volunteer come in and decorate for us just after Thanksgiving.  

 
 

 

 
 

6 - 31



 

 

Thanksgiving/Holiday Lunch  

There were about 100 participants and volunteers here for the holiday lunch. 
The Community Center is lucky to have so many willing volunteers here to help 
with this event. There was plenty of Holiday favorites for all to enjoy. 

 

 
 

Think of all the things that you are thankful for! 

.  

6 - 32



7



7 - 1



7 - 2



7 - 3





 

 
CLACKAMAS 

FIRE DISTRICT  
REPORT 





8



                
    Here for you 
 

 

FIRE CHIEF’S REPORT 
November 2023

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Nov. 9: E322 enjoyed their visit the Gladstone 
Center for Children and Families and shared 
emergency preparedness and fire safety ps.  

Nov. 28: Clackamas firefighters regularly 
train where they respond. Here E322 is 
stretching hose in their first-due area. 

 On, November 4th, Clackamas Fire con nued its 
efforts to reduce the risk of wildfire by providing a 
defensible space debris collec on day for 
homeowners at Sta on 10.  
 

 Clackamas Fire purchased two used apparatus as 
part of the emergency services levy. These units will 
provide flexibility in response and staffing – helping 
ensure that Clackamas Fire is ready and responding 
with the right people and the right apparatus. 

                      

 Clackamas Fire received a $61,500 grant through the 
State Homeland Security Program. This grant will 
provide a virtual reality simula on system for use in 
an -terrorism/mul -casualty incident training. Nov. 8: Clackamas firefighters responded 

with CCSO, CCSO SAR, and Estacada Fire to 
a high angle rescue in the Mt. Hood area. 

8 - 1



Fire Incidents in Gladstone 

None in November  

 

 

 

8 - 2



9



 
 
 

GLADSTONE 
CITY 

EVENT  
ANNOUNCEMENTS 

9 - 1





10



City of Gladstone 
Staff Report  

              
 
Report Date : December 2, 2023   
Meeting Date:  December 12, 2023 
To :    City Council   
From : Cathy Brucker, Finance Consultant, 
  Darren Caniparoli, Public Works Director 
   
Agenda Item 
 
Approval of Resolution No. 1231, a Resolution repealing Resolution No. 1228 and adopting a 
revised Master Fee Schedule (attached) effective January 1, 2024. 
 
History/Background 
 
The City of Gladstone Master Fee Schedule is historically updated when rates are added, revised 
or deleted to reflect the current rates, and provide the public with accurate and timely information. 
 
Utility Rate Increases - After two years of significant utility rate increases in 2020 and 2021, 
the City began forecasting increases to approximate anticipated cost of living adjustments.  Even 
with the volatile rate environment from the global pandemic, the City maintained a rate of 4.0 
percent increase. In addition, the budgeted increase for 2023-2025 Biennium Budget was again 
estimated at 4.0 percent for Water, Sewer and Storm Water utilities base rates, along with the 
block rates for Water consumption. This is the first year of the planned increase, allowing the City 
to maintain the trajectory approved back in 2020 for operations and maintenance of the utility 
system. 
 
Right of Way Minimum Charges -  Included is the standard 3.0 percent annual increase for 
the Right of Way Minimum Charges as detailed in the Master Fees and Charges Schedule. 
 
Engineering Fees - In October 2016 City Council approved a Technical Plan Review – 
Development Engineering fee’s based on the total construction cost for public improvements and 
work completed within the City ROW.  These specific fees are the only engineering fees the city 
currently imposes, fees are based on the public improvement portion of the project and are only 
collected when a project materializes.   
 
The City wants to encourage development, though the city has an obligation to be fiscally 
responsible. Engineering cost for projects that do not come to fruition are costly expenditures 
which should not be the responsibility of the residents of Gladstone.  Currently engineering 
expenses are funded out of the Public Works budget because the City contracts for engineering 
services.  
 
Public Works is proposing that the city begin collecting Engineering Fee’s for private and 
commercial development, these fee’s in conjunction with our Technical Plan Review-
Development Engineering Fee’s will place the financial obligation on the developer and not the 
residents of Gladstone.  The proposed fees are listed below:  

 
 
 

 Pre–Application Conference:  $750.00 
 Land Use/Conditions of Approval:  $850.00 
 Stormwater Review:  $1500.00  

10 - 1



10 - 2



 

RESOLUTION NO. 1231 
CITY OF GLADSTONE, OREGON 

 
A Resolution Adopting a Revised Master Fee Schedule  

   
WHEREAS, The Gladstone City Council is authorized by the Gladstone Municipal Code to adopt certain fees; 

and 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council desires to adopt an updated Master Fee Schedule reflecting periodic updates; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City adopted a Right-of-Way Ordinance in 2023, the Master Fee Schedule stipulates the 

minimum annual Right-of-Way fee will increase 3.0 percent every year; and 
 
WHEREAS,  In November 2019 the City Council approved a new utility rate structure, including block rates and 

annual increases.  As of January 2024, the monthly increase to a typical single family home is 
determined to be 4.0 percent to the base and block rates to correlate to the increase in the cost of 
goods and services, effective January 1, 2024, and, 

 
WHEREAS,  The City desires to add Engineering Fees to include the following costs. Pre-Application conference 

$750.00, Land Use/Conditions of Approval $850.00, Stormwater Review $1,500.00, Pre-
Construction Meeting $1,000.00 and Engineering Conference $90.00/hr (first 15 min. free 
thereafter $90.00/hr billed in .5/hr increments). 

 
WHEREAS,  The City has reviewed the meal (60 years of age and over) and van suggested donation rates  at the 

Gladstone Community Center and desires to increase  rates to $4.00 and $2.00 respectively; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Gladstone, a municipal 

corporation of the State of Oregon, the following: 
 
 The City of Gladstone repeals the Master Fee Schedule adopted under Resolution 1228 and 

replaces it by adopting the Revised Master Fee Schedule, as set forth in the attached Exhibit A.  
Changes/additions are noted in highlight and deletions are noted in strikethrough.  

 
This Resolution is effective January 1, 2024. 
 
This Resolution adopted by the Gladstone City Council and approved by the Mayor this ________ day of 
________________________, 2023. 
 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________________          ___________________________________ 
Michael Milch, Mayor                       Tami Bannick 

10 - 3



1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32

A
B

C

Ad
op

te
d 

Bu
dg

et
$4

5.
00

Bl
as

tin
g 

Pe
rm

it 
Fe

e 
$5

,0
00

.0
0

Bl
as

tin
g 

Pe
rm

it 
In

sp
ec

tio
ns

 e
ac

h 
(a

fte
r f

irs
t t

w
o 

in
sp

ec
tio

ns
)

$2
,0

00
.0

0
Bu

sin
es

s L
ice

ns
e 

Ba
se

 F
ee

 
$1

00
.0

0
Bu

sin
es

s L
ice

ns
e 

Co
m

m
en

cin
g 

Ju
ly

-D
ec

em
be

r 
$5

0.
00

Bu
sin

es
s L

ice
ns

e 
fe

e 
pe

r e
m

pl
oy

ee
 o

ve
r 3

 F
TE

's
$5

.0
0

Bu
sin

es
s L

ice
ns

e 
fo

r R
en

ta
l P

ro
pe

rt
y 

in
 G

la
ds

to
ne

 - 
ba

se
 fe

e 
pl

us
 ti

er
ed

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
be

lo
w

$1
00

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
1 

re
nt

al
 u

ni
t

$2
5.

00
   

   
   

   
   

2 
- 5

 re
nt

al
 u

ni
ts

$5
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

6 
- 1

2 
re

nt
al

 u
ni

ts
$7

5.
00

   
   

   
   

   
13

+ 
re

nt
al

 u
ni

ts
$1

00
.0

0
Bu

sin
es

s L
ice

ns
e 

Pa
st

 D
ue

 F
ee

 p
er

 m
on

th
$1

0.
00

Ho
m

e 
Oc

cu
pa

tio
n 

- I
nt

ia
l A

pp
lic

at
io

n 
Fe

e
$5

0.
00

De
cla

ra
tio

n 
of

 C
an

di
da

cy
 F

ili
ng

 F
ee

$5
0.

00
El

ec
tr

on
ic 

Co
py

 o
f a

 R
ec

or
de

d 
M

ee
tin

g 
$2

0.
00

Liq
uo

r L
ice

ns
e 

Re
vi

ew
   

   
 O

rig
in

al
 A

pp
lic

at
io

n
$1

00
.0

0
   

   
 C

ha
ng

e 
in

 o
w

ne
rs

hi
p,

 lo
ca

tio
n,

 o
r p

riv
ile

ge
$7

5.
00

   
   

 R
en

ew
al

 o
r t

em
po

ra
ry

 a
pp

lic
at

io
n

$3
5.

00
Lie

n 
Se

ar
ch

$3
0.

00
No

ta
ry

 F
ee

 (N
on

-R
es

id
en

t)
$1

0.
00

No
ta

ry
 F

ee
 (R

es
id

en
t)

$5
.0

0
NS

F 
Ch

ec
k 

Ch
ar

ge
$3

5.
00

Pa
rk

in
g 

Pe
rm

its
$2

5.
00

Pe
na

lty
 fo

r w
or

k 
co

m
m

en
cin

g 
be

fo
re

 a
pp

lic
at

io
n 

ap
pr

ov
al

In
ve

st
ig

at
io

n 
fe

e 
eq

ua
l t

o 
pe

rm
it 

fe
e

Ph
ot

oc
op

ie
s B

&
W

 u
p 

to
 8

 x 
14

$0
.2

5
Po

st
ag

e 
an

d 
Ha

nd
lin

g 
Fl

at
 F

ee
 +

 a
ct

ua
l c

os
t o

f p
os

ta
ge

$1
.0

0
Pu

bl
ic 

Re
co

rd
s A

dm
in

ist
ra

tiv
e 

Re
se

ar
ch

 p
er

 h
ou

r (
qu

ar
te

r h
ou

r i
nc

re
m

en
t c

ha
rg

e)
Ba

se
d 

on
 h

ou
rly

 ra
te

Re
so

lu
tio

n 
12

31
 - 

Ex
hi

bi
t "

A"
Ci

ty
 o

f G
la

ds
to

ne
 M

as
te

r F
ee

 S
ch

ed
ul

e 
  E

ffe
ct

iv
e 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

1,
 2

02
4

AD
M

IN
IS

TR
AT

IO
N

EX
HI

BI
T 

A 
M

as
te

r F
ee

 S
ch

ed
ul

e 
Pa

ge
 1

10 - 4



33 34 35 36 37 38 39 40 41 42 43 44 45 46 47 48 49 50 51 52 53 54 55 56 57 58 59 60 61 62 63 64 65

A
B

C
Pu

bl
ic 

Re
co

rd
s C

le
ric

al
 R

es
ea

rc
h 

pe
r h

ou
r (

qu
ar

te
r h

ou
r i

nc
re

m
en

t c
ha

rg
e)

Ba
se

d 
on

 h
ou

rly
 ra

te
Pu

bl
ic 

Re
co

rd
s L

eg
al

 R
es

ea
rc

h 
pe

r h
ou

r (
qu

ar
te

r h
ou

r i
nc

re
m

en
t c

ha
rg

e)
Ba

se
d 

on
 h

ou
rly

 ra
te

Pu
bl

ic 
Re

co
rd

s R
eq

ue
st

 D
ep

os
it 

(la
rg

e)
 to

w
ar

d 
ho

ur
ly

 ra
te

$1
00

.0
0

Pu
bl

ic 
Re

co
rd

s R
eq

ue
st

 D
ep

os
it 

(s
m

al
l) 

to
w

ar
d 

ho
ur

ly
 ra

te
$2

5.
00

Re
tu

rn
ed

 C
he

ck
 C

ha
rg

e/
pr

oc
es

sin
g

$3
5.

00
Ro

ad
 R

e-
na

m
in

g
$1

50
.0

0
Sp

ec
ia

l E
ve

nt
 A

pp
lic

at
io

n 
(p

lu
s a

ct
ua

l s
ta

ff 
co

st
s f

or
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

s s
pe

cif
ica

lly
$1

00
.0

0
 n

ee
de

d 
to

 w
or

k 
th

e 
ev

en
t a

nd
 b

ar
ric

ad
e 

fe
es

 if
 n

ee
de

d)

Bu
ild

in
g 

Re
nt

al
 (p

er
 h

ou
r) 

Gr
ou

p 
1:

 C
ity

 o
f G

la
ds

to
ne

 R
es

id
en

ts
, p

riv
at

e 
pa

rt
ie

s, 
 P

la
nt

on
 R

oo
m

-$
60

.0
0 

 Li
br

ar
y-

$3
0.

00
 

Bu
ild

in
g 

Re
nt

al
 (p

er
 h

ou
r)G

ro
up

 2
: C

om
m

er
cia

l, 
fo

r-p
ro

fit
 p

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l g

ro
up

s. 
(2

 h
ou

r 
 P

la
nt

on
 R

oo
m

-$
75

.0
0 

Ki
tc

he
n 

Fe
e 

$6
0.

00
Cl

ea
ni

ng
 F

ee
$6

0.
00

De
po

sit
 - 

Re
fu

nd
ab

le
; d

ue
 a

t t
im

e 
of

 sc
he

du
lin

g
$2

00
.0

0
M

ea
l u

nd
er

 6
0 

ye
ar

s
$5

.0
0

M
ea

l (
su

gg
es

te
d 

do
na

tio
n)

 6
0 

ye
ar

s a
nd

 o
ve

r
$3

.0
0 

   
   

  $
4.

00
   

  
Fa

x (
pe

r p
ag

e 
- s

ta
ff 

on
ly

)
$1

.0
0

Ph
ot

oc
op

y 
(p

er
 p

ag
e)

$0
.2

5
Va

n 
Do

na
tio

n 
Tr

an
sp

or
ta

tio
n 

 (s
ug

ge
st

ed
 d

on
at

io
n)

 e
ac

h 
w

ay
$1

.0
0 

   
   

  $
2.

00
Fr

id
ay

 E
xc

ur
sio

ns
 ($

7-
$2

5)
  A

dv
en

tu
re

 T
rip

s
va

rie
s

Bi
lli

ar
ds

 R
oo

m
 (s

ug
ge

st
ed

 d
on

at
io

n 
of

 p
er

 g
am

e 
pl

ay
ed

)
$0

.2
5

No
ta

ry
 F

ee
- C

la
ck

am
as

 C
ou

nt
y 

re
sid

en
t a

ge
 6

0 
or

 o
ld

er
 F

re
e 

No
ta

ry
 F

ee
- G

la
ds

to
ne

 R
es

id
en

t 
$5

.0
0

No
ta

ry
 F

ee
- N

on
 R

es
id

en
t- 

Cl
ac

ka
m

as
 C

ou
nt

y 
$1

0.
00

M
el

dr
um

 B
ar

 P
ar

ki
ng

 F
ee

:
   

   
   

No
n-

Re
sid

en
t

$3
.0

0/
da

y
   

   
   

No
n-

Re
sid

en
t

$4
0.

00
/y

ea
r

PA
RK

S 
AN

D 
RE

CR
EA

TI
ON

CO
M

M
UN

IT
Y 

CE
NT

ER

EX
HI

BI
T 

A 
M

as
te

r F
ee

 S
ch

ed
ul

e 
Pa

ge
 2

10 - 5



66 67 68 69 70 71 72 73 74 75 76 77 78 79 80 81 82 83 84 85 86 87 88 89 90 91 92 93 94 95 96 97 98

A
B

C
   

   
   

No
n-

Re
sid

en
t V

isi
tin

g 
Sp

or
ts

 T
ea

m
s

Fr
ee

 (i
n 

de
sig

na
te

d 
ar

ea
)

   
   

   
Re

sid
en

t 
Fr

ee
 (l

im
it 

tw
o 

pe
r h

ou
se

ho
ld

)
   

   
Ca

rd
 R

ep
la

ce
m

en
t f

ee
$5

.0
0 

pe
r c

ar
d

GL
AD

ST
ON

E 
US

ER
 G

RO
UP

 FE
ES

 FO
R 

RE
SE

RV
ED

 P
LA

Y

Ba
se

ba
ll/

So
ftb

al
l U

se
r G

ro
up

s:
   

   
Gl

ad
st

on
e 

Ju
ni

or
 B

as
eb

al
l A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
$2

0.
00

 p
er

 re
gi

st
er

ed
 p

la
ye

r/
ye

ar
   

   
Gl

ad
st

on
e 

Gi
rls

 S
of

tb
al

l A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n

$2
0.

00
 p

er
 re

gi
st

er
ed

 p
la

ye
r/

ye
ar

So
cc

er
 U

se
r G

ro
up

:
   

  G
la

ds
to

ne
 Y

ou
th

 S
oc

ce
r A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 
(2

 ro
st

er
s a

 y
ea

r f
or

 p
er

 p
la

ye
r c

ha
rg

e)
$1

5.
00

 p
er

 re
gi

st
er

ed
 p

la
ye

r/
ye

ar
To

ur
na

m
en

t F
ee

s: 
Ba

se
ba

ll/
So

ftb
al

l S
oc

ce
r:

    
 M

el
dr

um
 B

ar
 P

ar
k 

Fi
el

ds
 - 

al
l f

ie
ld

s/
3-

da
y 

ca
p

$5
00

.0
0

    
 D

ie
ric

kx
 F

ie
ld

s -
 a

ll 
fie

ld
s/

3-
da

y 
ca

p
$2

00
.0

0
   

  B
an

ne
rs

: S
po

ns
or

 b
an

ne
rs

 a
llo

w
ed

 d
ur

in
g 

to
ur

na
m

en
t p

la
y 

on
ly

. B
an

ne
rs

 m
us

t b
e

   
  r

em
ov

ed
 a

t t
he

 e
nd

 o
f p

la
y

Pi
ck

le
ba

ll 
Us

er
 G

ro
up

:
   

  G
la

ds
to

ne
 P

ick
le

ba
ll 

Cl
ub

 (2
 ro

st
er

s a
 y

ea
r f

or
 p

er
 p

la
ye

r c
ha

rg
e)

$1
5.

00
 p

er
 re

gi
st

er
ed

 p
la

ye
r/

ye
ar

To
ur

na
m

en
t F

ee
s: 

Pi
ck

le
ba

ll/
Te

nn
is

    
 M

ax
 P

at
te

rs
on

 C
ou

rt
s -

 A
ll 

Co
ur

ts
 a

ll 
da

y/
3-

da
y 

ca
p

$2
00

.0
0

   
  B

an
ne

rs
: S

po
ns

or
 b

an
ne

rs
 a

llo
w

ed
 d

ur
in

g 
to

ur
na

m
en

t p
la

y 
on

ly
. B

an
ne

rs
 m

us
t b

e
    

 re
m

ov
ed

 a
t t

he
 e

nd
 o

f p
la

y

NO
N-

GL
AD

ST
ON

E 
US

ER
 G

RO
UP

 FE
ES

 FO
R 

RE
SE

RV
ED

 P
LA

Y
Ba

se
ba

ll/
So

ftb
al

l B
al

lfi
el

ds
 U

se
 (p

er
 fi

el
d/

pe
r h

ou
r)

   
  R

es
id

en
t T

ea
m

*
$1

0.
00

 p
er

 h
ou

r/
pe

r f
ie

ld
    

 N
on

-R
es

id
en

t T
ea

m
$1

5.
00

 p
er

 h
ou

r/
pe

r f
ie

ld
So

cc
er

 Fi
el

d 
(p

er
 fi

el
d/

pe
r h

ou
r) 

Do
es

 n
ot

 in
clu

de
 g

oa
ls

   
  R

es
id

en
t T

ea
m

*
$5

.0
0/

pe
r h

ou
r/

pe
r f

ie
ld

   
  N

on
-R

es
id

en
t T

ea
m

$1
0.

00
 p

er
 h

ou
r/

pe
r f

ie
ld

To
ur

na
m

en
t F

ee
s: 

Ba
se

ba
ll/

So
ftb

al
l/S

oc
ce

r
   

  M
el

dr
um

 B
ar

 P
ar

k 
Fi

el
ds

 - 
al

l f
ie

ld
s/

pe
r d

ay
$5

00
.0

0
   

  D
ie

ric
kx

 F
ie

ld
s -

 a
ll 

fie
ld

s/
pe

r d
ay

$2
00

.0
0

EX
HI

BI
T 

A 
M

as
te

r F
ee

 S
ch

ed
ul

e 
Pa

ge
 3

10 - 6



99 10
0

10
1

10
2

10
3

10
4

10
5

10
6

10
7

10
8

10
9

11
0

11
1

11
2

11
3

11
4

11
5

11
6

11
7

11
8

11
9

12
0

12
1

12
2

12
3

12
4

12
5

12
6

12
7

A
B

C
Pi

ck
le

ba
ll/

Te
nn

is 
Co

ur
ts

 (p
er

 co
ur

t/
pe

r h
ou

r)
   

  R
es

id
en

t*
*

$5
.0

0/
ho

ur
    

 N
on

-R
es

id
en

t
$1

0.
00

/h
ou

r
*R

es
id

en
t t

ea
m

 m
us

t c
on

sis
t o

f 8
5%

 G
la

ds
to

ne
 re

sid
en

ts
**

Re
sid

en
t m

us
t s

ho
w

 id
en

tif
ica

tio
n

Ad
dr

es
sin

g 
(N

ew
 o

r C
ha

ng
e 

of
 A

dd
re

ss
/U

ni
t/

Su
ite

)
$6

6.
00

 +
 $

7.
00

 p
er

 lo
t/

un
it/

su
ite

Ad
ju

st
m

en
t

$5
60

.0
0

An
ne

xa
tio

n

  *
No

n-
El

ec
tio

n
Co

st
 o

f s
ta

ff 
an

d 
co

ns
ul

tin
g 

se
rv

ice
s 

($
3,

00
0.

00
 d

ep
os

it)

  *
El

ec
tio

n
Co

st
 o

f s
ta

ff 
an

d 
co

ns
ul

tin
g 

se
rv

ice
s 

($
3,

00
0.

00
 d

ep
os

it)
Ap

pe
al

$2
50

.0
0

Ap
pl

ica
tio

n 
or

 A
pp

ea
l W

ith
dr

aw
n 

- n
o 

pu
bl

ic 
no

tic
e 

se
nt

, s
ta

ff 
re

po
rt

 is
su

ed
 o

r d
ec

isi
on

 
iss

ue
d

Re
ta

in
 2

5%
 o

f a
pp

lic
at

io
n 

fe
e 

or
 

m
in

im
um

 o
f $

25
0;

 w
hi

ch
ev

er
 is

 m
or

e
Ap

pl
ica

tio
n 

or
 A

pp
ea

l W
ith

dr
aw

n 
- p

ub
lic

 n
ot

ice
 se

nt
Re

ta
in

 5
0%

 o
f a

pp
lic

at
io

n 
fe

e 
or

 
Ap

pl
ica

tio
n 

W
ith

dr
aw

n 
- s

ta
ff 

re
po

rt
 is

su
ed

 o
r d

ec
isi

on
 is

su
ed

No
 R

ef
un

d
Ap

pl
ica

tio
n 

W
ith

dr
aw

n 
- H

ea
rin

gs
 O

ffi
ce

r R
ev

ie
w

 F
ee

Re
fu

nd
 if

 th
e 

he
ar

in
g 

ha
s n

ot
 o

cc
ur

re
d

Bu
ild

in
g 

Pe
rm

it 
Re

vi
ew

 b
y 

Pl
an

ne
r -

 M
ul

ti-
fa

m
ily

, C
om

m
er

cia
l, 

3-
4 

pl
ex

, i
nt

er
na

l 
.1

%
 o

f B
ui

ld
in

g 
Pe

rm
it 

Va
lu

e 
Bu

ild
in

g 
Pe

rm
it 

Re
vi

ew
 b

y 
Pl

an
ne

r -
 R

es
id

en
tia

l S
in

gl
e-

Ho
us

eh
ol

d 
an

d 
AD

U'
s: 

Ne
w

 
$8

9.
00

 
Co

m
pr

eh
en

siv
e 

Pl
an

 A
m

en
dm

en
t

$1
2,

41
0.

00
Co

nd
ito

na
l U

se
$3

,9
05

.0
0

De
sig

n 
Re

vi
ew

.3
84

%
 o

f c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
co

st
, b

ut
 n

o 
le

ss
s 

In
te

rp
re

ta
tio

n 
- C

om
pr

eh
en

siv
e 

Pl
an

 o
r Z

on
in

g 
an

d 
De

ve
lo

pm
en

t O
rd

in
an

ce
$1

,3
00

.0
0

La
nd

 U
se

 P
er

m
it 

- T
yp

e 
II,

 N
ot

 o
th

er
w

ise
 li

st
ed

$1
,0

65
.0

0
Lo

t L
in

e 
Ad

ju
st

m
en

t
$1

,3
54

.0
0

M
ai

lin
g 

La
be

ls
$2

5.
00

M
ar

iju
an

a 
La

nd
 U

se
 A

pp
lic

at
io

n 
- T

yp
e 

I
$1

,0
00

.0
0

M
ar

iju
an

a 
La

nd
 U

se
 A

pp
lic

at
io

n 
- T

yp
e 

II
$1

,5
05

.0
0

PL
AN

NI
NG

 A
ND

 B
UI

LD
IN

G

EX
HI

BI
T 

A 
M

as
te

r F
ee

 S
ch

ed
ul

e 
Pa

ge
 4

10 - 7



12
8

12
9

13
0

13
1

13
2

13
3

13
4

13
5

13
6

13
7

13
8

13
9

14
0

14
1

14
2

14
3

14
4

14
5

14
6

14
7

14
8

14
9

15
0

15
1

15
2

15
3

15
4

15
5

15
6

15
7

15
8

15
9

16
0

A
B

C
M

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
of

 C
on

di
tio

n 
of

 A
pp

ro
va

l
$1

,0
65

.0
0

M
ob

ile
 H

om
e 

Pa
rk

 C
on

ve
rs

io
n

$2
,6

00
.0

0
No

nc
on

fo
rm

in
g 

Us
e 

- A
lte

ra
tio

n 
or

 V
er

ifi
ca

tio
n

$1
,4

05
.0

0
Op

en
 S

pa
ce

 R
ev

ie
w

$1
,0

65
.0

0
Op

en
 S

pa
ce

 R
ev

ie
w

 - 
Co

nf
lic

t R
es

ol
ut

io
n 

$1
,0

65
.0

0
Pa

rt
iti

on
$2

,7
05

.0
0

Pl
an

ne
d 

Un
it 

De
ve

lo
pm

en
t (

PU
D)

 - 
se

e 
Su

bd
iv

isi
on

Pl
an

ni
ng

 S
ta

ff 
Re

vi
ew

 =
 F

irs
t 1

5 
m

in
ut

es
 - 

no
 ch

ar
ge

; b
ill

ed
 in

 0
.5

 h
ou

r i
nc

re
m

en
ts

$1
50

.0
0/

ho
ur

Pl
at

 V
ac

at
io

n
$8

45
.0

0
Pr

e-
Ap

pl
ica

tio
n 

M
ee

tin
g

11
20

  $
1,

87
0.

00
Pr

op
er

ty
 Li

ne
 A

dj
us

tm
en

t -
 T

yp
e 

I
$7

95
.0

0
Pr

op
er

ty
 Li

ne
 A

dj
us

tm
en

t -
 T

yp
e 

II
$1

,0
50

.0
0

Re
pl

ac
em

en
t D

w
el

lin
g 

$9
95

.0
0

Re
pl

at
 - 

Ty
pe

 II
$2

,7
05

.0
0

Si
gn

s -
 D

es
ig

n 
Re

vi
ew

$5
30

.0
0

St
re

et
 N

am
e 

Ch
an

ge
$1

05
.0

0
St

re
et

 V
ac

at
io

n 
- A

pp
lic

at
io

n
$6

05
.0

0
St

re
et

 V
ac

at
io

n 
- P

ro
ce

ss
in

g 
of

 V
ac

at
io

n
Fu

ll 
co

st
 o

f r
ec

ov
er

y
Su

bd
iv

isi
on

 - 
M

aj
or

 (1
1 

or
 m

or
e 

lo
ts

)
$4

,0
40

.0
0 

+ 
$4

5.
00

/lo
t

Su
bd

iv
isi

on
 - 

M
in

or
 (4

 - 
10

 lo
ts

)
$2

,7
05

.0
0

Te
m

po
ra

ry
 D

w
el

lin
g 

fo
r C

ar
e 

pe
rm

it,
 n

ew
 a

nd
 re

ne
w

al
 (1

4+
 d

ay
s)

$8
35

.0
0

Te
m

po
ra

ry
 D

w
el

lin
g 

w
hi

le
 B

ui
ld

in
g 

(1
4+

 d
ay

s)
$5

00
.0

0
Te

m
po

ra
ry

 U
se

 O
th

er
w

ise
 P

ro
hi

bi
te

d
$1

,0
65

.0
0

Te
m

po
ra

ry
 S

tr
uc

tu
re

 fo
r E

m
er

ge
nc

y 
Sh

el
te

r
$5

00
.0

0
Ti

m
e 

Ex
te

ns
io

n
$1

,0
65

.0
0

Ti
m

e 
Ex

te
ns

io
n 

- T
yp

e 
1

$5
60

.0
0

Va
ria

nc
e

$1
,1

20
.0

0
Ve

st
ed

 R
ig

ht
 D

et
er

m
in

at
io

n
$5

,1
05

.0
0

W
ire

le
ss

 T
el

ec
om

m
un

ica
tio

n 
Fa

cil
ity

 - 
Ty

pe
 I

$5
85

.0
0

W
ire

le
ss

 T
el

ec
om

m
un

ica
tio

n 
Fa

cil
ity

 - 
Ty

pe
 II

$9
50

.0
0

W
ire

le
ss

 T
el

ec
om

m
un

ica
tio

n 
Fa

cil
ity

 - 
Ty

pe
 II

I (
w

ith
 a

n 
ad

ju
st

m
en

t)
$6

,5
70

.0
0

Zo
ne

 C
ha

ng
e 

$3
,0

60
.0

0
Zo

ne
 C

ha
ng

e,
 fi

le
d 

co
nc

ur
re

nt
ly

 w
ith

 a
no

th
er

 la
nd

 u
se

 a
pp

lic
at

io
n 

fo
r t

he
 sa

m
e 

pr
op

er
ty

$2
,5

10
.0

0

EX
HI

BI
T 

A 
M

as
te

r F
ee

 S
ch

ed
ul

e 
Pa

ge
 5

10 - 8



16
1

16
2

16
3

16
4

16
5

16
6

16
7

16
8

16
9

17
0

17
1

17
2

17
3

17
4

17
5

17
6

17
7

17
8

17
9

18
0

18
1

18
2

18
3

18
4

18
5

18
6

18
7

18
8

18
9

19
0

19
1

A
B

C
Zo

ne
 C

ha
ng

e 
- P

C 
Re

vi
ew

, f
ile

d 
co

nc
ur

re
nt

ly
 w

ith
 C

om
pr

eh
en

siv
e 

Pl
an

 A
m

en
dm

en
t

$2
,5

10
.0

0
Zo

ni
ng

 V
er

ifi
ca

tio
n/

Co
nf

irm
at

io
n 

Le
tt

er
$1

41
.0

0

A-
Fr

am
e 

Si
gn

 P
er

m
it 

 (i
ni

tia
l a

pp
lic

at
io

n 
fe

e)
$1

00
.0

0
Ad

dr
es

s R
ec

or
d 

Pr
in

t (
pe

r a
dd

re
ss

)
$1

0.
00

Al
ar

m
 P

er
m

it 
   

   
 In

iti
al

 P
er

m
it 

or
 R

en
ew

al
$2

5.
00

   
   

 La
te

 F
ee

 (a
fte

r 3
0 

da
ys

 e
xp

ira
tio

n 
or

 in
st

al
la

tio
n)

$2
5.

00
   

   
 S

ec
on

d 
Fa

lse
 A

la
rm

 (w
ith

in
 p

er
m

it 
ye

ar
)

$5
0.

00
   

   
 T

hi
rd

 F
al

se
 A

la
rm

 (w
ith

in
 p

er
m

it 
ye

ar
)

$1
00

.0
0

   
   

 F
ou

rt
h 

an
d 

Ea
ch

 S
ub

se
qu

en
t A

la
rm

 (w
ith

in
 p

er
m

it 
ye

ar
)

$1
50

.0
0

   
   

 F
ai

lu
re

 to
 o

bt
ai

n 
Al

ar
m

 P
er

m
it

$9
0.

00

An
im

al
 P

er
m

it 
Ap

pl
ica

tio
n 

(p
er

 y
ea

r) 
$2

5.
00

Bl
oc

k 
Pa

rt
y

$3
5.

00
Bo

dy
 W

or
n 

Ca
m

er
a 

Fo
ot

ag
e 

(N
EW

)
$2

5.
00

 in
tia

l f
ee

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 R

ed
ac

tio
n 

&
 P

ro
ce

ss
in

g
$4

8.
00

-$
58

.0
0/

hr
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 R
ed

ac
tio

n 
Re

vi
ew

$3
7.

00
/h

r
CD

's 
in

clu
di

ng
 p

ho
to

s/
vi

de
os

$2
5.

00
Lo

ca
l H

ist
or

y 
Pr

in
to

ut
 (p

er
 re

co
rd

)
$1

0.
00

No
ise

 v
ar

ia
nc

e
$7

5.
00

Nu
sia

nc
e 

Pr
op

er
ty

 A
ba

te
m

en
t

Ac
tu

al
 C

os
t 

Po
lic

e 
Re

po
rt

 - 
No

 C
ha

rg
e 

fo
r V

ict
im

s
$0

.0
0

Po
lic

e 
Re

po
rt

 (f
irs

t 2
 p

ag
es

) 
$1

5.
00

Po
lic

e 
Re

po
rt

 (p
ag

e 
3 

an
d 

ov
er

) e
ac

h 
pa

ge
$1

.0
0

Te
m

po
ra

ry
/P

or
ta

bl
e 

St
or

ag
e 

Co
nt

ai
ne

r
$5

0.
00

Ve
hi

cle
 Im

po
un

d 
(d

ur
in

g 
re

gu
la

r b
us

in
es

s h
ou

rs
)

$1
00

.0
0

Te
ch

ni
ca

l P
la

n 
Re

vi
ew

-D
ev

el
op

m
en

t E
ng

in
ee

rin
g 

Fe
e

    
    

    
   

   
Pl

an
 R

ev
ie

w
 &

 In
sp

ec
tio

n 
(u

p 
to

 tw
o 

pl
an

 su
bm

itt
al

s)
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 5

%
 (2

.5
%

 fo
r p

la
n 

re
vi

ew
 &

 

PO
LIC

E 

EN
GI

NE
ER

IN
G 

EX
HI

BI
T 

A 
M

as
te

r F
ee

 S
ch

ed
ul

e 
Pa

ge
 6

10 - 9



19
2

19
3

19
4

19
5

19
6

19
7

19
8

19
9

20
0

20
1

20
2

20
3

20
4

20
5

20
6

20
7

20
8

20
9

21
0

21
1

21
2

21
3

21
4

21
5

A
B

C
   

   
   

   
   

 P
la

n 
Re

vi
ew

 (t
hr

ee
 o

r m
or

e 
pl

an
 su

bm
itt

al
s, 

in
 a

dd
iti

on
 to

 2
.5

%
 fe

e
3%

 o
f c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

co
st

/p
er

 re
vi

ew
 3

+
La

nd
 U

se
/C

on
di

tio
ns

 o
f A

pp
ro

va
l

$8
50

.0
0

St
or

m
w

at
er

 R
ev

ie
w

$1
,5

00
.0

0
Pr

e-
Co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n 
M

ee
tin

g 
$1

,0
00

.0
0

Te
ch

ni
ca

l P
la

n 
Re

vi
ew

-D
ev

el
op

m
en

t E
ng

in
ee

rin
g 

Fe
e

    
    

    
   

   
Pl

an
 R

ev
ie

w
 &

 In
sp

ec
tio

n 
(u

p 
to

 tw
o 

pl
an

 su
bm

itt
al

s)
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 5

%
 (2

.5
%

 fo
r p

la
n 

re
vi

ew
 &

 
   

   
   

   
   

 P
la

n 
Re

vi
ew

 (t
hr

ee
 o

r m
or

e 
pl

an
 su

bm
itt

al
s, 

in
 a

dd
iti

on
 to

 2
.5

%
 fe

e
3%

 o
f c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

co
st

/p
er

 re
vi

ew
 3

+
Ba

rr
ica

de
 D

el
iv

er
y 

an
d 

Pi
ck

up
 F

ee
$5

0.
00

 
$1

00
.0

0
Er

os
io

n 
Co

nt
ro

l V
io

la
tio

n 
 

$3
00

.0
0

Hy
dr

an
t H

oo
k-

Up
 P

er
m

it 
Fe

e 
(p

lu
s w

at
er

 u
sa

ga
e 

co
st

)
$5

0.
00

Re
gi

st
ra

tio
n 

Fe
e

$5
0.

00
St

re
et

 O
pe

ni
ng

 In
sp

ec
tio

n 
Fe

e
$8

5.
00

St
re

et
 O

pe
ni

ng
 P

er
m

it 
Fe

e
$1

50
.0

0
St

re
et

 O
pe

ni
ng

 P
er

m
it 

Fe
e 

- O
ne

 T
im

e 
Ex

te
ns

io
n 

(9
0 

da
y 

pe
rio

d)
$1

00
.0

0
St

re
et

 O
pe

ni
ng

 R
e-

In
sp

ec
tio

n 
Fe

e 
(if

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
)  

$8
5.

00
Sy

st
em

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t C
ha

rg
es

 (S
DC

's)
   

   
* 

Tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n

 $
4,

44
0 

pe
r (

ED
U)

 
  *

 W
at

er
:

3/
4"

 m
et

er
 - 

 $
9,

40
2

1"
 m

et
er

 - 
$1

5,
58

1
1 

1/
2"

 m
et

er
 - 

$3
1,

30
9

PU
BL

IC
 W

OR
KS

EX
HI

BI
T 

A 
M

as
te

r F
ee

 S
ch

ed
ul

e 
Pa

ge
 7

10 - 10



21
6

21
7

21
8

21
9

22
0

22
1

22
2

22
3

22
4

22
5

22
6

22
7

22
8

22
9

23
0

23
1

23
2

23
3

23
4

23
5

23
6

23
7

23
8

23
9

24
0

24
1

24
2

24
3

24
4

24
5

A
B

C
2"

 m
et

er
 - 

$5
0,

11
3

3"
 m

et
er

 - 
$1

00
,3

20
4"

 m
et

er
 - 

$1
56

,7
35

6"
 m

et
er

 - 
$3

13
,3

76
  *

 S
ew

er
 C

ol
le

ct
io

n 
(C

ity
 S

ys
te

m
)

 $
6,

75
5 

  p
er

 (E
DU

) e
qu

iv
al

en
t d

w
el

lin
g 

  *
 S

ew
er

 T
re

at
m

en
t p

ro
vi

de
d 

by
 o

th
er

s (
pa

ss
-th

ro
ug

h)
 to

 O
ak

 Lo
dg

e 
W

at
er

 S
er

vi
ce

s o
r 

  *
 P

ar
ks

 $
9,

38
8 

pe
r (

RP
E)

 re
sid

en
tia

l p
op

ul
at

io
n 

  *
 S

to
rm

w
at

er
 $

3,
61

6 
 p

er
 (E

DU
) e

qu
iv

al
en

t d
w

el
lin

g 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
RI

GH
T-

OF
-W

AY
 (R

OW
) R

AT
ES

**
Fr

an
ch

ise
 A

dm
in

ist
ra

tiv
e 

Re
vi

ew
$5

,0
00

.0
0

RO
W

 Li
ce

ns
e 

Ap
pl

ica
tio

n 
Fe

e 
$1

50
.0

0
RO

W
 R

eg
ist

ra
tio

n 
Ap

pl
ica

tio
n 

Fe
e 

(N
on

-o
w

ne
r/

Ut
ili

ty
 P

ro
vi

de
r o

nl
y)

$1
00

.0
0

RO
W

 U
se

 F
ee

: 
Ut

ili
ty

 O
pe

ra
to

r (
W

ire
lin

e 
Fa

cil
iti

es
)

5%
 o

f G
ro

ss
 R

ev
en

ue
s o

r, 
if 

no
 re

ve
nu

e 
Ut

ili
ty

 O
pe

ra
to

r (
W

ire
le

ss
 F

ac
ili

tie
s)

Sm
al

l W
ire

le
ss

 F
ac

ili
ty

: $
27

0 
pe

r 
Ut

ili
ty

 P
ro

vi
de

r
5%

 o
f G

ro
ss

 R
ev

en
ue

s 

M
in

im
um

 A
nn

ua
l R

ig
ht

-o
f-W

ay
 U

se
 F

ee
 *

**
   

   
   

   
   

TO
TA

L L
IN

EA
R 

FE
ET

 O
F 

UT
IL

IT
Y 

FA
CI

LI
TI

ES
 IN

 R
IG

HT
-O

F-
W

AY
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 U
p 

to
 5

,0
00

$6
,1

50
.0

0 
   

  $
6,

33
5.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 5

,0
01

 to
 1

0,
00

0
$9

,2
25

.0
0 

   
  $

9,
50

2.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 1
0,

00
1 

to
 2

0,
00

0
$1

2,
29

9.
00

   
$1

2,
66

8.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 M
or

e 
th

an
 2

0,
00

0
$1

8,
44

8.
00

   
$1

9,
00

1.
00

RO
W

 A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

fe
e 

fo
r S

m
al

l C
el

l W
ire

le
ss

 F
ac

ili
tie

s (
1-

5 
sit

es
)

$5
00

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  E

ac
h 

ad
di

tio
na

l S
ite

$1
00

.0
0

UT
ILI

TY
 B

ILL
IN

G 
RA

TE
S 

&
 U

TI
LIT

Y 
RI

GH
T 

OF
 W

AY
 R

AT
ES

EX
HI

BI
T 

A 
M

as
te

r F
ee

 S
ch

ed
ul

e 
Pa

ge
 8

10 - 11



24
6

24
7

24
8

24
9

25
0

25
1

25
2

25
3

25
4

25
5

25
6

25
7

25
8

25
9

26
0

26
1

26
2

26
3

26
4

26
5

26
6

26
7

26
8

26
9

27
0

27
1

A
B

C

   
  S

EW
ER

 R
AT

ES
 

Se
w

er
 In

sp
ec

tio
n 

Fe
e,

 e
xc

ep
t m

ob
ile

 h
om

es
, m

ot
or

 h
om

es
 a

nd
 tr

av
el

 tr
ai

le
rs

$1
00

.0
0

Se
w

er
 In

se
pc

tio
n 

Fe
e 

fo
r m

ob
ile

 h
om

es
, m

ot
or

 h
om

es
, a

nd
 tr

av
el

 tr
ai

le
rs

$5
0.

00
Oa

k 
Lo

dg
e 

W
at

er
 S

er
vi

ce
s S

ew
er

 C
ha

rg
e 

(P
as

s-
th

ro
ug

h)
**

**
*

$7
2.

38
  p

er
 m

on
th

 p
er

 E
DU

*
W

at
er

 E
nv

iro
nm

en
t S

er
vi

ce
s (

W
ES

) S
ew

er
 T

re
at

m
en

t C
ha

rg
e 

(P
as

s-
th

ro
ug

h)
**

**
*

$2
9.

30
  p

er
 m

on
th

 p
er

 E
DU

*

Ci
ty

 o
f G

la
ds

to
ne

 S
an

ita
ry

 S
ew

er
 C

ol
le

ct
io

n 
Ch

ar
ge

  
 $

34
.8

9 
   

$3
6.

29
 p

er
 m

on
th

 p
er

 E
DU

*

Lo
w

 In
co

m
e 

Ra
te

 R
ed

uc
tio

n 
- a

dj
us

te
d 

an
nu

al
ly

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
HU

D 
Ve

ry
 Lo

w
 In

co
m

e
Lim

its
 fo

r P
or

tla
nd

-V
an

co
uv

er
-H

ill
sb

or
o,

 O
R-

W
A 

M
SA

(5
0%

) r
ed

uc
tio

n 
of

 b
as

e 
ra

te
s l

ist
ed

 
ab

ov
e

    
 S

TO
RM

W
AT

ER
 R

AT
ES

Re
sid

en
tia

l S
to

rm
w

at
er

 F
ee

 p
er

 E
DU

* 
ea

ch
 m

on
th

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  (

Cl
as

s 0
01

 a
cc

ou
nt

s)
$1

4.
28

   
 $

14
.8

5

Lo
w

 In
co

m
e 

Ra
te

 R
ed

uc
tio

n 
- a

dj
us

te
d 

an
nu

al
ly

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
HU

D 
Ve

ry
 Lo

w
 In

co
m

e
Lim

its
 fo

r P
or

tla
nd

-V
an

co
uv

er
-H

ill
sb

or
o,

 O
R-

W
A 

M
SA

(5
0%

) r
ed

uc
tio

n 
of

 b
as

e 
ra

te
s l

ist
ed

 
ab

ov
e

No
n-

Si
ng

le
 F

am
ily

 R
es

id
en

tia
l S

to
rm

w
at

er
 F

ee
 (P

er
 3

,0
00

 sq
ua

re
 fe

et
 o

f i
m

pe
rv

io
us

 a
re

a 
ea

ch
 m

on
th

)
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  (
Cl

as
s 0

02
 a

nd
 0

03
 a

cc
ou

nt
s)

$1
4.

28
   

 $
14

.8
5

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  (

Im
pe

rv
io

us
 a

re
a 

is 
ca

lcu
la

te
d 

ba
se

d 
on

 th
e 

cit
y'

s G
IS

 sy
st

em
 d

at
a)

    
  W

AT
ER

 R
AT

ES
 (m

on
th

ly
)

Ba
se

 M
et

er
 C

ha
rg

e
M

et
er

 S
ize

   
   

   
   

 
   

(n
o 

w
at

er
 in

clu
de

d)
   

3/
4"

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
$3

1.
21

   
   

$3
2.

46
 1

.0
"  

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
$4

9.
65

   
   

$5
1.

64
1.

5"
   

   
   

   
   

   
$7

7.
45

   
   

$8
0.

55
2.

0"
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

$1
38

.5
0 

   
$1

44
.0

4
3.

0"
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

$1
72

.5
3 

   
$1

79
.4

3
4.

0"
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

$2
06

.5
8 

   
$2

14
.8

4
6.

0"
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

$2
29

.5
7 

   
$2

38
.7

5
8.

0"
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

$2
86

.9
8 

   
$2

98
.4

6

EX
HI

BI
T 

A 
M

as
te

r F
ee

 S
ch

ed
ul

e 
Pa

ge
 9

10 - 12



27
2

27
3

27
4

27
5

27
6

27
7

27
8

27
9

28
0

28
1

28
2

28
3

28
4

28
5

28
6

28
7

28
8

28
9

29
0

29
1

29
2

29
3

29
4

29
5

29
6

29
7

29
8

29
9

30
0

A
B

C

Lo
w

 In
co

m
e 

Ra
te

 R
ed

uc
tio

n 
- a

dj
us

te
d 

an
nu

al
ly

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
HU

D 
Ve

ry
 Lo

w
 In

co
m

e
Lim

its
 fo

r P
or

tla
nd

-V
an

co
uv

er
-H

ill
sb

or
o,

 O
R-

W
A 

M
SA

(5
0%

) r
ed

uc
tio

n 
of

 b
as

e 
ra

te
s l

ist
ed

 
ab

ov
e

W
at

er
 R

at
e 

Un
it 

Co
st

 P
er

 H
un

dr
ed

 C
ub

ic 
Fe

et
 O

f W
at

er
 (C

CF
) 7

48
 g

al
lo

ns
Us

ag
e 

Br
ac

ke
t  

   
   

   
Ra

te
Bl

oc
k 

Ra
te

 1
1 

- 6
 U

ni
ts

   
   

   
   

   
   

  $
1.

76
   

$1
.8

3/
un

it
Bl

oc
k 

Ra
te

 2
7 

- 1
0 

Un
its

   
   

   
   

   
   $

2.
78

   
$2

.8
9/

un
it

Bl
oc

k 
Ra

te
 3

11
 U

ni
ts

 a
nd

 U
p 

   
   

   
$3

.7
9 

  $
3.

94
/u

ni
t

W
at

er
 ra

te
s f

or
 p

ro
pe

rt
ie

s o
ut

sid
e 

th
e 

cit
y 

lim
its

 
Ad

d 
33

%
 to

 a
bo

ve
 ra

te
s

    
 W

AT
ER

 U
TI

LIT
Y 

CH
AR

GE
S

Lo
w

 In
co

m
e 

Ra
te

 V
io

la
tio

n 
Fe

e 
As

 se
t f

or
th

 in
 O

RS
 1

64
.1

25
Di

sc
on

ne
ct

/R
ec

on
ne

ct
 C

ha
rg

e 
(if

 g
re

at
er

 th
an

 3
0 

Da
ys

 fo
r W

at
er

 &
 S

ew
er

 b
as

e 
ch

ar
ge

s)
$2

5.
00

 e
ac

h 
tim

e
M

ai
le

d 
La

te
 N

ot
ice

/S
hu

t O
ff 

No
tif

ica
tio

n
$7

.0
0

Sh
ut

 O
ff 

Do
or

 H
an

ge
r (

2n
d 

La
te

 F
ee

)
$2

5.
00

Sh
ut

 O
ff 

W
at

er
$2

5.
00

Tu
rn

 O
n 

W
at

er
 (d

ur
in

g 
bu

sin
es

s h
ou

rs
)

$2
5.

00
Tu

rn
 O

n 
W

at
er

 (a
fte

r b
us

in
es

s h
ou

rs
)

$1
75

.0
0

W
at

er
 M

et
er

 T
am

pe
rin

g 
Ch

ar
ge

$2
50

.0
0

Co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

M
an

ag
em

en
t P

la
n

$7
30

.0
0

Fl
oo

dp
la

in
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t P

er
m

it 
- T

yp
e 

I
$7

85
.0

0
Ha

bi
ta

t C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
Ar

ea
 -D

ev
el

op
m

en
t P

er
m

it-
Pu

rs
ua

nt
 to

 S
ub

se
ct

io
n 

17
.2

5.
10

0 
of

 
$1

,6
85

.0
0

Ha
bi

ta
t C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

Ar
ea

 - 
M

ap
 V

er
ifi

ca
tio

n
$9

50
.0

0
St

re
am

 C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
Ar

ea
 P

er
m

it
$9

60
.0

0
W

at
er

 Q
ua

lit
y 

Re
so

ur
ce

 A
re

a 
Di

st
ric

t -
 B

ou
nd

ar
y 

Ve
rif

ica
tio

n
$7

85
.0

0
W

at
er

 Q
ua

lit
y 

Re
so

ur
ce

 A
re

a 
Di

st
ric

t -
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t P

er
m

it
$1

,6
85

.0
0

W
ill

am
et

te
 R

iv
er

 G
re

en
w

ay
 P

er
m

it
$1

,4
70

.0
0

* 
   

   
   

  E
qu

iv
al

en
t D

w
el

lin
g 

Un
it 

(E
DU

)

W
AT

ER
 R

ES
OU

RC
E 

AP
PL

IC
AT

IO
NS

:

EX
HI

BI
T 

A 
M

as
te

r F
ee

 S
ch

ed
ul

e 
Pa

ge
 1

0

10 - 13



30
1

30
2

30
3

A
B

C

**
* 

   
 T

hi
s r

at
e 

sh
al

l i
nc

re
as

e 
3%

 a
nn

ua
lly

 o
n 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

1s
t o

f e
ac

h 
ye

ar
 b

eg
in

ni
ng

 in
 Ja

nu
ar

y,
 2

01
7.

**
**

*T
he

se
 ra

te
s a

re
 se

t b
y 

Oa
k 

Lo
dg

e 
W

at
er

 S
er

vi
ce

 a
nd

 W
at

er
 E

nv
io

rn
m

en
t S

er
vi

ce
s (

W
ES

). 
An

y 
up

da
te

s t
o 

th
es

e 
ra

te
s w

ill
 b

e 

**
   

   
   

Te
rm

s s
ha

ll 
ha

ve
 th

e 
m

ea
ni

ng
 se

t f
or

th
 in

 G
M

C 
Ch

ap
te

r 1
2.

24
 e

xc
ep

t t
ha

t "
Sm

al
l W

ire
le

ss
 F

ac
ili

ty
" s

ha
ll 

ha
ve

 th
e 

m
ea

ni
ng

 se
t f

or
th

 in
 4

7 

EX
HI

BI
T 

A 
M

as
te

r F
ee

 S
ch

ed
ul

e 
Pa

ge
 1

1

10 - 14



11



11 - 1



RESOLUTION NO. 1232 
 

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING A POLICY FOR SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT CHARGE 
CALCULATIONS IN CONNECTION WITH COMMERCIAL TO RESIDENTIAL 

CONVERSIONS, AS REQUIRED BY HOUSE BILL 2984 
 

WHEREAS, House Bill (HB) 2984 amended ORS 197.308 to allow the conversion of buildings from 
commercial to residential use within urban growth boundaries of cities with a population 
of 10,000 or greater, under certain conditions; and 

 
WHEREAS, the current population of the City of Gladstone (the “City”) is less greater than 10,000 

people; and  
 

WHEREAS, HB 2984, Section 1(5)(c) permits cities to charge system development charges (“SDCs”) 
in connection with a commercial to residential use conversion for a contemplated housing 
development if “(A) the charge is calculated pursuant to a specific adopted policy for 
commercial to residential conversions adopted on or before December 31, 2023; or (B) the 
charge is for water or wastewater and includes an offset for at least 100 percent of the 
water or wastewater system development charges paid when the building was originally 
constructed;” and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council believes that there is no need to amend the current SDC rates, 

methodologies or code language to address the requirements of HB 2984, but rather 
believes the City may adopt a policy consistent with each of those in order to calculate 
SDCs in connection with commercial to residential conversions pursuant to HB 2984. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Gladstone City Council, a municipal corporation of 
the State of Oregon, the following: 

 
1. Consistent with Section 13.16.130 of the Gladstone Municipal Code, the City shall impose 

applicable system development charges upon a change of use from commercial to residential 
under HB 2984, provided that a credit against the charge for residential use shall be given for any 
previous SDCs paid for the existing commercial use.  Any such credit shall not exceed the new 
SDC and no refund shall be made on account of such credit.  
 

2. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon adoption by the City Council. 
 

 
This Resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of Gladstone, this _______ day of 
_____________________, 2023.  
 
        ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________________  __________________________________ 
Michael Milch, Mayor     Tami Bannick, City Recorder 

11 - 2



12



City of Gladstone 
Staff Report  

              
 
Report Date:  December 5, 2023  
Meeting Date:  December 12, 2023 
To:    Gladstone City Council   
From:   Jacque M. Betz, City Administrator  
         
AGENDA ITEM 
Consider approval of the Oregon Department of Transportation (ODOT) Local Agency 
Certification Program Supplemental Project Agreement between ODOT, Clackamas 
County, and the City of Gladstone to deliver the Trolley Trail Bridge Project through the 
Local Agency Certification Program. 
 
History/Background 
In 2017, the City was awarded $201,892 Surface Transportation Program funds from the 
Regional Funds Allocation to study the feasibility and location of rebuilding an abandoned 
trolley trail bridge crossing the Clackamas River in the City of Gladstone that collapsed in 
2014 as an extension of the Trolley Trail.  Studying the feasibility of replacing the Trolley 
Trail Bridge for pedestrians and bicyclists provided a much-needed active transportation 
link across the Clackamas River and become the signature landmark for the popular 
Trolley Trail. 
 
The City requested that Clackamas County complete the feasibility study on its behalf as 
a Supplemental Project under the Local Agency Certification Program. Oregon Revised 
Statutes (ORS) 190.110, 366.572 and 366.576 gives authority to the State to enter 
Cooperative Improvement Agreements with counties, cities, and local governments for 
the performance of work on certain types of improvement projects.  ODOT and 
Clackamas County entered into a Local Agency Certification Program Agreement No. 
30923 in January 2017. The Local Agency Certification Program allows for a certified 
agency (such as the County) to perform work on behalf of a non-certified agency (such 
as the City). Essentially this means that ODOT gives authority to Clackamas County to 
perform the work on behalf of the City.  
 
This work involved an extensive public outreach process in 2020 that resulted in three 
options for the City to consider. These options are as follows 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

12 - 1



 
 
Option #1 
Three-Span Precast Concrete Girder- A precast, prestressed concrete bridge was 
considered because it is a common type of bridge structure in Oregon. The total project 
cost is estimated to be $4.9 million in 2020 dollars, which is the lowest amongst the 
alternatives. The bridge would be harder to permit because of the columns in the river. 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

12 - 2



 
 
Option #2 
Bridge Structure – Three-Span Steel Girder  
A steel truss bridge was considered because it is a common bridge type in Oregon. The 
total project cost is estimated to be $5.0 million in 2020 dollars which is second lowest 
amongst the alternatives. The bridge would be harder to permit because of the columns 
in the river. 
  
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 12 - 3



 
Option #3 
Bridge Structure – Single-Span Steel Truss  
A steel truss bridge was considered because it is similar to the previous Trolley Trail 
Railroad bridge. The total project cost is estimated to be $6.6 million in today’s dollars, 
which is second highest amongst the alternatives. The bridge would be the easiest to 
permit because no columns would be in the river. 
  
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

12 - 4



12 - 5



State/Certified Agency/Non-certified Agency 
Agreement No. 73000-00003197 

1 

A157-
G092418 

 

OREGON DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
LOCAL AGENCY CERTIFICATION PROGRAM 

SUPPLEMENTAL PROJECT AGREEMENT No. 73000-00003197 
CERTIFIED AGENCY PERFORMING ON BEHALF OF A NON-CERTIFIED AGENCY 

 Trolley Trail Bridge: Portland Ave. – Clackamas River Greenway Trail 

THIS SUPPLEMENTAL PROJECT AGREEMENT (Agreement) is made and entered into by and 
between THE STATE OF OREGON, acting by and through its Department of Transportation, 
hereinafter referred to as "State” or “ODOT,” CLACKAMAS COUNTY, acting by and through its elected 
officials, hereinafter referred to as “Certified Agency,” and CITY OF GLADSTONE acting by and through 
its elected officials, hereinafter referred to as "Non-certified Agency,” all herein referred to individually 
as “Party” or collectively as “Parties.”   

RECITALS 

1. By the authority granted in Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS) 190.110, 366.572 and 366.576, State 
may enter into cooperative agreements with counties, cities and units of local governments for the 
performance of work on certain types of improvement projects with the allocation of costs on terms 
and conditions mutually agreeable to the contracting parties. 

2. ODOT and Certified Agency entered into Local Agency Certification Program Agreement No. 29025, 
executed on September 10, 2014 (Local Agency Certification Program Agreement).  The 
Certification Program allows ODOT to certify a Local Agency’s procedures and delegates authority 
to the certified Local Agency to administer federal-aid projects.  The Local Agency Certification 
Program Agreement also allows a certified agency to perform work on behalf of a non-certified 
agency.  The certified agency is a subrecipient of federal funds and will be eligible for reimbursement 
as the delivering agency.  The non-certified agency is a third party and is not eligible for federal 
reimbursement.  

3. Certification status information as of the date of execution of this Agreement: 

a. Certified Agency is fully certified in the following functional area(s):  
• consultant selection (formal and informal process(es))  
• design (excluding bridge design)   
• “advertise, bid, and award” for construction contracts  
• construction contract administration  

b. Certified Agency is conditionally certified in the following functional areas: 
• consultant selection (direct appoint process) 

c. Certified Agency is not currently seeking certification in the following functional area(s): 
• bridge design 

d. Certified Agency has completed or is in the process of completing the number of test project(s) 
required by ODOT for the Certified Agency to become fully certified in the following functional 
areas:  

• consultant selection (direct appoint process) 
  

The Parties are in the process of assessing the Certified Agency’s test project(s) and required 
program documents to transition the Certified Agency from conditional to full certification for the 

12 - 6



functional areas listed in this subsection, and anticipate a successful transition. Therefore, the 
project described in this Agreement is not one of the test project(s) described in the Local Agency 
Certification Program Agreement for the functional areas listed in this subsection. 
 

e. Certified Agency has had its Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA)-related design exception and 
curb ramp inspection processes reviewed and approved by ODOT and FHWA for use on 
federally funded projects. 

 
4. The purpose of this Agreement is to establish the Parties’ terms and obligations to deliver the Trolley 

Trail Bridge Project through the Local Agency Certification Program as a Certified Agency 
Supplemental Project.  The “Project” is defined under Terms of Agreement, Section I, paragraph 2 of 
this Agreement. This Agreement covers a portion of the Preliminary Engineering (PE) activities up to 
30% or Type, Size, Location Report for bridge project (TSL) of the Project only and will be amended 
if and when future funding for completion of PE phase and phases are added to the Project. 

5. Trolley Trail Bridge: Portland Ave.  – Clackamas River Greenway is a part of the street system under 
the jurisdiction and control of the City of Gladstone.  

6. The Project was selected as part of the Regional Flexible Fund Allocation (RFFA) program and may 
include a combination of federal, state, and local funds.  

7. The Parties recognize that the Local Agency Certification Program Agreement was entered into 
between ODOT and Certified Agency only, and that this Agreement includes Non-Certified Agency 
as an additional third party.  Accordingly, some terms in this Agreement have been modified to 
address the rights and obligations of all three parties.  The Parties intend these modified terms to 
supersede any corresponding terms in the Local Agency Certification Program Agreement.  

NOW THEREFORE, the premises being in general as stated in the foregoing Recitals, it is agreed by 
and between the Parties hereto as follows: 

TERMS OF AGREEMENT 

I. Project Overview 
 

1. The Parties agree that Certified Agency shall perform work for Non-certified Agency    in accordance 
with the Local Agency Certification Program Agreement No. 29025, which is hereby incorporated 
by reference, and the terms of this Supplemental Project Agreement. Non-certified Agency 
acknowledges that it is not a Party to Agreement No. 29025 and that Agreement No. 29025 confers 
no obligations or benefits to Non-certified Agency.   

2. The Parties agree to Certified Agency delivering a portion of the PE phase of the Trolley Trail Bridge: 
Portland Ave – Clackamas River Greenway Trail, hereinafter referred to as the “Project”.  
Specifically, the Project includes Certified Agency completing project development activities for a 
new pedestrian bridge across the Clackamas River, identifying type, size, and location alternatives 
for the pedestrian bridge, which will link workers, residents, and tourists in Gladstone and Oregon 
City.  The proposed pedestrian bridge will increase travel options and improve safety and mobility 
for pedestrians and cyclists.  The location of the Project is shown on the sketch map attached hereto, 
marked “Exhibit A”, and by this reference made a part hereof. 

3. Parties anticipate Certified Agency delivering the remaining portion of the PE phase and additional 
phases of the Project. Upon full funding of the PE phase and additional phases, and the addition of 
the additional phases to the Project in the Statewide Transportation Improvement Program (STIP), 
this Agreement will be amended to include completion of PE phase and additional phases work, 
and costs. If the Parties do not amend this Agreement to add additional phases pertaining to 

12 - 7



construction and maintenance, the construction and maintenance provisions in this Agreement will 
not apply.  

4. Non-certified Agency grants ODOT and Certified Agency the authority to enter onto Non-certified 
Agency’s right of way as needed to complete this Project.  Certified Agency grants ODOT and Non-
certified Agency the authority to enter onto Certified Agency’s right of way as needed to complete 
this Project. 

5. The total Project cost is estimated at $1,369,442.00, which is subject to change. The federal and 
state funds for this Project are limited to $1,228,800.31.  Certified Agency shall be responsible for 
all remaining costs, including any non-participating costs, all costs in excess of the federal or state 
funds, and the 10.27 percent match for all eligible costs.  Certified Agency shall invoice Non-certified 
Agency for all costs as agreed to between the local public agencies pursuant to Section III, 
paragraph 3. Any unused federal or state funds obligated to this project will not be paid out by the 
applicable funding agency and will not be available for use by Certified Agency or Non-certified 
Agency for this Agreement. “Total Project Cost” means the cost to complete the entire Project, and 
includes any federal funds, state funds, local matching funds, and any other funds.  Certified Agency 
will report the final cost of each phase of the Project at the completion of each phase, as well as the 
final Total Project Cost at the end of the Project, to the ODOT Regional Local Agency Liaison. 

6. Parties agree ODOT will perform Project oversight in accordance with the Local Agency Certification 
Program Agreement, and ODOT will provide Certified Agency and Non-certified Agency with a 
preliminary estimate for the cost of ODOT’s work. Certified Agency and Non-certified Agency 
understand that ODOT’s costs are estimates only and Certified Agency agrees to pay ODOT’s 
actual cost incurred per the Terms of this Agreement. 

7. Parties agree Certified Agency shall perform Project management in accordance with the Local 
Agency Certification Program Agreement No. 29025, and Certified Agency shall provide ODOT and 
Non-certified Agency with a preliminary estimate for the cost of Certified Agency’s work.  ODOT and 
Non-certified Agency understand that Certified Agency’s costs are estimates only, and Non-Certified 
Agency agrees to pay Certified Agency’s actual cost incurred per the Terms of this Agreement. 

8. ODOT may conduct periodic inspections during the useful life of the Project to verify that Project is 
being properly maintained and continues to serve the purpose for which federal funds were 
provided. 

9. The Parties agree that the useful life of the Project is 10 years. 

II. Funding  
 

1. The Parties acknowledge that the Federal funds are provided under Title 23, United States Code 
and agree to meet all applicable federal requirements.  

2. ODOT considers Certified Agency a subrecipient of the federal funds it receives as reimbursement 
under this Agreement. The Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) number and title for 
this Project is 20.205, Highway Planning and Construction. 

3. By signing this Agreement, Certified Agency agrees to comply with the provisions of the Federal 
Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) and is subject to the following award terms:   

• http://edocket.access.gpo.gov/2010/pdf/2010-22705.pdf, and 
• http://edocket.access.gpo.gov/2010/pdf/2010-22706.pdf.  

 
If, in the preceding fiscal year, Certified Agency received more than 80% of its gross revenues 
from the federal government, those federal funds exceed $25,000,000 annually, and the public 

12 - 8



does not have access to information about the compensation of executives through reports filed 
under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 or section 6104 of the Internal 
Revenue Code of 1986, Certified Agency shall report the total compensation and names of its top 
five executives to ODOT. Certified Agency shall report said information to ODOT within 14 
calendar days of execution of this Agreement and annually thereafter, utilizing the FFATA form 
attached hereto as Exhibit B. 

4. Certified Agency, as a recipient of federal funds, pursuant to this Agreement with ODOT, shall 
assume sole liability for Certified Agency’s breach of any federal statutes, rules, program 
requirements and grant provisions applicable to the federal funds, and shall, upon Certified 
Agency’s breach of any such conditions that requires ODOT to return funds to the United States 
Department of Transportation (USDOT) Federal Highway Administration (FHWA), hold harmless 
and indemnify ODOT for an amount equal to the funds received under this Agreement; or if legal 
limitations apply to the indemnification ability of Certified Agency, the indemnification amount shall 
be the maximum amount of funds available for expenditure, including any available contingency 
funds or other available non-appropriated funds, up to the amount received under this Agreement. 

5. If Certified Agency fails to meet the requirements of this Agreement or the underlying federal 
regulations, ODOT may withhold the Certified Agency’s proportional share of Highway Fund 
distribution necessary to reimburse ODOT for costs incurred by such Certified Agency breach. 

6. Information required of pass-through entities by 2 CFR 200.332(a)(1) shall be contained in the 
USDOT FHWA Federal Aid Project Agreement between ODOT and FHWA for this Project, a copy 
of which shall be provided by ODOT to Certified Agency with the Notice to Proceed.  

7. ODOT will submit the requests for federal funding to the FHWA. The federal funding for this Project 
is contingent upon approval of each funding request by FHWA. Any work performed outside the 
period of performance approved by FHWA or outside the scope of work will be considered 
nonparticipating and paid for at Certified Agency expense. 

8. ODOT’s Regional Local Agency Liaison or designee will provide Certified Agency with a written 
notice to proceed for the Project when FHWA approval has been secured and funds are available 
for expenditure on this Project.  

9. Certified Agency guarantees the availability of Certified Agency funding in an amount required to 
fully fund Certified Agency’s participation in the Project. 

10. Non-certified Agency guarantees the availability of funding in an amount required to fully reimburse 
Certified Agency for the match, any non-participating costs, and any costs not covered by state and 
federal funding that Certified Agency expends on behalf of the Project. 

III. Invoicing and Payments  
 

1. Certified Agency shall make all payments for work performed on the Project, including all consultant 
and contractor costs, and invoice ODOT for one-hundred percent (100%) of its costs. ODOT shall 
reimburse approved Certified Agency invoices at the pro-rated federal share of 89.73 percent. 
Certified Agency is responsible for 100% of all costs beyond the federal and state reimbursement 
including the 10.27 percent match for all eligible costs, any non-participating costs, and all costs in 
excess of the federal or state funds.  

2. Indirect Cost Rate:  

a. Certified Agency shall invoice ODOT using the current, approved indirect cost rate on file with 
ODOT. 

12 - 9



b. As required by 2 CFR 200.332(a)(4), the indirect cost rates for this project at the time the agreement 
is written is 31.99% de minimis rate per 2 CFR 200.414. This rate may change during the term of 
this Agreement upon notice to ODOT and ODOT’s subsequent written approval. 

c. If the approved rate(s) change(s) during the term of this Agreement, Agency shall invoice ODOT 
using the current indirect cost rate(s) for the Project on file with ODOT at the time the work is 
performed.  If Agency does not have an approved indirect cost rate(s) on file with ODOT at the time 
the work is performed, Agency shall invoice ODOT using a zero percent (0%) rate. 

3. Certified Agency shall invoice Non-certified Agency for the federal match share, any non-
participating costs, and all costs expended for the Project not reimbursed by ODOT.  Upon receipt 
of Certified Agency invoice(s), Non-certified Agency shall reimburse Certified Agency for the federal 
match share, any non-participating costs, and all costs expended for the Project not reimbursed by 
ODOT. Failure of Non-certified Agency to make such match payments to Certified Agency may 
result in ODOT withholding of Non-certified Agency’s proportional allocation of State Highway Trust 
Funds until such costs are paid.  

4. Non-certified Agency and Certified Agency agree that any disputes arising on this Project regarding 
Certified Agency’s invoices or Non-certified Agency payment of invoices identified in the preceding 
paragraph are to be resolved between the Non-certified Agency and Certified Agency only, except 
to the extent otherwise provided in Section III, Paragraph 3 above.   

5. ODOT will invoice FHWA and Certified Agency for ODOT's Project costs, and Certified Agency 
agrees to reimburse ODOT for the federal-aid matching state share and any non-participating costs 
as determined in accordance with Section III Paragraph 3, above, upon receipt of invoice.  Failure 
of Certified Agency to make such payments to ODOT may result in withholding of Certified Agency’s 
proportional allocation of State Highway Trust Funds until such costs are paid.    

IV. Certified Agency Obligations 
 
1. Certified Agency Work on this Project:  

a. Certified Agency shall perform the following functional area(s) in which Certified Agency is fully 
certified and as authorized by the Local Agency Certification Program Agreement: 

• consultant selection (formal and informal process(es)) 

• design (excluding bridge design)  

• “advertise, bid, and award” the construction contract  

• construction contract administration  
b. While Certified Agency is in the process of transitioning from conditional to full certification, by 

the terms of this Agreement and for only this Project, Certified Agency is authorized and shall 
perform as if fully certified in the following functional area: 

• consultant selection (direct appoint)   
Certified Agency understands that this Project is subject to the terms and conditions of the Local 
Agency Certification Program Agreement and may also be subject to the terms of a corrective 
action plan and increased monitoring if ODOT’s evaluation of Certified Agency’s test project(s) 
or program documents identifies the need for corrective action.  

c. Bridge design work must be performed by qualified consultants contracted by Certified Agency 
and under the supervision of Certified Agency’s qualified staff identified in section IV. paragraph 
5.  

12 - 10



2. Independent Contractor Requirement: Certified Agency shall perform the services under this 
Agreement as an independent contractor and shall be exclusively responsible for all costs and 
expenses related to its employment of individuals to perform the work under this Agreement 
including, but not limited to, retirement contributions, workers’ compensation, unemployment taxes, 
and state and federal income tax withholdings. 

3. Contractor and Subcontractor Indemnification: 

a. To the fullest extent permitted by law, and except to the extent otherwise void under 
ORS 30.140, Certified Agency shall require its contractor(s) and subcontractor(s) that are not 
units of local government as defined in ORS 190.003, if any, to indemnify, defend, save and hold 
harmless the State of Oregon, Oregon Transportation Commission and its members, 
Department of Transportation and its officers, employees and agents from and against any and 
all claims, actions, liabilities, damages, losses, or expenses, including attorneys’ fees, arising 
from a tort, as now or hereafter defined in ORS 30.260 (hereafter, referred to individually and 
collectively as “Claims”), to the extent such Claims are caused, or alleged to be caused, by the 
negligent or willful acts or omissions of Certified Agency's contractor or any of the officers, 
agents, employees or subcontractors of the contractor. It is the specific intention of the Parties 
that State shall, in all instances, except to the extent Claims arise solely from the negligent or 
willful acts or omissions of State, be indemnified from and against all Claims caused or alleged 
to be caused by the contractor or subcontractor. 

b. Any such indemnification shall also provide that neither Certified Agency's contractor and 
subcontractor nor any attorney engaged by Certified Agency's contractor and subcontractor shall 
defend any claim in the name of the State of Oregon or any agency of the State of Oregon, nor 
purport to act as legal representative of the State of Oregon or any of its agencies, without the 
prior written consent of the Oregon Attorney General. The State of Oregon may, at any time at 
its election assume its own defense and settlement in the event that it determines that Certified 
Agency's contractor is prohibited from defending the State of Oregon, or that Certified Agency's 
contractor is not adequately defending the State of Oregon's interests, or that an important 
governmental principle is at issue or that it is in the best interests of the State of Oregon to do 
so. The State of Oregon reserves all rights to pursue claims it may have against Certified 
Agency's contractor if the State of Oregon elects to assume its own defense.  

4. Cargo Preference Act: Certified Agency shall ensure compliance with the Cargo Preference Act 
and implementing regulations (46 CFR Part 381) for use of United States-flag ocean vessels 
transporting materials or equipment acquired specifically for the Project.  Strict compliance is 
required, including but not limited to the clauses in 46 CFR 381.7(a) and (b) which are incorporated 
by reference.  Certified Agency shall also include this requirement in all contracts and ensure that 
contractors include the requirement in their subcontracts. 

5. Local Bridge Program Requirements: 

a. Certified Agency shall submit Quarterly Progress Reports to State’s  Regional Local Agency 
Liaison and State’s Bridge STIP Coordinator and PCR Form to State’s Regional Local Agency 
Liaison following the process as listed in Exhibit C.  Certified Agency agrees to the conditions 
set forth in Exhibit C. 

b. Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, State and Certified Agency agree that the 
design of the Project shall meet the American Association of State Highway and Transportation 
Officials (AASHTO) Load Resistance Factor Design (LRFD) Bridge Design Specifications 
(current version) and AASHTO Guide Specifications for LRFD Seismic Bridge Design and ODOT 
Load and Resistance Factor Rating (LRFR), Tier 2 Load rating. 

12 - 11



c. Certified Agency or its consultant must provide written notification to State’s Bridge Inventory 
Coordinator when a bridge project is complete so the initial inspection can be scheduled.  This 
information must be submitted within 90 days of the issuance of Second Notification pursuant to 
Oregon Standard Specification 00180.50(g), or Certified Agency’s approved equivalent. 

d. Certified Agency or its consultant must email the following information for any bridge project to 
bridge@odot.state.or.us and to the State’s Senior Local Bridge Standards Engineer at 
Holly.M.WINSTON@odot.state.or.us. This information must be received within ninety (90) days 
of the issuance of Second Notification pursuant to Oregon Standard Specification 00180.50(g), 
or Certified Agency’s approved equivalent.    

1) PDF copy of As-Constructed Drawings (signed, final copy, which contains final construction 
notes). 

2) PDF Copy of the Foundation Report. 

3) Pile Records and drill logs (If applicable). 

4) Hydraulic Reports (scour analysis report included in this report) 

5) Load Rating calculation book: may either be a digital pdf document that is digitally sealed 
and signed, or a hard copy that is a printed, stamped, bound and labeled.  Certified Agency 
shall provide a stamped report with all electronic files to the State’s Senior Local Bridge 
Standards Engineer when Project is complete. 

e. Certified Agency’s approved qualified staff is Joel Howie, a Qualified Agency Project Manager 
in accordance with the Appendix to Chapter 14 of the Local Agency Guidelines Manual. Any 
change to Certified Agency’s qualified staff is subject to State’s review and written approval.  

f. Certified Agency shall submit and ODOT Local Bridge Section will review the consultant services 
agreement, cost proposal, and the design acceptance package in coordination with State’s 
Regional Local Agency Liaison.  

V. Americans with Disabilities Act Compliance:  
 

1. General:  Certified Agency agrees to comply with Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 and 
the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 as amended (together, “ADA”) as identified in paragraph 
1 of the General Provisions section of the Local Agency Certification Program Agreement, and to 
utilize ODOT standards to assess and ensure Project compliance with the ADA. 

2. ADA Design Standards and Construction Specifications: Certified Agency agrees to utilize the 
following standards to assess and ensure that the Project and all component activities comply with 
ADA requirements, including ensuring that all plans and proposed alternatives for future design or 
construction of pedestrian, bicycle, and transit routes and facilities will result in ADA-compliant 
facilities and improvements. Certified Agency agrees to comply with the design and construction 
standards and the design exception documentation and approval requirements agreed to in the 
Standards section of the Local Agency Certification Program Agreement. In addition, with respect 
to ADA-related design standards, design exception approvals, construction specifications, and 
inspections, Certified Agency agrees to comply with the following: 

i.   For portions of the Project on or along the Oregon State Highway System (state highway), 
Certified Agency shall apply ODOT’s current ADA-related design standards, construction 
specifications, and design exception documentation and approval requirements for design, 
construction, or alteration of Project sidewalks, curb ramps, and pedestrian-activated signals, as 
applicable to the Project, including using the ODOT Highway Design Manual, ODOT Design 

12 - 12



Exception process, ODOT Standard Drawings, ODOT Construction Specifications, and 
providing a temporary pedestrian accessible route plan and current ODOT Curb Ramp 
Inspection form. Certified Agency further agrees to utilize ODOT standards to assess and ensure 
Project compliance with the ADA, and to document ramp inspections per subsection (c.)(i.) 
below. Design exceptions on State-owned facilities must be approved by State. For project 
locations on or along State-owned portions of the National Highway System (“NHS”) design 
exceptions must be approved by State and/or FHWA. 

ii.  For portions of the Project not on or along a state highway, including locally-owned portions 
of the NHS, Certified Agency shall apply its own ADA-compliant design standards, construction 
specifications, design exception documentation, and approval process, and inspection 
documentation process, as approved by State and FHWA for use on federally funded projects. 

3. ADA Inspection Forms: Prior to issuing the Second Notification, per Oregon Standard 
Specification 00180.50(g) or Certified Agency’s approved equivalent, Certified Agency agrees 
to submit to State the following: 

i.  For all curb ramps constructed or altered as part of this Project on or along a state highway, 
submit completed ODOT Curb Ramp Inspection Form 734-5020 to the address on the form as 
well as to State’s Regional Local Agency Liaison. The completed form is the required 
documentation from Certified Agency that each curb ramp meets ODOT standards and is ADA 
compliant. ODOT’s fillable Curb Ramp Inspection Form 734-5020 and instructions are available 
at the following website: 

https://www.oregon.gov/ODOT/Engineering/Pages/Accessibility.aspx  

ii.  For all curb ramps not located on or along a state highway, Certified Agency shall complete 
and keep on file Certified Agency’s ODOT- and FHWA-approved ADA curb ramp inspection form 
(or other approved document) to show that each Project curb ramp meets Certified Agency’s 
curb ramp standards and is ADA compliant or conforms to Certified Agency’s approved ADA 
design exception.   

4. State Inspection: Certified Agency shall promptly notify ODOT of Project completion and 
allow State to inspect Project sidewalks, curb ramps, and pedestrian-activated signals, as 
applicable to the Project, located on or along the state highway prior to acceptance of Project 
by Certified Agency and prior to release of any Certified Agency contractor. 
 

5. Work Zone Access: Certified Agency shall ensure that temporary pedestrian routes are 
provided through or around any Project work zone in accordance with the applicable ODOT 
standards.  For any work zone on or along the state highway, any such temporary pedestrian 
route shall include directional and informational signs and include accessibility features equal 
to or better than the features present in the existing pedestrian facility. Certified Agency shall 
also ensure that advance notice of any temporary pedestrian route on or along the state 
highway is provided in accessible format to the public, people with disabilities, and disability 
organizations at least ten (10) days prior to the start of construction in accordance with ODOT 
standards and processes. 
 

6. Reimbursement: Unless Certified Agency has an approved design exception, State will only 
reimburse Certified Agency for work that meets the applicable ODOT standards, regardless of 
whether the work is on a State-owned or a local agency-owned facility. 

7. On-going Maintenance Obligation: Certified Agency and Non-certified Agency shall each ensure 
that any portions of the Project under their respective maintenance jurisdictions are maintained in 
compliance with the ADA throughout the useful life of the Project. This includes, but is not limited 
to, Certified Agency and Non-certified Agency each ensuring that: 

12 - 13



  
a. Pedestrian access is maintained as required by the ADA, 

b. Any complaints received by Certified Agency or Non-certified Agency identifying sidewalk, curb 
ramp, or pedestrian-activated signal safety, shared use path, transit stop, park-and-ride, on-
street parking or access issues are promptly evaluated and addressed,  

c. Any repairs or removal of obstructions needed to maintain Project features in compliance with 
the ADA requirements that were in effect at the time of Project construction are completed by 
Certified Agency or abutting property owner pursuant to applicable local code provisions,  

d. Any future alteration work on the Project or Project features during the useful life of the Project 
complies with the ADA requirements in effect at the time the future alteration work is 
performed, and 

e. Applicable permitting and regulatory actions are consistent with ADA requirements.  

6. Survival: Maintenance obligations in this section shall survive termination of this Agreement.  

VI. Term and Termination 

1. The term of this Agreement shall begin on the date all required signatures are obtained and shall 
terminate upon completion of the Project and final payment or ten (10) calendar years following the 
date all required signatures are obtained, whichever is sooner. 

2. This Agreement may be terminated by mutual written consent of all Parties. 

3. ODOT may terminate this Agreement effective upon delivery of written notice to Certified Agency 
and Non-certified Agency, or at such later date as may be established by ODOT, under any of the 
following conditions: 

a. If Certified Agency or Non-certified Agency fails to provide services called for by this 
Agreement within the time specified herein or any extension thereof. 

b. If Certified Agency or Non-certified Agency fails to perform any of the other provisions 
of this Agreement, or so fails to pursue the work as to endanger performance of this 
Agreement in accordance with its terms, and after receipt of written notice from ODOT 
fails to correct such failures within ten (10) days or such longer period as ODOT may 
authorize. 

c. If Certified Agency or Non-certified Agency fails to provide payment of its share of the 
cost of the Project. 

d. If ODOT fails to receive funding, appropriations, limitations or other expenditure 
authority sufficient to allow ODOT, in the exercise of its reasonable administrative 
discretion, to continue to make payments for performance of this Agreement. 

e. If federal or state laws, regulations or guidelines are modified or interpreted in such a 
way that either the work under this Agreement is prohibited or if ODOT is prohibited 
from paying for such work from the planned funding source. 

4. Any termination of this Agreement shall not extinguish or prejudice any rights or obligations accrued 
to the Parties prior to termination. 

5. The rights and obligations set out in this Agreement shall survive Agreement expiration or 
termination, as well as any provisions of this Agreement that by their context are intended to survive.  

12 - 14



VII. Other Terms and Conditions 
 

1. Contribution: 

a. If any third party makes any claim or brings any action, suit or proceeding alleging a tort 
as now or hereafter defined in ORS 30.260 ("Third Party Claim") against a Party with 
respect to which any other Party may have liability, the notified Party must promptly 
notify the other Parties in writing of the Third Party Claim and deliver to the other Parties 
a copy of the claim, process, and all legal pleadings with respect to the Third Party 
Claim. Each Party is entitled to participate in the defense of a Third Party Claim, and to 
defend a Third Party Claim with counsel of its own choosing. Receipt by a Party of the 
notice and copies required in this paragraph and meaningful opportunity for the Party 
to participate in the investigation, defense and settlement of the Third Party Claim with 
counsel of its own choosing are conditions precedent to that Party's liability with respect 
to the Third Party Claim. 

b. With respect to a Third Party Claim for which State is jointly liable with Certified Agency 
or Non-certified Agency (or would be if joined in the Third Party Claim), State shall 
contribute to the amount of expenses (including attorneys' fees), judgments, fines and 
amounts paid in settlement actually and reasonably incurred and paid or payable by 
Certified Agency or Non-certified Agency in such proportion as is appropriate to reflect 
the relative fault of State on the one hand and of Certified Agency and Non-certified 
Agency on the other hand in connection with the events which resulted in such 
expenses, judgments, fines or settlement amounts, as well as any other relevant 
equitable considerations. The relative fault of State on the one hand and of Certified 
Agency and Non-certified Agency on the other hand shall be determined by reference 
to, among other things, the Parties' relative intent, knowledge, access to information 
and opportunity to correct or prevent the circumstances resulting in such expenses, 
judgments, fines or settlement amounts. State's contribution amount in any instance is 
capped to the same extent it would have been capped under Oregon law, including the 
Oregon Tort Claims Act, ORS 30.260 to 30.300, if State had sole liability in the 
proceeding. 

c. With respect to a Third Party Claim for which Certified Agency or Non-certified Agency 
is jointly liable with State (or would be if joined in the Third Party Claim),  Certified 
Agency and Non-certified Agency  shall contribute to the amount of expenses (including 
attorneys' fees), judgments, fines and amounts paid in settlement actually and 
reasonably incurred and paid or payable by State in such proportion as is appropriate 
to reflect the relative fault of Certified Agency and Non-certified Agency on the one hand 
and of State on the other hand in connection with the events which resulted in such 
expenses, judgments, fines or settlement amounts, as well as any other relevant 
equitable considerations. The relative fault of Certified Agency and Non-certified 
Agency on the one hand and of State on the other hand shall be determined by 
reference to, among other things, the Parties' relative intent, knowledge, access to 
information and opportunity to correct or prevent the circumstances resulting in such 
expenses, judgments, fines or settlement amounts.  Certified Agency and Non-certified 
Agency’s contribution amount(s) in any instance is capped to the same extent it would 
have been capped under Oregon law, including the Oregon Tort Claims Act, ORS 
30.260 to 30.300, if it had sole liability in the proceeding. 

2. The Parties hereto agree that if any term or provision of this Agreement is declared by a court of 
competent jurisdiction to be invalid, unenforceable, illegal or in conflict with any law, the validity of 
the remaining terms and provisions shall not be affected, and the rights and obligations of the Parties 

12 - 15



shall be construed and enforced as if the Agreement did not contain the particular term or provision 
held to be invalid. 

3. State certifies and represents that each individual signing this Agreement has been authorized to 
enter into and execute this Agreement on behalf of State, under the direction or approval of its 
governing body, commission, board, officers, members or representatives, and to legally bind State. 

4. Certified Agency certifies and represents that each individual signing this Agreement has been 
authorized to enter into and execute this Agreement on behalf of Certified Agency, under the 
direction or approval of its governing body, commission, board, officers, members or 
representatives, and to legally bind Certified Agency. 

5. Non-certified Agency certifies and represents that each individual signing this Agreement has been 
authorized to enter into and execute this Agreement on behalf of Non-certified Agency, under the 
direction or approval of its governing body, commission, board, officers, members or 
representatives, and to legally bind Non-certified Agency. 

6. This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts (facsimile or otherwise) all of which when 
taken together shall constitute one agreement binding on all Parties, notwithstanding that all Parties 
are not signatories to the same counterpart. Each copy of this Agreement so executed shall 
constitute an original. 

7. This Agreement and the Local Agency Certification Program Agreement No. 30923, as amended 
and all attached exhibits constitutes the entire agreement between the Parties on the subject matter 
hereof. In the event of conflict, the body of this Agreement and the attached Exhibits will control over 
Project application and documents provided by Certified Agency or Non-certified Agency to ODOT. 
There are no understandings, agreements, or representations, oral or written, not specified herein 
regarding this Agreement. No waiver, consent, modification or change of terms of this Agreement 
shall bind a Party unless in writing and signed by all Parties and all necessary approvals have been 
obtained. Such waiver, consent, modification or change, if made, shall be effective only in the 
specific instance and for the specific purpose given. The failure of a Party to enforce any provision 
of this Agreement shall not constitute a waiver by that Party of that or any other provision.  
Notwithstanding this provision, the Parties may enter into a Right Of Way Services Agreement in 
furtherance of the Project. 

VIII. Contacts 

1. Mahasti Hastings, ODOT Region 1 Local Agency Liaison, 123 Flanders Street, Portland, Oregon, 
503.731.8595, Mahasti.V.HASTINGS@odot.oregon.gov or assigned designee upon individual’s 
absence, is ODOT’s contact for this Agreement.  ODOT shall notify the other Party in writing of any 
contact information changes during the term of this Agreement. 

2. Joel Howie, Civil Engineering Supervisor, 503.742.4658, jhowie@clackamas.us or assigned 
designee upon individual’s absence, is Certified Agency’s contact for this Agreement.  Certified 
Agency shall notify the other Party in writing of any contact information changes during the term of 
this Agreement. 

3. Jacque Betz, City Administrator, 503.656.7957, betz@ci.gladstone.or.us or assigned designee 
upon individual’s absence, Non-certified Agency’s contact for this Agreement.  Certified Agency 
shall notify the other Party in writing of any contact information changes during the term of this 
Agreement. 

THE PARTIES, by execution of this Agreement, hereby acknowledge that their signing representatives 
have read this Agreement, understand it, and agree to be bound by its terms and conditions. 

12 - 16



This Project is in the 2021-2024 Statewide Transportation Improvement Program (STIP), (Key #22139) 
that was adopted by the Oregon Transportation Commission on July 15, 2020 (or subsequently 
approved by amendment to the STIP).  

Certified Agency, Clackamas County, 
acting by and through its elected officials 

By _______________________________ 

Date _____________________________ 

LEGAL REVIEW APPROVAL (If required 
in Agency’s process)  

By _______________________________ 
Certified Agency Legal Counsel 

Date _____________________________ 

Non-certified Agency, City of Gladstone, 
acting by and through its elected officials 

By _______________________________ 

Title ______________________________ 

Date _____________________________ 

LEGAL REVIEW APPROVAL (If required 
in Agency’s process)  

By _______________________________ 
Non-certified Agency Legal Counsel 

Date _____________________________ 

Certified Agency Contact: 
Joel Howie, Civil Engineering Supervisor 
Clackamas County 
150 Beavercreek Road 
Oregon City, OR 97045 
503-742-4658
jhowie@co.clackamas.or,us

Non-certified Agency Contact: 
Jacque Betz, City Administrator  
City of Gladstone 
18505 Portland Avenue 
Gladstone, Oregon 97027 
betz@ci.gladstone.or.us  

STATE OF OREGON, acting by and 
through its Department of Transportation 

By _______________________________ 
Delivery & Operations Division 
Administrator 

Date _____________________________ 

APPROVAL RECOMMENDED 

By _______________________________ 
Region 1 Manager 

Date _____________________________ 

By _______________________________ 
Certification Program Manager 

Date _____________________________ 

By _______________________________ 
State Traffic Roadway Engineer 

Date _____________________________ 

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL 
SUFFICIENCY 

By EMAIL Andrea Goodwin 
Assistant Attorney General (If over 
$150,000) 

Date___________________ 

ODOT Contact: 
Mahasti Hastings, Local Agency Liaison 
ODOT R1 
123 NW Flanders St 
Portland, OR 97209 
971-264-8253
mahasti.v.hastings@odot.Oregon.gov

12/01/23

12 - 17



Exhibit A – Project Location Map 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

12 - 18



 Exhibit B 
Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) 

Subaward Reporting 
(For purposes of this Exhibit, references to “your organization” shall mean “Certified Agency” and references to “ODOT” 
shall mean “State.”)  
The Oregon Department of Transportation (ODOT) is required to fulfill a federal requirement for contracting under the 
Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) Subaward Reporting System (FSRS). FFATA reporting is 
a requirement for subawards (also known as subrecipients) of federal awards in excess of $30,000. Your organization will 
enter into an agreement with ODOT where the funding source is a federal grant with a subrecipient relationship. Your 
organization is required to submit the information below to the Oregon Department of Transportation within fourteen 
calendar days of execution of the Agreement and annually thereafter, if applicable.  (See the following page for further 
details.) 
 
Legal entity name:       
 
Unique Entity Identifier (UEI) number:       
Executive compensation 
Executive compensation information is also required to determine whether or not the following information must be 
reported in FSRS: 
 
a. In your organization’s previous fiscal year, did your organization receive 80% or more of its annual gross revenue and 

$25,000,000 or more in federal procurement contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, cooperative 
agreements and federal financial assistance awards subject to the Transparency Act? (Include parent organization, all 
branches, and all affiliates worldwide.) 

 Yes    No If “yes,” proceed to b. If “no,” no further action is required and submittal of this form is not 
required. 

b. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the senior executives in your organization 
(including parent organization, all branches, and all affiliates worldwide) through periodic reports filed under section 
13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal 
Revenue Code of 1986? 

 Yes    No If “yes,” provide a link to the SEC: http://www.sec.gov where this information is located and return 
form to the ODOT contact shown at the bottom of this form. 

 Provide link here:       
 If “no,” provide compensation information below.  

Names and annual compensation amounts of the five most highly compensated executives: 
 
1.        $       
 
2.        $       
 
3.        $       
 
4.        $       
 
5.        $       
Business entity contact information (person completing form): 
 
                    
Type name Title Date 
 
Return completed form to:  Program and Funding Services Manager; Oregon Department of Transportation; 555 
13th Street NE; Salem, OR 97301; projectfundingcoordinators@odot.oregon.gov  

12 - 19



State/Certified Agency/Non-certified Agency 
Agreement No. 
 

15 
 

Background on FFATA requirements 
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) was signed on September 26, 2006. The intent 
of the Act is to empower every American with the ability to hold the government accountable for each spending 
decision. The end result is to reduce wasteful spending in the government. The FFATA legislation requires 
information on federal awards (federal financial assistance and expenditures) be made available to the public via a 
single, searchable website, which is www.USASpending.gov. 
 
Definition of compensation 
Your organization is considered a subrecipient of federal funds.  Unless your organization is exempt, FFATA 
requires you to report total compensation for each of your five most highly compensated executives for the 
preceding completed year. Total compensation means the cash and non-cash dollar value earned by the executive 
during the subrecipient's preceding fiscal year and includes the following: salary and bonus; awards of stock, stock 
options, and stock appropriation rights; earnings for services under non-equity incentive plans; change in pension 
value; above-market earnings on deferred compensation which is not tax-qualified; and other compensation as 
defined in 2 CFR Part 170, Section 170.330(b)(5)(vi).   

 
More detailed information about the FFATA can be found at: http://edocket.access.gpo.gov/2010/pdf/2010-
22705.pdf 

  
If you have any questions on this Exhibit, contact: projectfundingcoordinators@odot.oregon.gov

12 - 20



State/Certified Agency/Non-certified Agency 
Agreement No. 73000-00003197 
 

16 
 

EXHIBIT C – PROJECT KEY MILESTONES AND SCHEDULE 
Agreement No. 73000-00003197 

Project Name:  Trolley Trail Bridge 
1. Project Description  

The Project includes Certified Agency completing project development activities for a new 
 pedestrian bridge across the Clackamas River, identifying type, size, and location alternatives for 
 the pedestrian bridge, which will link workers, residents, and tourists in Gladstone and Oregon City. 
 The proposed pedestrian bridge will increase travel options and improve safety and mobility. 
 
2. This Project is subject to progress reporting and project change process as stated in Paragraphs 

No. 3 through No. 6 below. 
 
3. Quarterly Progress Reports (QPR) - Agency shall submit quarterly progress reports using QPR 

Form 734-2850, attached by reference and made a part of this Agreement. QPR’s are due by April 
5th for the period January through March, July 5th for the period April through June, October 5th for 
the period July through September, and January 5th for period October through December.  When 
this Agreement is executed within the last month of a quarter, the first quarterly report is due at the 
end of the first full quarter and will cover the first month of the Agreement and the quarter.  QPR’s 
shall be submitted until the State issues the Project Acceptance document. 

 
A sample Quarterly Report from and instructions are available at the following website under 
“Compliance – Forms & Guidance”.  https://www.oregon.gov/ODOT/LocalGov/Pages/Certification-
Guidance-Forms.aspx#applications 
 

4. Project Milestones – The Parties agree that the dates shown in Table 1 constitute the intended 
schedule for advancing and completing the Project. Project Milestones may be changed only by 
obtaining an approved Project Change Request (PCR) for this Project as described in paragraph 5 
below.  

 
Table 1:  Project Milestones  

 Milestone Description  Obligation  
Date* 

1 
 

Obligation (Federal Authorization) of LBP Funds for the 
Preliminary Engineering phase of Project 

FFY24 

2 Obligation (Federal Authorization) of LBP Funds for the 
Right-of-Way phase of the Project  

N/A 

4 Obligation (Federal Authorization) of LBP Funds for the 
Utility phase of Project 

N/A 

5 Obligation (Federal Authorization) of LBP Funds for the 
Construction phase of Project 

N/A 

 
5. Project Change Request (PCR) Process - Agency must obtain approval from State’s Bridge STIP 

Coordinator and State’s Bridge Engineer for changes to the Project’s scope, schedule, or budget 
by submitting a PCR, as specified in Paragraphs 5a, 5b, and 5c, below. Agency shall be fully 
responsible for all costs attributable to changes to the established Project scope, schedule or budget 

12 - 21



State/Certified Agency/Non-certified Agency 
Agreement No. 73000-00003197 

17 
 

made prior to an approved PCR.  Amendments to this Agreement are required for all approved 
PCRs. 
a. Scope - A PCR is required for any significant change or reduction in the scope of work described 

in the Project Description (Paragraph 1 of this Exhibit). 
 

b. Schedule– A PCR is required if Agency or State’s Contact anticipates that any Project Milestone 
will be delayed by more than ninety (90) days, and also for any change in schedule that will 
require amendment of the Statewide Transportation Improvement Program (STIP). 

 
c. Budget – The Project’s estimated budget is used for determining the level of compensation for 

completed work.  Increases or decreases in the budget which require a STIP amendment also 
require the submission of a PCR to the State’s Regional Local Agency Liaison.  

 
d. PCR requests that result in Project cost increases that are equal to or less than twenty (20) 

percent of the total estimated Project cost or $200,000, whichever amount is less, can be 
approved by the State Bridge Engineer.  Amendments can be approved and entered into by the 
State Bridge Engineer, subject to any other approvals required by law.  
 

e. PCR requests that result in a Project cost increase in excess of twenty (20) percent of the total 
estimated Project cost or $200,000, whichever amount is greater, must be approved by the State 
Bridge Engineer and the Local Agency Bridge Selection Committee with a majority vote.   
  

6. PCR Form - Agency must submit all change requests using PCR Form 734-2851, attached by 
reference and made a part of this Agreement. The PCR Form is due no later than thirty (30) days after 
the need for change becomes known to Agency. The PCR shall explain what change is being 
requested, the reasons for the change, and any efforts to mitigate the change. A PCR may be rejected 
at the discretion of State’s Bridge Engineer.  
 

The fillable PCR form and its instructions are available at the following web site: 
http://www.oregon.gov/ODOT/Forms/2ODOT/2851.doc  
 

7. Consequence for Non-Performance - If Agency fails to fulfill its obligations in Paragraphs No. 3  
through No. 6 above, or does not assist in advancing the Project or perform tasks that the Agency is 
responsible for under the Project Milestones, State’s course of action through the duration of 
Agency’s default may include: (a) restricting Agency consideration for future funds awarded through 
State’s Active Transportation Section, (b) withdrawing unused Project funds, and (c) terminating this 
Agreement as stated in Section VI, Paragraphs No. 3 (a-e) of this Agreement and recovery of 
payments pursuant to Section II, Paragraph 5 of this Agreement. 

12 - 22



13a



13a - 1



13a - 2



13a - 3



13a - 4



13a - 5





13b



13b - 1



13b - 2



13b - 3



13b - 4



13c



13c - 1



13c - 2



13c - 3



13c - 4



13c - 5



13c - 6



13d



13d - 1



13d - 2



13d - 3



13d - 4



13d - 5



13d - 6



13d - 7



13d - 8



13d - 9





13e



P:\New Files\COUNCIL\Staff Report\Staff Report - Vacancy.PC.12122023.docx 

City of Gladstone 
Staff Report 

 
Report Date: December 5, 2023 
Meeting Date: December 12, 2023 
To:  City Council 
From:  Jacque Betz, City Administrator 
 
AGENDA ITEM: 
Appointment to the Planning Commission 
 
History/Background: 
Please be advised there are two (2) four-year terms on the Planning Commission that expire 12-31-23.  
These positions are currently held by Natalie Smith and Jacob Wease.   
 
Currently, Section 2.42.020 of the GMC requires the seven members of the Planning Commission be 
residents of the city and appointed by the City Council on the basis of their qualifications to serve in such 
capacity. 
 
Currently, Section 2.42.020 of the GMC, “Membership - Qualifications”, states: 
 

“No more than two (2) voting members of the Commission may engage principally in the buying, 
selling or developing of real estate for profit as individual, or be members of any partnership, or 
officers or employees of any corporation, that engages principally in the buying, selling or developing 
of real estate for profit.” 
 

Current Planning Commission members: 
 
Andriel Langston has lived in Gladstone for 8.5 years. He is a Project Engineer for LMC Construction 
– a construction management firm.  He was appointed in December 2017 and re-appointed in 
December 2021. 
 
Natalie Smith, was appointed in December 2015 and re-appointed in December 2019 and has lived 
in Gladstone for 22 years. She is employed as an Office Administrator/Officer Manager.  Natalie has 
served on the Library Board and Planning Commission.   
 
Andrew Labonte was appointed in February 2021, has lived in Gladstone since 2016 and is employed 
as a Traffic Safety Educator for 1st Learn to Drive LLC and is a business administrator for Get-It Dog 
Treats. Andrew is currently a member of the Traffic Safety Advisory Board and former member of 
the Park & Recreation Advisory Board. 
 
Jennifer Volbeda has lived in Gladstone for 3 years.  She was appointed in December 2021 and is 
employed by Nike in the construction industry.  
 
Patrick Smith has lived in Gladstone for 40+ years. He is retired from grocery, then consumer 
products sales management. Current partner in an inventory service – part-time.  He was appointed 
to the Planning Commission in December 2016 and re-appointed in 2017.  He did not re-apply in 
2021, however, was appointed in May 2022 to an unexpired term and then re-appointed in January 
2023. 
 

13e - 1



13e - 2



13e - 3



13e - 4



13e - 5



13e - 6



13e - 7



13e - 8



13f



13f - 1



13f - 2



13f - 3



13f - 4



 
 

PRELIMINARY 
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 
PLANNING 
DOCUMENT 





Gladstone City Council Preliminary Agendas 
 
 

 December 26, 2023 
 

 

 No Work Session- Holiday week 
 

 

 January 9, 2024 
Regular City Council Meeting  

6:30 PM 

 

 Swearing-in of new elected official Cierra Cook to 
Council Position #4 
 

Judge Lindgren 
 

 Selection of Council President 
 

City Council 

  Financials 
 Legal costs on projects 
 Minutes from previous Council meetings 
 Department Head Monthly Reports 

(December 2023) 
 

 

Report Clackamas Fire District 
 

 

Presentation Milwaukie Police Chief Luke Strait and Behavioral 
Health Unit Glen Suchanek will provide a 
presentation on their Behavioral Health Crisis 
Program 
 

PC Schmerber 

 Consider approval of an ordinance amending Chapter 
17.78 Home Occupations 
 

CR Bannick/PC Austin/EA Kratz 

 Update on City Council Goals 
 

 

  
 

 

   
 January 23, 2024 

City Council Work Session  
5:30 PM 

 

 West Linn Youth Council Presentation 
 

Co-Chair Annamila Konkola and 
Member Sophia Martella 

 February 13, 2024 
Regular City Council Meeting 

 6:30 PM 

 

  Financials 
 Legal costs on projects 
 Minutes from previous Council meetings 
 Department Head Monthly Reports (January 

2024) 
 

 

Report Clackamas Fire District  

Agenda Planning Document - 1



Gladstone City Council Preliminary Agendas 
 
 

 
 Accept the 2022-23 Fiscal Audit 

 
FC Brucker/CA Betz 

 Consider awarding a contract to complete Phase 1 & 
2 of the Gladstone Infrastructure Infiltration and Infill 
Reduction Program 
 

PWD Caniparoli 

 Consider approval of a contract with Clackamas 
County for Behavior Health Mobile Crisis position in 
the Gladstone Police Department 
 

PC Schmerber/CA Betz 

 City Administrator Evaluation Process and Timeline 
 

City Council/City Attorney 

  
 

 

 February 27, 2024 
City Council Work Session 

5:30 PM 

 

 Unilateral Flushing Program 
 

PWD Caniparoli 

 March 12, 2024 
Regular City Council Meeting 

6:30 PM 

 

  Financials 
 Legal costs on projects 
 Minutes from previous Council meetings 
 Department Head Monthly Reports (February 

2024) 
 

 

Report Clackamas Fire District 
 

 

 Consider awarding a contract for the Evergreen 
Stormline Replacement Project 
 

PWD Caniparoli 

 Consider awarding a contract to complete the Oak 
Lodge Water Services infrastructure projects per the 
IGA 
 

PWD Caniparoli  

 Adopt an ordinance to amend Gladstone Municipal 
Code and creating the Gladstone Youth Advisory 
Council  
 

CA Betz 

  
 
 
 

 

Agenda Planning Document - 2



Gladstone City Council Preliminary Agendas 
 
 

 March 26, 2024 
City Council Work Session 

5:30 pm 

 

 Gladstone Urban Renewal District Preliminary 
Analysis of Possible Substantial Amendment 
 

CA Betz/ EC Jory/Consultants 

  
Discussion on Temporary Signs Per GMC 17.52.100 
 

PC Schmerber 

 April 9, 2024 
City Council Regular Meeting 

6:30 PM 

 

  Financials 
 Legal costs on projects 
 Minutes from previous Council meetings 
 Department Head Monthly Reports (March 

2024) 
 

 

Report Clackamas Fire District 
 

 

 Consider approving the contract to complete paving 
projects (includes Webster Road between Cason Rd 
to the city limits. 
 

PWD Caniparoli 

 Policy Guidance on the Climate Friendly & Equitable 
Communities Related to Oregon Administrative Rule 
(OAR) 66-012-0012 
 

SP Austin/CA Betz 

 April 23, 2024 
City Council Work Session 

5:30 PM 

 

  
 

 

  
 

 

 May 14, 2024 
City Council Regular Meeting 

6:30 pm 

 

  Financials 
 Legal costs on projects 
 Minutes from previous Council meetings 
 Department Head Monthly Reports (April 

2024) 
 

 

Report Clackamas Fire District  
 

 

Agenda Planning Document - 3



Gladstone City Council Preliminary Agendas 
 
 

 Appoint members to the Gladstone Youth Council 
 

City Council 

  
 

 

 May 28, 2024 
City Council Work Session 

5:30 pm 

 

  
 

 

 June 11, 2024 
City Council Regular Meeting 

6:30 pm 

 

  Financials 
 Legal costs on projects 
 Minutes from previous Council meetings 
 Department Head Monthly Reports (May 

2024) 
 

 

Report Clackamas Fire District 
 

 

  
 

 

  
 

 

  
 

 

 June 25, 2024 
City Council Work Session 

5:30 PM 

 

  
 

 

  
 

 

 July 9, 2024 
City Council Regular Meeting 

6:30 PM 

 

  Financials 
 Legal costs on projects 
 Minutes from previous Council meetings 
 Department Head Monthly Reports (June 

2024) 
 

 

Report Clackamas Fire District 
 

 

  
 

 

Agenda Planning Document - 4



Gladstone City Council Preliminary Agendas 
 
 

 

  
 

 

  
 

 

 July 23, 2024 
City Council Work Session 

5:30 PM 

 

  
 

 

 To Be Set 
 

 

 Acceptance of Oregon Parks and Recreation 
Committee Grant for the paved loop trail at the 
Gladstone Nature Park 
 

CA Betz/PWD Caniparoli 

 RFQ/Q for Auditing Services (2024) 
 

FC Brucker 

 Climate Friendly & Equitable Communities Related 
to Oregon Administrative Rule (OAR) 66-012-0012 
 

 

 Rezoning of nature park and Meldrum Bar Park 
parcels to Open Space 
 

 

 Use of ARPA Funds 
 

 

 Tree City USA Designation 
 

 

Agenda Planning Document - 5


